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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS,

2003 was a year of important changes within our Group, a year during which results clearly reflected the impact of

a difficult global economic environment, with declining consumption and the devaluation of the U.S. Dollar against the

Euro. As a result, for the first time Luxottica Group saw a temporary slowdown in its historical growth rates. 

With respect to the devaluation of the U.S. currency, this represented most of our year-over-year decline in

profitability. Despite this, we decided against reflecting its impact on our wholesale prices. This allowed us to further

strengthen the competitiveness of our products and, as a result, consolidate our market share. In fact, we believe that

while exchange rate variations are a temporary event, in the long term the market share gained over the years is one

of our most important assets and must be carefully defended. 

With respect to our brand portfolio, in 2003 our objective was to reduce the risk related to the renewal of licensing

agreements with designer brands. To this end, we worked to increase the average length of such agreements

replacing a brand that was expiring with two new designer brands: Prada, for ten years, and Versace, for ten or

twenty years. Additionally, to strengthen our portfolio of house brands during the year we launched the Ray-Ban

Ophthalmic and Junior lines. As a result of this rebalancing, today house brands represent two thirds of our portfolio,

increasing over the previous year. During the first months of 2004, our wholesale results in terms of sales and

profitability support the validity of our strategic decisions.  

At the retail level, despite the year-over-year decline in sales due to the difficult economic environment especially in

the U.S., operating income for the year at constant exchange rates were flat thanks to our continued efforts to control

costs and improve productivity. This confirmed that the strategy to invest in retail is rewarding for the long term. As a

result, during 2003 we closed the acquisition of OPSM Group, an optical chain with stores in Australia, New Zealand,

Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia, thus gaining an important market share in that region. Similarly, at the beginning

of 2004 we launched the acquisition of U.S.-based Cole National Corporation, which we hope to close in the second

half of 2004. 

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Leonardo Del Vecchio
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In conclusion, the slower growth of last year allowed management to focus on further improvements in production

and distribution, achieving an even more exacting control over manufacturing costs, generating additional efficiencies

in logistics worldwide and continual improvement in the level of pre- and post-sales customer service. As a result,

today our Group looks to the future with a stronger and more efficient manufacturing, distribution and management

structure than last year. 

May  2004

Chairman
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January 2 Luxottica Group’s ordinary shares and American Depositary Shares (ADS) (one ADS represents one

ordinary share) open trading on the Mercato Telematico Azionario (Milan Stock Exchange, or MTA)

and on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). On the last trading day of 2002, Luxottica Group’s

ordinary shares and ADSs had closed at € 12.576 and US$ 13.65, respectively, reflecting a market

capitalization of € 5.7 billion and US$ 6.2 billion, respectively. 

January 15 Luxottica Group and Versace Group jointly announce the signing of a worldwide license agreement

for the design, production and distribution of Versace, Versus and Versace Sport sunglasses and

prescription frames. The initial ten-year agreement is renewable for an additional ten years.

February 10 Luxottica Group denies media speculations that it is in negotiations for the acquisition of either

French-based retail chain GrandVision or Italy-based eyewear manufacturer De Rigo.

March 20 The Group launches a share buyback program through its subsidiary Luxottica U.S. Holdings Corp.

Under this plan, which follows an earlier, September 25, 2002, similar buyback program, the

Group’s subsidiary can repurchase over a period of 18 months up to 10 million ADSs, or 2.2% of

the Group’s authorized and issued share capital.

April 24 Luxottica Group reports results for the first quarter of fiscal year 2003 with net sales of € 704.5

million, operating income of € 111.4 million, and earnings per share or ADS of € 0.15 (US$ 0.16).

April 30 Luxottica Group and OPSM Group (“OPSM”) jointly announce that Luxottica Group is to launch a

recommended cash offer for all outstanding issues of OPSM, the leading retail optical chain in

Australia. The acquisition is an important step in the Group’s strategy to expand its retail business in

the region, and it would immediately make Luxottica Group the leading player in the Australian

prescription segment. The offer is for an aggregate consideration of A$580 million, equivalent to 

€ 327 million.

May 5 The Group’s Board of Directors approves the Italian GAAP statutory and consolidated financial

statements for fiscal year 2002. The Board also proposes the payment to shareholders of a cash

dividend for fiscal year 2002 of € 0.21 per ordinary share, up from a cash dividend of 

€ 0.17 per ordinary share for the previous fiscal year. For holders of the Group’s ADRs, the

proposed cash dividend is € 0.21 per ADS.

June 13 Luxottica Group announces that the cash tender offer for all outstanding issues of OPSM Group is

to commence on June 16. Holders who accept the offer would receive A$3.80 in cash in addition

to a special dividend of A$ 0.10.

June 25 At the Group’s Annual Ordinary Meeting, shareholders approve the proposed cash dividend for

fiscal year 2002 of € 0.21 per ordinary shares, or € 0.21 per ADS.

July 10 Luxottica Group extends for an additional two weeks the cash tender offer for all outstanding issues

OPSM Group. Luxottica Group also announces that it has received confirmation from the Australian

Competition and Consumer Commission (ACCC) that it would not intervene in the transaction.

July 17 In response to inquiries from members of the financial community, Luxottica Group issues a

statement indicating that sales of Oakley sunglasses at Sunglass Hut International for the second

quarter of 2003 were flat year-over-year. 

July 23 Luxottica Group and Prada Group announce the signing of a ten-year agreement for the exclusive

production and distribution of prescription frames and sunglasses bearing the Prada and Miu Miu

names. Prior to this agreement, Luxottica Group already distributed Prada-branded eyewear in

Japan and North America. 

A YEAR IN THE MAKING - HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2003
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July 24 Luxottica Group extends the OPSM offer for an additional two weeks to provide shareholders with

additional time to accept the offer. The Group also announces that the Australian Foreign

Investment Review Board (FIRB) confirmed that it had no objections to the transaction. 

July 28 Luxottica Group reports results for the second quarter with net sales of € 707.0 million, operating

income of € 111.9 million, and earnings per share or ADS of € 0.15 (US$ 0.17). For the six-month

period ended June 30, the Group reports net sales of € 1,411.5 million, operating income of 

€ 223.2 million, and earnings per share or ADS of € 0.30 (US$ 0.33).

August 1 The Group extend the OPSM offer by one additional week, through August 22, and indicates that it

intends to make it unconditional if it acquires by August 12 shares equal to at least 50.1% of the

total number of shares outstanding.

August 8 Luxottica Group announces that it has received acceptances from OPSM holders that increase its

relevant interest in the company to 50.68%. As a result, Luxottica Group declares the offer free from

all conditions. 

September 1 The Group announces that India’s Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) has upheld the decision of the

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The decision would requires a subsidiary of the

Group to make a public offering to acquire up to an additional 20% of the shares of RayBan Sun

Optics India Ltd., a company listed on the local market. Luxottica Group further states that a tender

offer in accordance with SEBI’s decision would have no material financial impact on the Group and

is estimated at approximately € 10 million, plus a stipulated interest increment. 

September 3 Luxottica Group announces the successful completion of the cash offer for all outstanding shares,

options and performance rights of OPSM. At the close of the offer on September 2, Luxottica South

Pacific Pty Ltd., the wholly-owned subsidiary through which the offer was launched, holds 82.57%

of the shares of OPSM Group, thus gaining the unilateral right to appoint all members of OPSM’s

Board of Directors. 

September 22 Luxottica Group is added to the MIB 30, the index of highest market capitalization stocks traded on

the Italian Stock Exchange. 

September 29 Luxottica Group’s Board of Directors approves, in accordance with Italian securities law, the

Group’s Italian GAAP financial statements for the six-month period ended June 30. 

October 28 Luxottica Group reports results for the third quarter with net sales of € 694.5 million, operating

income of € 109.4 million, and earnings per share or ADS of € 0.17 (US$ 0.19). For the nine-month

period ended September 30, the Group reports net sales of € 2,106.0 million, operating income of

€ 332.7 million, and earnings per share or ADS of € 0.46 (US$ 0.51).

October 30 Luxottica Group announces that, in compliance with directions issued by India’s SAT, it intends to

launch a public offer to acquire an additional 20% of the outstanding shares of RayBan Sun Optics

India Ltd. The offer would be launched through the Group’s subsidiary Ray Ban Indian Holdings

Inc., with a maximum expected investment of € 16 million, including the stipulated interest

increment. 

December 31 Luxottica Group’s ordinary shares and ADSs close trading on the MTA at € 13.700 and on 

the NYSE at US$ 17.40, respectively, reflecting a market capitalization of € 6.3 billion and 

US$ 7.9 billion, respectively. 

Jan. 29, 2004 Luxottica Group reports results for the fourth quarter with net sales of € 718.1 million, operating

income of € 99.1 million, and earnings per share or ADS of € 0.13 (US$ 0.16). For the full year, the

Group reports net sales of € 2,824.6 million, operating income of € 431.8 million, and earnings per

share or ADS of € 0.60 (US$ 0.67).
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2003

Thousands
of Euro

(5) (7) (9)

(6)

1999

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(5) (11)

(3) (6)

2000

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(5) (11)

(3) (6)

2001

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(5) (7) (11)

(3) (6)

2002

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(5) (7) (11)

(3) (6)

2003

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

(5) (7) (9)

(3) (6)

(4)

(8) These figures have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split
which was effective June 26, 2000

(9) Figures for 2003 include results of OPSM Group’s operations from August 1, 2003
(10) Results through 2000 have been calculated from the financial statements in Lire

converted at the fixed rate of Lire 1,936.27 = € 1.00

Net sales 1,889,047 2,438,728 3,101,129 3,178,602 2,824,636 Net sales 2,010,415 2,245,878 2,777,681 3,003,779 3,193,816

Gross profit 1,314,955 1,719,487 2,180,946 2,254,198 1.946,296 Gross profit 1,399,375 1,583,475 1,953,473 2,130,217 2,200,677

Operating income 237,658 411,921 509,492 601,508 431,787 Operating income 252,916 379,338 456,352 568,425 488,222

Income before taxes 228,061 362,019 441,311 539,441 389,793 Income before taxes 242,713 333,391 395,282 509,772 440,739

Net income 152,463 255,277 316,373 372,077 267,343 Net income 162,259 235,090 283,375 351,613 302,285

Figures per ordinary share (ADS) (2) Figures per ordinary share (ADS) (2)

Net earnings (8) 0.34 0.57 0.70 0.82 0.60 Net earnings (8) 0.36 0.52 0.63 0.78 0.67

Dividend (8) (10) 0.085 0.140 0.170 0.210 0.210 Dividend (8) (10) 0.081 0.120 0.165 - 0.210 

Average number Average number 
of outstanding shares (8) 449,299,800 449,987,899 451,036,978 453,174,041 448,664,413 of outstanding shares (8) 449,299,800 449,987,899 451,036,978 453,174,041 448,664,413

Main financial ratios Main financial ratios

Gross margin 69.6% 70.5% 70.3% 70.9% 68.9% Gross margin 69.6% 70.5% 70.3% 70.9% 68.9%

Operating margin 12.6% 16.9% 16.4% 18.9% 15.3% Operating margin 12.6% 16.9% 16.4% 18.9% 15.3%

Income before taxes margin 12.1% 14.8% 14.2% 17.0% 13.8% Income before taxes margin 12.1% 14.8% 14.2% 17.0% 13.8%

Net earnings margin 8.1% 10.5% 10.2% 11.7% 9.5% Net earnings margin 8.1% 10.5% 10.2% 11.7% 9.5%

1999-2003: FIVE-YEAR SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

For the years ended 
December 31, (1) (10)

(U.S. GAAP)

For the years ended 
December 31, (1) (10)

(U.S. GAAP)

2000

Thousands
of Euro

(5) (11)

(6)

1999

Thousands
of Euro

(5) (11)

(6)

2001

Thousands
of Euro

(5) (7) (11)

(6)

2002

Thousands
of Euro

(5) (7) (11)

(6)

(1) Financial Statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP
(2) One ADS is equivalent to one ordinary share
(3) For the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate on dividends please see page. 29
(4) Proposed by the Board of Directors and to be submitted for approval to the Annual

Shareholders’ Meeting on June 17, 2004

(5) 1999 through 2003 results include the activity of Ray-Ban from the
acquisition date (June 26, 1999) 

(6) Except per ADS amounts which are in Euro and U.S. Dollars, 
respectively

(7) Results for the 2001-2003 period include the activity of Sunglass Hut
International from the acquisition date (March 31, 2001)

(4) (4)

IN EURO IN U.S. DOLLARS

(11) These results have been adjusted to allow a comparison with results
for 2003

(12) OPSM’s results for 2003 include results of operations from August 1,
2003
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MANUFACTURING AND WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTION DIVISION

OVERVIEW OF 2003

2003 was a challenging year for Luxottica Group’s manufacturing and wholesale distribution division. In addition to

the difficult economic conditions in many important markets and the unfavorable Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate, the

Group decided not renew what had been one of the most important licenses in its portfolio - the license with Armani,

which was first launched in 1988. The discontinuation of the manufacturing and wholesale distribution of Giorgio

Armani and Emporio Armani sunglasses and prescription frames resulted in a year-over-year decline of nearly 80

percent in sales of Armani-licensed eyewear, thus significantly affecting the performance for the year of the

manufacturing and wholesale distribution division. 

Despite these events, during the course of the year Luxottica Group actually strengthened its brand portfolio. First,

it acquired licenses for Versace and Versus in January and Prada and Miu Miu in July, for which the first collections

were launched in March and September, respectively.  Similarly, in March of 2003 it launched two additional new lines,

Ray-Ban Ophthalmic and Ray-Ban Junior, further enhancing a brand that has been the leader in the sun segment

since its launch 66 years-ago. In fact, in 2003 Ray-Ban introduced its first ever ophthalmic collection with 43 models.

The new collection included styles from classic to more modern, frames in ultra-light resins, special metals and alloys,

all in the genuine Ray-Ban style and manufactured with maximum research and refined technology.

While the acquisition of the Prada and Versace licenses added two important brands from leading international

fashion houses to Luxottica Group’s portfolio, the extension of the Ray-Ban brand, Luxottica Group’s strongest house

brand and its best selling, represented a key development in the Group’s portfolio strategy. As a result, after the first

full twelve months of sales the introduction of the new designer collections and Ray-Ban lines will have more than

replaced the loss of the Armani licenses both in terms of revenues and level of profitability.

Today, as a result of a portfolio optimization strategy carried out over the years by the Group, as well as its ability

to quickly anticipate and address developments that could have potentially negatively affected it in the long term,

Luxottica Group’s brand portfolio is stronger and better balanced than ever before, resulting in a further consolidation

of its market leadership. At the same time, the launch of the new collections and the more than positive response

received from opticians, optical retailers and customers alike, make Luxottica Group more competitive and attractive

as a partner for the more prestigious designer brands that want to benefit from Luxottica Group’s recognized

leadership in design, production quality and global wholesale distribution.

14

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE THE YEAR IN REVIEW
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GEOGRAPHIC EXPANSION AND INVESTMENTS

In 2003, South America and Asia were among the most challenging markets.  Asia was particularly affected by the

outbreak of the Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS),  All the while, Luxottica Group continued to monitor

closely the evolution of certain emerging markets, where it might consider setting up a direct distribution network

through new, “light” subsidiaries. 

Following the consolidation of the European distribution activities in Sedico in 2002, in North America the

Canadian distribution center was completely merged into Avant Garde’s existing distribution center in the U.S. This

immediately resulted in an improvement in the service level offered to customers, as it had already happened in

Europe. 

Other investments in 2003 were mainly associated with technological improvements to the Group’s manufacturing

facilities. 

16

MANUFACTURING

During the year, at the manufacturing level management’s efforts focused on improving technology, optimizing the

structure and increasing the use of information technology, all while keeping industrial costs for the year firmly under

control.  This resulted in improved service to customers, also in terms of after-sales support, and delivery lead-time.

During the first half of the year, at the time of the expiration of the Armani license the Group’s manufacturing

division needed to contain production capacity, without reducing efficiency and productivity standards, while reducing

fixed costs. Luxottica Group’s extremely flexible manufacturing structure enabled it to keep production capacity nearly

unchanged at the Italian plants, while reducing it in China.

In Italy, the acquisition of the Versace brand brought a new plant in Gazzada near Varese to the Luxottica family.

Initially, the production and quality standards of IC Optics, which formerly produced and assembled semi-finished

products, metal and plastic frames, were not in line with the Group’s standards. Following the acquisition, the plant

started its integration into Luxottica Group’s existing Italian manufacturing structure, which included reorganization of

its production activity, which is now limited to the finishing and assembling of metal frames, in line with the practice of

tailoring the production of each plant to a specific production technology. Other manufacturing activities were moved

to others plants. By the end of 2003, the IC Optics Gazzada plant had already achieved the same efficiency standards

of the other Luxottica Group’s plants.  In 2004, the plant will be moved into a new, smaller building, currently under

construction, and better equipped to accommodate the new production. 

In 2003, the Lauriano plant saw an increase in its production capacity of plastic lenses, mainly of APX lenses,

which is a new, improved material created to avoid certain problems of polycarbonate lenses. After a few months of

testing aimed at reducing waste, in the second half of the year the plant started production on a large scale and, in a

few months, replaced polycarbonate lenses with APX almost completely.

Currently, Luxottica Group’s own production capacity of sunglass lenses nearly covers the  Group’s total need for

crystal and plastic lenses, with the only exception of polarized lenses and some specific colors. With respect to this, to

increase overall production capacity and reduce waste, a new, more efficient machine for plastic lenses was delivered

in December. 
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RETAIL

WORLDWIDE PRESENCE

With an eye on expanding its worldwide distribution network, in 2003 Luxottica Group grew its global retail

business by acquiring OPSM Group (“OPSM”), Australia’s leading optical retailer. Following this acquisition, as of

December 31, 2003, Luxottica Group’s retail division operated 3,382 stores in the U.S., Canada, Australia, New

Zealand, Southeast Asia and Europe across three brands: LensCrafters in North America; Sunglass Hut International

in North America, Australia and select European markets; and, OPSM in Australia, New Zealand and Southeast Asia. 

During 2003, the Group’s retail division, Luxottica Retail, continued to face challenging economic conditions

including sluggish consumer demand and unfavorable Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rates. Retail sales for the year were

€ 2,002.3 million, with operating income of € 269.8 million, fully reflecting the translation impact of the nearly 17

percent devaluation of the U.S. currency against the Euro, which is Luxottica Group’s reporting currency. For the year,

Luxottica Retail posted a 13.5 percent operating margin, which although lower than the previous year, was still

remarkable in a difficult economic environment. This was achieved mainly by generating additional operating

efficiencies and exercising greater control over costs throughout the Group’s entire retail structure. Results of the

Group’s retail division included the OPSM acquisition, which was consolidated as of August 1, 2003, and one

additional week (1).

OPSM GROUP

OPSM Group, Australia’s leading optical retailer with 464 stores, operates mainly under the brands OPSM,

Laubman & Pank and Budget Eyewear, each targeting a defined market segment. OPSM is also the market leader in

New Zealand with 35 stores, and has a presence in Asia, where it currently operates 76 stores in Hong Kong, 12 in

Singapore and 13 in Malaysia. In all, as of December 31, 2003, OPSM operated 600 stores. OPSM Group is listed on

the Australian Stock Exchange, where it trades under the symbol OPS.

In 2003, OPSM sales continued to show strong same store sales growth. Rollout of a new store concept for

OPSM commenced in early 2003 and will be accelerated in 2004. Currently, 19 stores have undergone refurbishment

and plans are in place to increase the schedule to 40 stores a year. Key features of the new store concept included

(1) The retail division uses a retail calendar year, ending on the Saturday closest to December 31.  This calendar results in 52 7-day weeks, or 364 days

per year.  Every 5 to 6 years, depending upon Leap Year, there are 53 7-day weeks, or 371 days. As a result, the retail calendar in 2003 included a 53rd

week.   
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(2) EyeMed Vision Care is Luxottica Group’s managed vision care division in North America

20

LENSCRAFTERS HIGHLIGHTS

Since opening its first store in Florence, Kentucky, in 1983, LensCrafters has grown to become the leading optical

retail chain in North America in the medium to premium price segments. From its earliest days, exceptional customer

service set LensCrafters apart from the competition. Today, customers experience a wide selection of fashionable

frames, the latest lens technology and quick, convenient service.

Stores - As of December 31, 2003, LensCrafters operated 877 stores in the U.S. and Canada. During the year,

LensCrafters opened 22 new stores, entering new markets such as Albany, Georgia; Sioux Falls, South Dakota; and,

Idaho Falls, Idaho, while closing 27 stores and relocating seven more. Similarly, during the year LensCrafters

continued to update its stores by remodeling 31, up from 26 in 2002, and plans to update approximately 30 more in

2004. 

Customer Service - 2003 brought significant advancements in customer experience. After market research,

LensCrafters moved to clarify its target market. This research launched a new company-wide program, Smart Service.

Smart Service identified four key areas to focus customer service on: Guidance, Honesty, Knowledge and Respect. 

Customers also benefited from the latest lab technology. By the end of the year, the company neared completion

of the Pattern-less Edgers rollout to all stores. The Pattern-less Edger is a machine that traces the exact pattern of the

customer’s frame and shapes the lenses to fit the frame more accurately. Also, a four-year program to update the

point of sale system, EyeNet, was completed in 2003. EyeNet allows quick and easy access to a customer’s records

regardless of which store they choose to shop. Since EyeNet was launched, it has delivered business benefits in the

areas of associate productivity, chain-wide customer data access, improved EyeMed Vision Care(2), processing,

improved system flexibility and enhanced reporting techniques.

Since 1988 LensCrafters has been tracking customer satisfaction scores. In 2003, for the first time a LensCrafters

store achieved a perfect 100 percent Customer Satisfaction (CSAT) score. Company-wide, CSAT scores for 2003

were 87 percent, reaching an all-time high. 

Product - In addition to offering a wide-range of non-Luxottica Group frames, LensCrafters continued to realize

the benefits of offering a diverse selection of high quality Luxottica Group frames. The most popular selling brands

continued to be Luxottica Group’s Brooks Brothers and Anne Klein collections, plus new brands such as Prada and

Versace, for which Luxottica Group signed important license agreements in 2003. 

moving the service area toward the front of the store, clear and simple signage and backlit displays to improve

product presentation. The contemporary, stylish format expresses OPSM as a modern, innovative retailer. 

To improve efficiencies, in 2003 a new point of sale system called “Focus” was implemented in stores in Australia

and New Zealand, placing all stores on a common technology platform. Additionally, new technologies were

introduced to streamline processes, maximize efficiencies and improve customer communication, including the

opening of OPSM’s new centralized lens and frame processing facility in Sydney.

LUXOTTICA RETAIL NORTH AMERICA

During 2003, in North America Luxottica Retail continued to build upon the strength of the LensCrafters, Sunglass

Hut International, Watch Station and Watch World brands, and capitalize on synergies to create a customer

experience second to none. 

The company began the year by establishing one common Mission, Vision and Values. Every associate of

LensCrafters and Sunglass Hut International became unified under one set of beliefs and values while preserving each

brand’s unique, individual identity. Through the combination of internal communications, associate interaction, training

and recognition programs, the mission, vision and values were continually used to focus and energize the

organization. 

We are a diverse, growing family

of associates, customers and others

working together

to make a difference in people's lives

Mission: Our Mission is to Serve and Inspire with Excellence

Vision: Our Vision is to be the Retailer of the Century

• the Best Place to Work, Shop and Invest

• the Best at Helping the World See

Values: Uncompromising Integrity, Respect, Teamwork, Trust, Quality, Fun, Innovation

As part of the ongoing quest for efficiencies and cost savings, in 2003 LensCrafters’ distribution center, based in

Cincinnati, Ohio, merged with Sunglass Hut International’s North American distribution center based in Atlanta,

Georgia. The Atlanta facility, which now serves both LensCrafters and Sunglass Hut International’s North American

stores, utilizes a more advanced automation system that allows for streamlined, more efficient distribution of product.
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Watch Station stores. Outside North America, Sunglass Hut International operated 99 stores in Europe and 173 in

Australia, New Zealand and Southeast Asia. 

Customer Service - In 2003, Sunglass Hut International launched the Mystery Shopper program in its North

American stores. This was the first time Sunglass Hut International’s customer service was tabulated by a formal

tracking system. The program scores stores based on customers’ shopping experience in eight categories. At the end

of 2003, 231 stores earned a perfect 100 percent score.

Customers also benefited from the new Breakage Protection Guarantee (BPG program) launched in the first half of

2003. Sunglass Hut International’s BPG is unique among sunglass retailers because it is a no-cost, no-risk benefit to

the customer. The Guarantee allows customers who have damaged or broken their sunglasses within six months of

purchase to return them and purchase an identical pair at 50 percent of the original retail price. The strategy behind

the Guarantee is to offer a unique no-cost, no-risk competitive advantage exclusive to Sunglass Hut International’s

customers. 

Product - Along with experiencing strong sales in non-Luxottica Group products, Sunglass Hut International

continued to leverage the strength of the Group’s portfolio of house and designer brands such as Arnette, Prada, Ray-

Ban, Revo, and Versace. For the first time, products from Luxottica Group’s portfolio accounted for more than half of

Sunglass Hut International’s sun sales in U.S. Dollars in North America. 

Sunglass Hut International also benefited from the new collections launched in the first quarter of 2003. Ray-Ban

Junior and Versace/Versus performed in line with company expectations. The company also saw a sharp increase in

Revo sales, up 168 percent in the fourth quarter, primarily due to the introduction of polycarbonate lenses and

stainless steel frames. 

Furthermore, the watch business has become an important part of Luxottica Retail’s sun and watch strategy as

Luxottica Group believes that sunglasses and watches are often used as complimentary fashion accessories. In

addition, due to different selling seasons, the sun and watch businesses peak at different times of the year, allowing

for steady revenue generation. 

Building upon the strength of Luxottica Group’s house brand names, in 2003 the watch business launched two

new exclusive watch lines under the popular Revo and Arnette banners. These new lines, along with Code, have

quickly grown to become a significant part of Luxottica Group’s overall watch business. 

Marketing - In 2003, the Sunglass Hut International team began the process of identifying and developing a new

brand identity. Specifically, Sunglass Hut International began to narrow its target market and build the business based

on the image-driven consumer. As a result, Sunglass Hut International made a strategic decision to create new store

New in LensCrafters stores was the Ray-Ban Ophthalmic collection, which was launched in June 2003. This was

the result of a Group-wide strategy to expand Ray-Ban’s appeal into the fashion category. The addition of Ray-Ban

Ophthalmic helped increase Ray-Ban’s sales by 40 percent year-over-year. Rimless frames, super-lightweight frames

with a minimalist look included in collections such as Ray-Ban and Versace, also proved to be popular among

consumers. At year-end, rimless frames accounted for seven percent of total LensCrafters unit sales, up from less

than one percent for 2002. 

Marketing - At LensCrafters, marketing strategies during the course of 2003 focused on promoting a distinctly

different customer experience. Target market research indicated that customers overwhelmingly wanted a more

meaningful shopping experience. To address these issues, LensCrafters repositioned its brand image to give

customers a reason to shop LensCrafters over the competition. 

In 2003, LensCrafters ran a series of television ads targeting four key focus areas: Respect, Guidance, Knowledge

and Honesty. The ads appeared on network television as well as select cable stations such as E!, Bravo, Lifetime, VH1

and The Travel Channel, providing high viewership among the target audience.  

To support the Group’s strategy that positions eyeglasses as a fashion accessory, LensCrafters benefited from the

reality-TV makeover craze that swept the U.S. in 2003. Partnering with high-profile U.S. networks such as MTV (Music

Television), TLC (The Learning Channel) and TBS (Turner Broadcast Station), LensCrafters product was strategically

placed on makeover programs, reinforcing the concept that eyewear is a fashion accessory. 

The branding strategy also focused on providing customers what they want and how they want it. A cross-

functional team of associates analyzed all aspects of customers’experience from frame and lens selection to the point

of sale. As a result, customers began to recognize a friendlier selling process and upgraded store environments. 

SUNGLASS HUT INTERNATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Beginning with a small kiosk store in Miami, Florida, in 1971, Sunglass Hut International has grown to become the

largest sunglass specialty retailer in the world. Over the years, the chain has expanded into the watch business by

acquiring Watch Station in 1996 and Watch World in 2000. In 2001, Sunglass Hut International joined the Luxottica

Retail family. 

Stores - During 2003, Sunglass Hut International opened 65 new stores, remodeled 97 stores, relocated 28

stores and closed 74 under-performing stores. At year-end, in North America Sunglass Hut International operated

1,446 Sunglass Hut International stores, of which 322 were sun and watch combo stores, and 187 Watch World and
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• Delivered eye exams and new glasses to 8,900 disadvantaged children during a month-long children’s clinic in San

Felipe, Mexico.

• Donated free vision screenings at schools and health fairs and adjusted eyeglasses at nursing homes, shelters and

hospitals for 238,000 people in need throughout North America.

• Provided eye exams and new glasses to 12,000 underprivileged children in 65 cities in the U.S. and Canada on

twin Vision Vans “Seemore” and “Iris.” Children received eye exams from local volunteer optometrists and new

glasses from Luxottica Retail associates who manufacture the eyeglasses on the van.

• Donated an additional 64,000 pairs of new eyeglasses to individuals in need in stores identified throughout the year

by local charitable agencies. This includes 21,000 people helped on a single day, during the annual December

Hometown Day event.

• Sponsored a Gift of Sight float in the Tournament of Roses Parade on New Year’s Day in Pasadena, California,

honoring the three millionth milestone. An estimated televised audience of 50 million people viewed the event.

• Set an ambitious goal to help seven million by 2008.

In 2003, Luxottica Retail associates and volunteers helped 534,000 people through the Gift of Sight program. 

STOCK OPTION PLANS AND BUY BACK PROGRAMS

STOCK OPTION PLANS

At the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held in Milan on March 10, 1998, shareholders approved the adoption

of a stock option plan under which the value of the Luxottica Group’s shares dedicated to the stock option plan can

be increased by a maximum of Italian Lire 1,225,000,000 through the issue of 12,250,000 ordinary shares to officers

and other key employees of the Group and its subsidiaries. The conversion of the Group’s authorized and issued

share capital into Euro approved by shareholders on June 26, 2001, caused a decrease in the number of ordinary

shares available for the above-mentioned stock option plan. As a result of this and the growth experienced by the

Group, with the subsequent increase in the number of employees potentially eligible for the stock option plan, at the

Shareholders’ Meeting held in Milan on September 20, 2001, shareholders approved the adoption of a stock option

plan under which the value of the Luxottica Group’s shares dedicated to the stock option plan can be increased by a

maximum of Euro 660,000 through the issue of new ordinary shares to officers and other key employees of the Group

and its subsidiaries.

designs for high-end locations, including a flagship store in Beverly Hills, California, which features rich woods, unique

lighting fixtures and jewelry-inspired display cases. 

Sunglass Hut International also opened in time for the busy 2003 holiday shopping season a “storefront” in

Amazon.com's Apparel and Accessory store. Amazon.com shoppers are offered the same selection that is available

on sunglasshut.com.  Partnering with Amazon.com allowed Sunglass Hut International to further expand its

distribution points and its reach to a larger online shopping audience. 

EYEMED VISION CARE

Since 1988, EyeMed Vision Care has been providing vision plans that offer high quality, choice and value

combined with service excellence. Today, EyeMed Vision Care is a well known managed vision care company

throughout the U.S. with over 40 million members and a provider panel offering access to over 11,000 provider

locations, including ophthalmologists, optometrists, opticians and LensCrafters stores.  

In 2003, EyeMed Vision Care goals were achieved in the areas of customer retention, panel growth and new

business. It also added over 8.5 million members and over 2,000 providers. New clients included Blue Cross Blue

Shield of Illinois, Health Net, Humana, Anthem Vision, AutoNation and American Electric Power. 

Strong infrastructure upgrades during the year allowed EyeMed Vision Care to make significant operational

enhancements, improving service to customers, providers and associates. These improvements helped increase claim

automation and online plan administration. The outcome was an increase in member and provider satisfaction, overall

associate productivity and improved customer service standards.  As a result, EyeMed Vision Care achieved a high

customer satisfaction rate of 87 percent and a provider satisfaction rate of 92 percent.

GIVE THE GIFT OF SIGHT CHARITABLE PROGRAM

Give the Gift of Sight, Luxottica Retail’s charitable vision care program, believes clear vision is a basic human right,

not a luxury. Through Gift of Sight programs, associates and doctors from LensCrafters, Sunglass Hut International,

Watch Station, Watch World and EyeMed Vision Care hand-deliver free eye care to disadvantaged people in local

communities in North America and in developing countries. 

In 2003, Luxottica Retail:

• Helped its three-millionth Gift of Sight recipient in Guayaquil, Ecuador, tripling its original goal to help one million

people by 2003.

• Completed eleven international optical missions to developing countries delivering eye exams and recycled glasses

to 220,000 people in: Ecuador, three Mexico missions, Dominican Republic, Peru, Bolivia, Panama, two El

Salvador missions and Costa Rica.
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BUY BACK PROGRAMS

On September 25, 2002, Luxottica U.S. Holdings Corp., a U.S.-based subsidiary of Luxottica Group, determined

to purchase up to 11,500,000 of Luxottica Group’s ADS (one ADS represents one ordinary share), representing 2.5

percent of Luxottica Group’s authorized and issued share capital. Under this now-expired plan, purchases were to be

made on the New York Stock Exchange over a period of 18 months beginning on the day of the approval.

On March 20, 2003, Luxottica U.S. Holdings Corp. determined to purchase up to 10,000,000 of Luxottica Group’s

ADSs, representing 2.2 percent of the authorized and issued share capital. Under this plan, purchases are to be made

on the New York Stock Exchange over a period of 18 months beginning on the day of the approval. As of March 31,

2004, Luxottica U.S. Holdings Corp. has purchased 6,434,786 ADS. 

Millions of U.S. Dollars 1 Q 2 Q 3 Q 4 Q Total Year
1994 191.0 193.0 199.8 184.1 767.8
1995 210.8 229.3 228.5 199.5 868.1
1996 232.9 233.1 240.8 209.0 915.8
1997 (including  53rd Week) 250.5 256.4 270.7 261.3 1,038.8
1997 (excluding 53rd Week) - - - 238.1 1,015.6
1998 280.5 278.3 298.1 270.6 1,127.6
1999 324.3 323.3 329.6 299.0 1,276.2
2000 351.8 342.5 345.6 310.7 1,350.5
2001 362.4 552.7 529.6 474.4 1,919.1
2002 510.4 548.1 551.1 473.9 2,083.5
2003 (including  53rd Week) 503.4 535.2 596.0 629.3 2,264.0
2003 (excluding 53rd Week) - - - 587.6 2,222.3

Includes Sight & Save operations till 1995
Includes results of OPSM from August 1, 2003

1st QUARTER 4th QUARTER3rd QUARTER2nd QUARTER

LUXOTTICA RETAIL’S SALES

QUARTERLY SALES: 1994-2003

Millions of U.S. Dollars
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fiscal years; that is for the single quarters of each year, for six-month periods, for nine-month periods and for the full

fiscal years 1994 through 2003.

AVERAGE EURO/U.S. DOLLAR EXCHANGE RATE OF RELEVANT PERIOD

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

First Quarter 1.0730 0.8766 0.9230 0.9859 1.1207

Second Quarter 1.1372 0.9198 0.8721 0.9326 1.0567

Six-month 1.1049 0.8980 0.8990 0.9591 1.0873

Third Quarter 1.1248 0.9838 0.8895 0.9041 1.0483

Nine-Month 1.1117 0.9277 0.8956 0.9400 1.0737

Fourth Quarter 1.1882 0.9982 0.8959 0.8676 1.0370

TWELVE-MONTH 1.1307 0.9450 0.8957 0.9209 1.0642

1998(1) 1997(1) 1996(1) 1995(1) 1994(1)

First Quarter 1.0802 1.1823 1.2307 1.1793 1.1497

Second Quarter 1.0944 1.1457 1.2443 1.1613 1.2063

Six-month 1.0873 1.1634 1.2376 1.1711 1.1778

Third Quarter 1.1130 1.0991 1.2727 1.2081 1.2325

Nine-Month 1.0961 1.1405 1.2493 1.1816 1.1957

Fourth Quarter 1.1765 1.1255 1.2721 1.2160 1.2198

TWELVE-MONTH 1.1152 1.1367 1.2549 1.1887 1.2013

(1) Through 1998 the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate has been calculated through the Lira/U.S. Dollar exchange rate, converted by the fixed rate
Lire 1,936.27 = € 1.00

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The section Financial Review contains a discussion of Luxottica Group’s operational results and its financial

condition and should be read together with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the consolidated financial

statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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Luxottica Group prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the U.S. (“U.S. GAAP”). For the reader’s convenience a more detailed profit and loss statement for the

three fiscal years ending December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, is included therewith before the consolidated financial

statements.

FIGURES DENOMINATED IN U.S. DOLLARS

Luxottica Group accounts for its foreign currency denominated transactions and foreign operations in accordance

with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation. The financial

statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Euro, which is the functional and reporting currency of Luxottica

Group’s consolidated financial statements. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated at year-end

exchange rates. Results of operations are translated using the average exchange rates prevailing throughout the year.

The resulting cumulative translation adjustments have been recorded as a separate component of accumulated other

comprehensive income. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate in effect at the

transaction date. 

Since the first quarter of 1992, Luxottica Group has converted its consolidated results of operations in public

releases of such results into U.S. Dollars at the average rate of exchange for each period or fiscal year, as the case

may be, based on rates in effect in Milan, Italy on each business day in such period or year, divided by the total

number of such business days. The conversion of the statements of operations from Euro into U.S. Dollars at the

average exchange rate for each period, rather than the period-end exchange rate (which Luxottica Group uses to

convert the assets and liabilities statement), is consistent with the policy, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, of converting

the results of non-Euro subsidiaries from the local currencies into Euro at the respective average exchange rates

during the applicable periods when calculating the consolidated financial statements in Euro. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, amounts in Euro set forth in Luxottica Group’s audited consolidated

financial statements, its annual report on Form 20-F and its quarterly reports on Form 6-K will, to the extent required

by U.S. law and the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), be translated for

convenience into U.S. Dollars applying the noon buying rate of the Euro, as certified for custom purposes by the

Federal Reserve Bank of New York (the so-called “noon buying rate”) as at the end of each period. 

It must be noted that, in Luxottica Group’s view, the presentation of its consolidated financial statements

denominated in Euro is a more accurate measure of its results, due to the distorting effects caused by translations of

results in other currencies. Such translations should not be construed as representations that the Euro amounts could

be converted into U.S. Dollars at that or any other rate. Set forth below, for the convenience of the readers of this

report, is a table indicating the average rate of exchange Euro/U.S. Dollar used for each significant period and for ten

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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On June 26, 1999, Luxottica Group acquired the Ray-Ban business for a purchase price of approximately 

US$ 655 million (€ 635 million based on the exchange rate in effect at such time), subject to post-closing

adjustments. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method. As such, the results of the Ray-Ban

business have been accounted for in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.

Since the acquisition, Luxottica Group has closed Ray-Ban’s frame manufacturing facilities outside Italy and integrated

these operations into its existing manufacturing structure. This integration was substantially completed by the second

quarter of 2000. In January 2002, Luxottica Group settled a purchase price dispute with Bausch & Lomb

Incorporated, along with certain other litigation between the two companies. The settlement resulted in a reduction in

the purchase price of approximately US$ 42 million and, accordingly, goodwill and a liability to Bausch & Lomb

previously recorded were reduced at December 31, 2001. A receivable was recorded at December 31, 2001, for the

final settlement amount. Luxottica Group received a payment of US$ 23 million in January 2002 as the final settlement

payment.

On March 31, 2001, through the completion of a tender offer and subsequent merger, Luxottica Group acquired

all of the outstanding common stock of Sunglass Hut International for a purchase price of approximately € 558 million

(including approximately € 33.9 million of acquisition-related expenses). The acquisition was accounted for under the

purchase method and the results of Sunglass Hut International have been included in Luxottica Group’s consolidated

financial statements since the date of acquisition

In September 2003, through the completion of a tender offer and subsequent merger, Luxottica South Pacific Pty

Limited, an Australian subsidiary of Luxottica Group, acquired 82.57 percent of OPSM Group’s (“OPSM”) ordinary

shares, and more than 90 percent of OPSM’s options and performance rights, which entitled Luxottica Group to

require the cancellation of all the options and performance rights still outstanding. The aggregate purchase price for

the OPSM shares, performance rights and options was A$ 442.7 million (€ 253.7 million based on the exchange rate

in effect at such time). The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method and the financial condition and

results of operations of OPSM have been included in Luxottica Group’s consolidated financial statements since

August 1, 2003.

On January 26, 2004, Luxottica Group and Cole National Corporation jointly announced that they have entered

into a definitive merger agreement as of January 23, 2004, with the unanimous approval of the Boards of Directors of

both companies. Under the agreement, Luxottica Group will acquire all of the outstanding shares of Cole National for

a cash purchase price of US$ 22.50 per share, together with the purchase of all outstanding options and similar

equity rights at the same price per share, less their respective exercise prices, for a total purchase price of

approximately  US$ 401 million. The merger is subject to the approval of Cole National's stockholders and the

satisfaction of other customary conditions, including compliance with applicable antitrust clearance requirements. The

transaction is expected to close in the second half of 2004. 

For additional information regarding this transaction, please see the section “Subsequent Events” in the notes to

the consolidated financial statements attached to this Annual Report.

REVIEW OF RESULTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2003, COMPARATED WITH RESULTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2002

Consistent financial measures (Non-GAAP) - Luxottica Group uses certain measures of financial performance

that exclude the impact of fluctuations in currency exchange rates in the translation of operating results into Euro,

exclude the results of operations for the 53rd week in the U.S. retail calendar (1) for the fiscal year, when applicable, and

include the results of operations of OPSM for the five-month period ended December 31, 2002.

Constant exchange rates results - Luxottica Group believes that these adjusted financial measures provide

useful information to both management and investors by allowing a comparison of operating performance on a

consistent basis. In addition, since Luxottica Group has historically reported such adjusted financial measures to the

investment community, Luxottica Group believes that their inclusion provides consistency in its financial reporting.

Further, these adjusted financial measures are one of the primary indicators management uses for planning and

forecasting for future periods. Operating measures that assume constant exchange rates between fiscal years 2003

and 2002 are calculated using for each currency the average exchange rate for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Operating measures that exclude the impact of fluctuation in currency exchange rates are not measures of

performance under U.S. GAAP. These non-GAAP measures are not meant to be considered in isolation or as a

substitute for results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In addition, Luxottica Group’s method of calculating

operating performance excluding the impact of changes in exchange rates may differ from methods used by other

companies. See the table below for a reconciliation of the operating measures excluding the impact of fluctuations in

currency exchange rates to their most directly comparable U.S. GAAP financial measures. The adjusted financial

measures should be used as a supplement to results reported under U.S. GAAP to assist the reader in better

understanding the operational performance of Luxottica Group.

(Millions of Euro) FY 2002 FY 2003 Adjustment FY 2003
U.S. GAAP U.S. GAAP for constant Adjusted

Results Results exchange rates results

Consolidated net sales 3,178.6 2,824.6 400.2 3,224.8
Manufacturing/Wholesale net sales 1,128.7 995.1 77.9 1,073.0
Less: intercompany sales (154.9) (172.7) (29.6) (202.3)
Wholesale sales to third parties 973.8 822.4 48.3 870.7
Retail net sales 2,204.8 2,002.3 351.8 2,354.1

(1) Luxottica Group’s fiscal year for its retail operations ends on the Saturday closest to December 31 and, as a result, a 53rd week may be added every
five to six years. Fiscal 2003 was such a year.
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year was equal to US$ 41.7 million. The following table summarizes the combined effect on consolidated net sales of

exchange rates, the consolidation of OPSM’s results of operations and the 53rd week, as discussed above, to allow a

comparison of operating performance on a consistent basis: 

(Millions of Euro) Consolidated Net Sales

FY 2002 FY 2003 % change

U.S. GAAP results 3,178.6 2,824.6 (11.1)
Exchange rate effect 400.2
Constant exchange rate 3,178.6 3,224.8 1.5
OPSM results in 2002 108.3
with OPSM in both years 3,286.9 3,224.8 (1.9)
w/o 53rd week in 2003(1) (44.1)
Consistent basis 3,286.9 3,180.7 (3.2)

(1) US$ 41.7 million converted in Euro at FY 2002 average exchange rate of € 1.00 = US$ 0.9450 to maintain constant exchange rates comparison 

The 3.2 percent year-over-year decrease in consolidated net sales for 2003 on a consistent basis was mainly

attributable to the termination in May of the Giorgio Armani and Emporio Armani license agreement.

In 2003, net sales for Luxottica Group’s retail division accounted for approximately 70.9 percent of consolidated

net sales, compared with approximately 69.4 percent for 2002. Sales results for the Company’s retail division included

twelve months of sales at LensCrafters and Sunglass Hut International as well as sales at OPSM for the five-month

period August 1 through December 31, 2003. Net retail sales for 2003 declined year-over-year by 9.2 percent to €

2,002.3 million, from € 2,204.8 million for 2002. This decrease was primarily due to the weakening of the U.S. Dollar

against the Euro. At constant exchange rates, net retail sales for 2003 would have increased year-over-year by 6.8

percent. The following table summarizes the combined effect on the sales results of the Company’s retail division of

exchange rates, the consolidation of OPSM’s results of operations and the 53rd week, as discussed above, to allow a

comparison of operating performance on a consistent basis:

(Millions of Euro) Retail Segment Net Sales
FY 2002 FY 2003 % change

U.S. GAAP results 2,204.8 2,002.3 (9.2)
Exchange rate effect 351.8
Constant exchange rate 2,204.8 2,354.1 6.8
OPSM results in 2002(2) 109.8
with OPSM in both years 2,314.5 2,354.1 1.7
w/o 53rd week in 2003(1) (44.1)
Consistent basis 2,314.5 2,310.0 (0.2)

(1) US$ 41.7 million converted in Euro at FY 2002 average exchange rate of € 1.00 = US$ 0.9450 to maintain constant exchange rates comparison 
(2) This effect differs from the one relevant to consolidated net sales (€ 108.3 million) because it is gross of inter-segment elimination
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Consolidation of OPSM - The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003, include the results of

operations of OPSM as of August 1, 2003. Because of this significant change, Luxottica Group has included the

following table of consolidated adjusted sales and operating income for the year ended December 31, 2002. Luxottica

Group believes that the adjusted amounts may be of assistance in comparing Luxottica Group’s operating

performance between fiscal year 2002 and 2003.  However, adjusted financial information should not be viewed as a

substitute for measures of performance calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The

consolidated adjusted amounts reflect the following adjustments:

1. the consolidated results of OPSM for the five-month period ended December 31, 2002, prior to the acquisition,

are included in the adjusted amounts; and,

2. the elimination of wholesale sales to OPSM from Luxottica Group entities for the five-month period ended

December 31, 2002.

This information is being provided for comparison purposes only and does not purport to be indicative of the

actual results that would have been achieved had the OPSM acquisition been completed as of August 1, 2002.

The following table reflects Luxottica Group’s consolidated net sales and income from operations for the year

ended December 31, 2002, as reported and as adjusted:

(Millions of Euro) FY 2002 FY 2003
U.S. GAAP Adjustment Adjusted 

Results for OPSM results

Consolidated net sales 3,178.6 108.3 3,286.9

Consolidated income from operations 601.5 6.1 607.6

Retail calendar - Luxottica Group’s fiscal year for its retail operations ends on the Saturday closest to December

31, and, as a result, a 53rd week may be added every five to six years. Fiscal 2003 was such a year and, as a result,

the 53rd week has increased consolidated net sales of US$ 41.7 million and consolidated income from operations of

US$ 10.9 million.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales - Consolidated net sales for fiscal year 2003 declined 11.1 percent to € 2,824.6 million, from 

€ 3,178.6 million for 2002. This decrease was primarily due to the year-over-year weakening of the U.S. Dollar against

the Euro. At constant exchange rates, consolidated net sales for 2003 would have increased year-over-year by 1.5

percent. The year-over-year comparison was also affected by the consolidation of results of operations of OPSM as of

August 1, 2003, and also by the North American retail calendar, which in 2003 included a 53rd week (in 2002 the

North American retail calendar consisted of 52 weeks). The effect of the 53rd week on consolidated net sales for the



35

December 31, 2002, and excluding the effect of the 53rd week from results for 2003, the year-over-year decline in

consolidated income from operations for 2003, as adjusted, would have been 30.5 percent (see following table).

(Millions of Euro) Consolidated Income from Operations

FY 2002 FY 2003 % change

U.S. GAAP results 601.5 431.8 (28.2)
% of net sales 18.9% 15.3%

OPSM results in 2002 6.1

with OPSM in both years 607.6 431.8 (28.9)
% of net sales 18.5% 15.3%

w/o 53rd week in 2003(1) (1) (9.6)

Consistent basis (1) 607.6 422.2 (30.5)
% of net sales 18.5% 15.1%

(1) US$ 10.9 million converted in Euro at FY 2003 average exchange rate of € 1.00 = US$ 1.1307. Differently from previous reconciliations on net sales,
Luxottica Group is not calculating for income from operations the exchange rate effect. 

Operating margin for the Company’s manufacturing and wholesale distribution division for the year declined to

19.2 percent, from 25.5 percent for 2002. Operating margin for the Company’s retail division for the year declined to

13.5 percent, from 14.5 percent for 2002. On a consolidated adjusted basis, including OPSM’s results for the five-

month period ended December 31, 2002, and excluding the effect of the 53rd week from 2003 results, operating

margin for the Company’s retail division for the year would have declined year-over-year to 13.2 percent, as adjusted,

from 14.2 percent for 2002, as adjusted (see following table).
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Comparable store sales for 2003 in constant U.S. Dollars, excluding OPSM and the 53rd week, declined year-

over-year by 1.1 percent.

In 2003, net sales to third parties for the Company’s manufacturing and wholesale distribution division declined

year-over-year by 15.6 percent to € 822.4 million, from € 973.8 million for 2002. Assuming constant exchange rates,

manufacturing and wholesale distribution sales to third parties for 2003 would have declined year-over-year by 

10.6 percent. This decline was primarily attributable to the year-over-year nearly 80 percent decline in sales of Armani-

licensed eyewear for the year, following the above-mentioned termination of the Armani licenses agreement. 

Cost of Sales - Consolidated cost of sales for 2003 declined 5.0 percent to € 878.3 million, from € 924.4 million

for 2002, while increasing as a percentage of consolidated net sales to 31.1 percent, from 29.1 percent, respectively.

This increase in consolidated cost of sales, as a percentage of consolidated net sales, was mainly attributable to lower

consolidated net sales for 2003, resulting primarily from the weakening of the U.S. Dollar against the Euro. As a

consequence, consol idated gross prof it for 2003 decl ined 13.7 percent to € 1,946.3 mil l ion, from 

€ 2,254.2 million for 2002. As a percentage of consolidated net sales, gross profit for 2003 declined to 68.9 percent,

from 70.9 percent for 2002. 

Operating Expenses - Consolidated operating expenses for 2003 declined 8.4 percent to € 1,514.5 million,

from € 1,652.7 million for 2002. As a percentage of consolidated net sales, consolidated operating expenses for 2003

increased to 53.6 percent, from 52.0 percent for 2002. 

Consolidated selling, royalty and advertising expenses for 2003 declined 9.2 percent to € 1,233.5 million, from 

€ 1,358.9 million for 2002. As a percentage of consolidated net sales, consolidated selling, royalty and advertising

expenses for 2003 increased to 43.7 percent, from 42.8 percent for 2002. While the decline in this line item in Euro

was largely due to the weakening of the U.S. Dollar against the Euro, the increase, as a percentage of consolidated

net sales, was mainly due to the greater percentage of fixed costs to total costs in the Company’s retail division.

Consolidated general and administrative expenses for the year, including intangible assets amortization, declined

year-over-year by 4.3 percent to € 281.0 million, from € 293.8 million for 2002. As a percentage of consolidated net

sales, consolidated general and administrative expenses for the year increased to 9.9 percent, from 9.2 percent for

2002. While the decline in this line item in Euro was primarily due to the weakening of the U.S. Dollar against the Euro,

the increase, as a percentage of consolidated net sales, was mainly due to the greater percentage of fixed costs to

total costs in the Company’s manufacturing and wholesale distribution division, due to the decline in sales.

Income from Operations - Consolidated income from operations for 2003 declined 28.2 percent to € 431.8

million, from  € 601.5 million for 2002. As a percentage of consolidated net sales, consolidated income from

operations for the year declined to 15.3 percent, from 18.9 percent for 2002. The year-over-year comparison was also

affected by the consolidation of results of operations of OPSM as of August 1, 2003, and by the 53rd week of the

North American retail calendar. The effect of the 53rd week on consolidated income from operations for the year was

equal to US$ 10.9 million. On a consolidated adjusted basis, including OPSM’s results for the five-month period  to
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

As of December 31, 2003, Luxottica Group’s consolidated net financial position (defined as financial debt less

cash balances) was € (1,470.4) million, compared with € (1,254.3) million as of December 31, 2002. This increase in

the Company’s financial position was attributable mainly to the acquisition of OPSM Group Ltd and, to a lesser extent,

the purchase of treasury shares and the acquisition of the Versace and Prada licenses, partially offset by the cash

generated from operations during 2003.

Set forth below is certain information regarding the Company’s net financial position as of December 31, 2002,

and 2003:

(Millions of Euro) December 31, 

2002 2003

Cash 151.4 299.9

Bank overdrafts (371.7) (516.9)

Current portion of long-term debt (178.3) (390.9)

Long-term debt (855.7) (862.5)

Net Financial Position (1,254.3) (1470.4)

Net financial position is not a financial measure in accordance with U.S. GAAP and is presented for informational

purposes only. Luxottica Group believes that this measure is useful to investors as a measure of credit availability,

leverage capacity and liquidity. The term net financial position is not, and should not be considered as, a substitute for

the Company’s total long-term debt, total liabilities or any other financial measures presented in accordance with U.S.

GAAP. Luxottica Group’s net financial position may differ from similarly titled financial measures used by other

companies.

During 2003, Luxottica Group has relied primarily upon internally generated funds, trade credit and bank

borrowings to finance its operations and expansion. 

In June 1999, Luxottica Group received the proceeds of a € 350 million Eurobond offering by a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Luxottica Group. These funds were used to repay indebtedness under a prior credit agreement.

Luxottica Group S.p.A. had guaranteed the subsidiary’s obligations under the Eurobonds, which were repaid in full in

June 2002. To refinance the Eurobonds, in June 2002 Luxottica U.S. Holdings Corp. (“U.S. Holdings”), a U.S.

subsidiary, entered into a US$ 350 million credit facility with a group of four Italian banks led by UniCredito Italiano

S.p.A. The new credit facility was guaranteed by Luxottica Group and matures in June 2005. The term loan portion of

the credit facility provided US$ 200 million of borrowing and required equal quarterly principal installments beginning 
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(Millions of Euro) Retail Division Income from Operations

FY 2002 FY 2003 % change

U.S. GAAP results 319.4 269.9 (15.6)
% of net sales 14.5% 13.5%

OPSM results in  (1) 8.4

with OPSM in both years 327.8 269.9 (17.7)
% of net sales 14.2% 13.5%

w/o 53rd week in  (2) (9.6)

Consistent basis (1) 327.8 260.3 (20.6)
% of net sales 14.2% 13.2%

Consistent basis in U.S. Dollars (3) 309.8 294.2 (5.0)

(1) This effect differs from the one relevant to consolidated income from operations (€ 6.1 million) because is gross of inter-segment elimination
(2) US$ 10.9 million converted in Euro at FY 2003 average exchange rate of € 1.00 = US$ 1.1307. Differently from previous reconciliations on net sales,
Luxottica Group is not calculating for income from operations the exchange rate effect. 
(3) Translated at the FY 2002 average exchange rate of € 1.00 = US$ 0.9450 and at the FY 2003 average exchange rate of € 1.00 = US$ 1.1307,
respectively. This translation is provided for comparison purpose only, as most of the Company’s retail business is in U.S. Dollars, and does not purport
to be indicative of operating results at constant exchange rates, because a small portion of retail business is generated in other currencies.

Interest and Other Expenses - Consolidated net interest and other expenses for the year were € 42.0 million,

compared with € 62.1 million for 2002. This decrease was attributable to lower consolidated interest expenses for

2003 due to lower interest rates. 

Net Income - Consolidated net income before taxes and minority interest for the year declined 27.7 percent to

€ 389.8 million, from € 539.4 million for 2002. As a percentage of consolidated net sales, consolidated net income

before taxes for 2003 declined to 13.8 percent, from 17.0 percent for 2002. Consolidated minority interest was 

€ (5.1) million for 2003, compared with € (4.7) million for 2002. Luxottica Group’s effective tax rate for 2003 was 

30.1 percent, compared with 30.2 percent for 2002. Consolidated net income for 2003 declined 28.1 percent to 

€ 267.3 million, from € 372.1 million for 2002. Consolidated net income for 2003, as a percentage of consolidated

net sales, declined year-over-year to 9.5 percent, from 11.7 percent for 2002.

Earnings per ordinary share or American Depositary Share (EPADS) for 2003 were € 0.60, decreasing from EPADS

of € 0.82 for 2002. Diluted earnings per share or ADS for 2003 were € 0.59, decreasing from € 0.82 for 2002. In

U.S. Dollars, EPADS for 2003 were US$ 0.67, compared with EPADS of US$ 0.78 for 2002. Diluted EPADS for 2003

were US$ 0.67, compared with US$ 0.77 for 2002. In 2003, the average Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate was € 1.00

= US$ 1.1307, compared with € 1.00 = US$ 0.9450 for 2002.
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applicable Notes date of maturity. The Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by Luxottica Group and

Luxottica S.r.l.. The Notes can be prepaid at U.S. Holdings option under certain circumstances. The proceeds from

the Notes were used for the repayment of outstanding debt and for other working capital needs. 

In September 2003, the Company acquired 82.57 percent of the ordinary shares of OPSM and more than 90

percent of performance rights and options of OPSM for an aggregate of A$ 442.7 million (€ 253.7 million). The

purchase price was paid for with the proceeds of a new credit facility with Banca Intesa S.p.A. of € 200 million, in

addition to other short-term lines available. The new credit facility includes a € 150 million term loan, which will require

equal semiannual installments of principal repayments of € 30 million starting September 30, 2006, until the final

maturity date. Interest accrues on the term loan at Euribor (as defined in the agreement) plus 0.55 percent (2.692

percent on December 31, 2003). The revolving loan provides borrowing availability of up to € 50 million; amounts

borrowed under the revolving portion can be borrowed and repaid until final maturity. Interest accrues on the revolving

loan at Euribor (as defined in the agreement) plus 0.55 percent (2.683 percent on December 31, 2003). The final

maturity of the credit facility is September 30, 2008. Luxottica Group can select interest periods of one, two or three

months. The credit facility contains certain financial and operating covenants. Under this credit facility, € 200 million

was outstanding as of December 31, 2003.
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in March 2003. The revolving loan portion of the credit facility allows for maximum borrowings of US$ 150 million.

Interest accrues under the credit facility at Libor (as defined in the agreement) plus 0.5 percent (1.641 percent on

December 31, 2003) and the credit facility allows U.S. Holdings to select interest periods of one, two, or three

months. The credit facility contains certain financial and operating covenants. Under this credit facility, US$ 145 million

was outstanding as of December 31, 2003.

In June 1999, Luxottica Group acquired the Ray-Ban business from Bausch & Lomb Incorporated for a purchase

price of US$ 655 million (€ 635 million), subject to post-closing adjustments. The purchase price was paid with the

proceeds of a US$ 650 million (€ 630 million) credit facility with UniCredito Italiano S.p.A. In June 2000, Luxottica

Group refinanced this short-term credit facility with a new credit facility with several financial institutions under which

the total maximum borrowings was € 500 million. All amounts outstanding under this credit facility were repaid, and

the credit facility was terminated in June 2003.

In December 2000, Luxottica Group entered into a credit facility providing for maximum borrowing of € 256 million

from San Paolo IMI S.p.A. Bank. This credit facility matured in June 2002, and the amount outstanding at that time

was repaid in full.

In March 2001, Luxottica Group entered into a credit facility with Banca Intesa S.p.A. to finance the acquisition of

Sunglass Hut International. The credit facility was unsecured and scheduled to expire in September 2002. In

September 2002, Luxottica Group agreed with Banca Intesa S.p.A. to extend the credit facility until December 2002,

on the same terms and conditions. On December 27, 2002, the amount outstanding at that time of € 500 million was

repaid in full.

In December 2002, Luxottica Group entered into a new unsecured credit facility with Banca Intesa S.p.A. The new

unsecured credit facility provides borrowing availability of up to € 650 million. The facility includes a € 500 million term

loan, which will require a balloon payment of € 200 million in June 2004 and equal quarterly installments of principal

repayments of € 50 million subsequent to that date. Interest accrues on the term loan at Euribor (as defined in the

agreement) plus 0.45 percent (2.592 percent on December 31, 2003). The revolving loan provides borrowing

availability of up to € 150 million; amounts borrowed under the revolving portion can be borrowed and repaid until

final maturity. Interest accrues on the revolving loan at Euribor (as defined in the agreement) plus 0.45 percent (2.594

percent on December 31, 2003). The final maturity of the credit facility is December 31, 2005. Luxottica Group can

select interest periods of one, two, three or six months. The credit facility contains certain financial and operating

covenants. Under this credit facility, € 650 million was outstanding as of December 31, 2003.

On September 3, 2003, U.S. Holdings closed a private placement of US$ 300 million of senior unsecured

guaranteed notes (the “Notes”), issued in three series (Series A, Series B and Series C). Interest on the Series A Notes

accrues at 3.94 percent per annum and interest on Series B and Series C Notes accrues at 4.45 percent per annum.

The Series A and Series B Notes mature on September 3, 2008, and the Series C Notes mature on September 3,

2010. The Series A and Series C Notes require annual prepayments beginning on September 3, 2006, through the
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2001(1) (3) 2002(2) (3) 2003(2) (4)

Net sales 3,101,129 100% 3,178,602 100% 2,824,636 100%

Cost of sales (920,183) 29.7% (924,404) 29.1% (878,340) 31.1%

Purchases and inventory variance (527,346) 17.0% (509,725) 16.0% (506,335) 17.9%

Manufacturing cost (112,573) 3.6% (126,247) 4.0% (108,760) 3.9%

Manufacturing depreciation (26,227) 0.8% (27,224) 0.9% (22,320) 0.8%

Manufacturing personnel cost (254,036) 8.2% (261,208) 8.2% (240,925) 8.5%

Gross profit 2,180,946 70.3% 2,254,198 70.9% 1,946,296 68.9%

Operating expenses (1,671,454) 53.9% (1,652,690) 52.0% (1,514,509) 53.6%

Selling expenses (1,034,218) 33.3% (1,078,964) 33.9% (1,008,688) 35.7%

Royalties (54,556) 1.7% (62,274) 2.0% (41,537) 1.5%

Advertising expenses (213,610) 6.9% (213,910) 6.7% (183,252) 6.5%

General and administrative expenses (274,873) 8.9% (261,477) 8.2% (243,717) 8.6%

Goodwill and trademark amortization (94,198) 3.0% (36,065) 1.1% (37,316) 1.3%

Operating income 509,492 16.4% 601,508 18.9% 431,787 15.3%

Other income (expenses) (68,181) 2.2% (62,067) 2.0% (41,994) 1.5%

Financial income 15,060 0.5% 5,036 0.2% 5,922 0.2%

Financial charges (91,978) 2.9% (65,935) 2.1% (47,117) 1.7%

Other income and charges 8,737 0.3% (1,167) 0.0% (799) 0.0%

Income before taxes 441,311 14.2% 539,441 17.0% 389,793 13.8%

Provision for income taxes (123,450) 4.0% 162,695 5.1% (117,328) 4.2%

Minority interests (1,488) 0.0% (4,699) 0.1% (5,122) 0.2%

Net income 316,373 10.2% 372,077 11.7% 267,343 9.5%

(1) 2001and 2002 results include the activity of Sunglass Hut International from the acquisition date (March 31, 2001)
(2) Results for the year ended December 31, 2002, include the effect of adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142.
(3) Results for fiscal years 2001 and 2002 have been reclassified to allow for a comparison with results for fiscal 2003.
(4) Results for fiscal year 2003 include the activity of OPSM from August 1, 2003

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2002, 2003
In accordance with U.S. GAAP

In accordance with U.S. GAAP

(Thousands of Euro) 2001
(1) (2)

2002
(1) 

2003
(3)

Cash 85,392 199,202 151,418

Restricted cash 244,994 213,507 -

Bank overdraft (152,111) (411,193) (371,729)

Current portion of long-term debt (580,315) (1,339,131) (178,335)

Long-term debt (506,160) (132,247) (855,654)

Net financial position, beginning of the year (908,200) (1,469,862) (1,254,300)

Net income 316,373 372,077 267,343

Depreciation and amortization 211,906 145,980 134,840

Change in net working capital (82,387) (79,533) (94,923)

Provision and other (9,846) 1,649 20,266

Operating cash flow 436,046 440,173 327,526
Capital expenditure (123,475) (173,330) (81,288)

(Investments)/Disposal in intangible assets (23,714) 28,611 (48,177)

Purchase of business net of cash acquired (571,699) (35,039) (342,933)

Other 7,811 4,646 3,839

Free cash flow (275,031) 265,061 (141,033)
Dividends (63,326) (77,211) (95,405)

(Purchases)/Sale of treasury shares - (15,278) (45,440)

Exercise of stock options 11,465 9,567 1,489

Debt acquired through acquisitions (232,846) - -

Effect of exchange adjustments 
to net financial position (1,924) 33,423 64,294

Decrease (increase) in net financial position (561,662) 215,562 (216,095)

Cash 199,202 151,418 299,937

Restricted cash 213,507 - -

Bank overdraft and notes payable (411,193) (371,729) (516,905)

Current portion of long-term debt (1,339,131) (178,335) (390,935)

Long-term debt (132,247) (855,654) (862,492)

Net financial position, end of the year (1,469,862) (1,254,300) (1,470,395)

(1) 2000 and 2001 results have been reclassified to conform to the new 2002 presentation
(2) 2001 and 2002 results include the activity of Sunglass Hut International from the acquisition date (March 31, 2001)
(3) Results for fiscal year 2003 include the activity of OPSM from August 1, 2003

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

(Thousands of Euro)
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At the Annual Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Luxottica Group S.p.A. to be held in Milan, Italy on June 17,

2004, on first call, the Group’s Board of Directors will submit to shareholders for approval the distribution of a cash

dividend for fiscal year 2003 of € 0.21 per ordinary share, or € 0.21 per American Depositary Share (“ADS”) (one ADS

represents one ordinary share). The proposed cash dividend for fiscal year 2003 compares with a cash dividend

payment for fiscal year 2002 of € 0.21 per ordinary share, or € 0.21 per ADS. 

If  approved,  Luxottica Group will pay the dividend to all holders of ordinary shares of record as of June 18, 2004,

and to all holders of the Group’s American Depositary Receipts (“ADR”) of record as of June 23, 2004. Luxottica

Group’s ADR holders of record as of June 23, 2004, thus entitled to such dividend, will have purchased the ADSs on

or before June 18, 2004. Both the ordinary shares listed on the Mercato Telematico Azionario (“MTA”), and the ADSs

listed on the New York Stock Exchange  (“NYSE”), will trade ex-dividend as of June 21, 2004.

The dividend will be paid in Euro on June 24, 2004, by Monte Titoli S.p.A., as authorized intermediary, to all

ordinary shares’ depositary banks. For holders of ADRs, the dividend will be paid to The Bank of New York, depositary

bank of Luxottica Group’s ordinary shares represented by ADSs, through UniCredito Italiano S.p.A., as custodian

under the Depositary Agreement between Luxottica Group and The Bank of New York. The Bank of New York

anticipates that the dividend will be payable to all ADR holders starting on July 1, 2004, upon satisfaction of the

documentation requirements referred to below, at the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate in effect on June 24, 2004.

The following table lists the cash dividend amounts paid by Luxottica Group over the past ten years, since 1994.

All dividend amounts are gross. Additionally, data has been retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock splits that took

place in July 1992, April 1998 and June 2000.

PROPOSED DIVIDEND FOR FISCAL YEAR 2003

GROSS DIVIDEND PER ORDINARY SHARE (OR AMERICAN DEPOSITARY SHARE) (1) (4)

Euro (5) U.S. Dollars (2) 

2003 0.210 (*) N.A. (3)

2002 0.210 0.242

2001 0.170 0.165

2000 0.140 0.120

1999 0.085 0.081

1998 0.074 0.075

1997 0.063 0.068

1996 0.052 0.059

1995 0.045 0.057

1994 0.041 0.049

(*) Proposed by the Board of Directors and to be submitted for approval to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on June 17, 2004
(1) One ADS = one ordinary share
(2) Converted by The Bank of New York at the Lira/U.S. Dollar exchange rate on, respectively, July 8, 1994, July 6, 1995, July 5, 1996, July 7, 1997,
July 6, 1998 and at the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate on July 9, 1999, July 6, 2000, July 12, 2001, July 5, 2002 and July 3, 2003.
(3) If approved, the dividend per share will be converted into U.S. Dollars by The Bank of New York on June 24, 2004 
(4) Figures from 1994  to 1999 have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the five-for-one stock split which was effective April 16, 1998, and the two-for-
one stock split which was effective June 26, 2000
(5) Figures through 1999 have been calculated converting the dividend in Italian Lira by the fixed rate of Lire 1,936.27 = € 1.00. Beginning with the
2000 financial statements the dividend is declared in Euro.

TAX REGIME - HOLDERS OF ORDINARY SHARES

The gross amount of dividend paid to shareholders of Italian listed companies, whose shares are registered in a

centralized deposit system managed by Monte Titoli S.p.A. and who are individuals and Italian resident for tax

purposes, will be subject to a 12.5 percent final substitute tax, provided the shareholding is not related to the conduct

of a business and that these individuals do not hold a “qualified” shareholding. The 12.5 percent final substitute tax will

not be applied only if they timely declare that they satisfy the relevant requirements (e.g. qualified shareholding or

related to the conduct of a business).

This substitute tax will be levied by the Italian authorized intermediary that participates in the Monte Titoli system

and with which the securities are deposited, as well as by non-Italian centralized deposit system participating in the

Monte Titoli system (directly or through a non-Italian deposit system participating in the Monte Titoli system), through a

fiscal representative to be appointed in Italy. 

Individuals who timely declare that they hold a qualified shareholding or related to the conduct of a business, will

receive the gross amounts of dividends paid and include dividends in their worldwide taxable income, subject to the
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ordinary income tax rules. The dividend paid to other subjects different from the above mentioned individuals, who are

resident in Italy for tax purposes, including those companies subject to IRES/IRPEF and foreign companies with

permanent establishment in Italy to which the shares are effectively connected, investment funds, pension funds, real

estate investment funds and subjects excluded from income tax pursuant to Art. 74 of Presidential Decree No.

917/86, are not subject to substitute tax. Dividends paid to entities subject to IRES/IRPEF different from individuals

holding a qualified shareholding or not related to the conduct of a business, will be subject to the ordinary income tax

rules. Entities subject to IRES with taxable period starting before January 1, 2004, and still open at the dividend

payment date will be entitled to a tax credit equal to 51.51 percent of their gross amount, to the extent that such tax

credit is covered by the amount of basket A and B, as provided by art. 105 of Income Tax Law (“TUIR”) before

changes made by Legislative Decree no. 344/2003.

Italian law provides for a 27 percent final substitute tax rate on dividends paid to Italian residents who are exempt

from corporate income tax.

Dividend paid to beneficial owners who are not Italian resident and do not have a permanent establishment in Italy

to which the shares are effectively connected, are subject to 27 percent substitute tax rate. However, reduced rates

(normally 15 percent) of substitute tax on dividends apply to non-residential beneficial owners, who are entitled to and

comply with procedures for claiming benefits under an applicable income tax treaty entered into by Italy. Under the

currently applicable Italy-U.S. Treaty, an Italian substitute tax at a reduced rate of 15 percent will generally apply to

dividends paid by Luxottica Group to a U.S. resident entitled to treaty benefits who complies with the procedures for

claiming such benefits, provided the dividends are not effectively connected with a permanent establishment in Italy

through which the U.S. resident carries on a business or with a fixed base in Italy through which the U.S. resident

performs independent personal services.

The substitute tax regime does not apply if ordinary shares representing a “non-qualified” interest in Luxottica

Group are held by a shareholder in a discretionary investment portfolio managed by an authorized professional

intermediary, and the shareholder elects to be taxed at a flat rate of 12.5 percent on the appreciation of the investment

portfolio accrued at year-end (which appreciation includes any dividends), pursuant to the so-called discretionary

investment portfolio regime - regime del risparmio gestito.

TAX REGIME - HOLDERS OF ADRS

Dividend paid to beneficial owners who are not Italian residents and do not have a permanent establishment in

Italy, are subject to a 27 percent substitute tax rate. Accordingly, the amount of the dividend paid to The Bank of New

York, depositary of Luxottica Group’s ordinary shares represented by ADRs, through UniCredito Italiano S.p.A., as

custodian under the Depositary Agreement between Luxottica Group and The Bank of New York, will be subject to

44
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consequently the additional dividend amount will be payable to the ADR holders.

Please note that for ADR holders to take advantage of the accelerated tax refund (Quick Refund), the

certification by the respective Tax Authority must be dated before June 24, 2004, or the dividend payable date

in Euro, and The Bank of New York should receive the certification on or before July 5, 2004.

Luxottica Group recommends to all ADR holders who are interested in taking advantage of such an opportunity, 

to request more detailed information on the exact procedure to be followed from The Bank of New York 

(ADR Department, telephone +1-212-815-2367; fax +1-212-571-3050, attn. Patrick Mullaly) or directly from 

Luxottica Group’s headquarters in Italy (Investor Relations Department - Dividends, telephone +39-0437-644256; fax

+39-0437-63840).

ADR holders are further advised that, once the amounts withheld are paid to the Italian Tax Authorities, the ADR

holders who are entitled to reduced tax rate may only apply to the Italian Tax Authorities to receive the reimbursement

of the excess tax applied to the dividends received from Luxottica Group. Such procedure customarily takes a number

of years before the reimbursement is actually made. Therefore the above-mentioned procedure for direct application

of the reduced withholding rate was established by Luxottica Group in the best interest of its shareholders.
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such Italian substitute tax. Therefore, the amount of the dividend that the holders of ADRs will initially receive will be

net of such substitute tax.

All holders of ADRs have been given the opportunity to submit to The Bank of New York, in accordance with the

procedure set forth by the same, the documentation attesting their residence for tax purposes in Italy or in countries

which have entered into tax treaties with Italy, pursuant to which reduced/NIL tax rates might become directly

applicable. Concurrently with the delivery of the Proxy Statement, the Depositary has mailed to all ADR holders a

document and necessary forms setting forth the detailed procedure to be used by ADR holders for the purpose of

obtaining the direct application of the reduced/NIL tax rate.

All ADR holders which are Italian resident for tax purposes, should deliver by July 5, 2004, to The Bank of New

York the documentation, dated before June 24, 2004, attesting the tax regime applicable (Form A to G “Dichiarazione

percettore dividendo”).

Also ADR holders, who are not Italian resident for tax purposes, should deliver by July 5, 2004, to The Bank of

New York the documentation, signed before June 24, 2004, attesting their residence for tax purposes in countries

which have entered into tax treaties with Italy, pursuant to which reduced tax rates might become directly applicable

(Form 8802 for U.S. residents, Form A-4 for residents of other countries “Tax relief form for dividends for non-U.S.

resident holders”).

As soon as the documentation is delivered by The Bank of New York to UniCredito Italiano, such bank shall

endeavor to effect repayment of the entire 27 percent withheld or the balance between the 27 percent withheld at the

time of payment and the rate actually applicable to the ADR holder as the case maybe. For example, Italy and United

States (as well as many other countries) are parties to a tax treaty pursuant to which the rate of the tax applicable to

dividends paid by an Italian resident company to a U.S. resident entitled to the treaty may be reduced to 15 percent.

Therefore, U.S. resident ADR holders have the opportunity of being repaid a further 12 percent of the gross dividend,

that is the difference between the 27 percent withheld at the time of payment of the dividend and the 15 percent

substitute tax provided for by the Italy - U.S. tax treaty.

In the past, a number of ADR holders have been unable to provide the required certificates within the

deadline, because the tax authorities can take two months or longer before releasing such documents.

Therefore Luxottica Group recommends that those who expect to be a holder of ADRs of record as of June

23, 2004, and are interested in implementing the procedure to obtain the application of the reduced substitute

tax rate, start such procedure well in advance by completing the appropriate form (Form A to G for Italian

residents, Form 8802 for U.S. residents, Form A-4 for residents of other countries), which needs to be signed,

for non-Italian residents only, by the relevant Tax Authority before June 24, 2004. The procedure established

by The Bank of New York and UniCredito Italiano contemplates that, once the ADR holder has delivered the

proper documentation to The Bank of New York, the latter will make it available to UniCredito Italiano and
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Milan and Agordo, Italy-headquartered Luxottica Group is the world leader in the design, manufacturing and

distribution of prescription frames and sunglasses in the mid- and premium-priced categories. The Group is also the

leading optical retailer in the U.S. and Canada with more than 2,500 stores, and in Australia with over 630 stores

through the acquisition of OPSM Group in 2003. 

Luxottica Group designs and produces approximately 2,450 styles of prescription frames and sunglasses,

available in a wide array of colors and sizes, and marketed under a variety of well-known brand names. Luxottica

Group’s current portfolio consists of a total of 23 brands, of which 8 are house brands and 15 are designer brands.

HOUSE BRANDS: • Arnette • Killer Loop • Luxottica • Persol • Ray-Ban • Revo • Sferoflex • Vogue

DESIGNER BRANDS: • Anne Klein • Brooks Brothers • Bulgari • Byblos • Chanel • Emanuel Ungaro • Genny 

• Jil Sander • Miu Miu • Moschino • Prada • Salvatore Ferragamo

• Sergio Tacchini • Versace • Versus

The Group’s products are primarily manufactured in seven facilities in Northern Italy, where most of the country’s

optical industry is based. Each facility is tailored to a specific production technology, thereby enhancing both the

productivity and quality of products and operations. Luxottica Group produces plastic frames at its facilities in Sedico,

Pederobba and Lauriano, while metal frames are produced in Agordo, Rovereto and Gazzada. Frame parts are

produced in Cencenighe and lenses for sunglasses in Lauriano.  In addition, the Group operates one facility in the

People’s Republic of China for the production of metal frames mainly for private label products sold through its retail

network.

Prescription frames and sunglasses manufactured by Luxottica Group are sold in approximately 120 countries to

over 200,000 customers worldwide through an extensive wholesale and retail network. The wholesale network is

comprised of twenty-eight wholly or partially-owned wholesale subsidiaries, over 1,100 sales representatives and

approximately 100 independent distributors. 

LUXOTTICA GROUP - HISTORY AND OVERVIEW
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wholly-owned subsidiaries: U.S., Canada, Italy, France, Spain, Portugal, Sweden, 

Germany, United Kingdom, Brazil, Switzerland, Mexico, Belgium,

Argentina, South Africa, Finland, Austria, Norway, Japan 

and Australia

75%-owned subsidiaries: Israel and Poland

70%-owned subsidiary: Greece

51%-owned subsidiaries: Netherlands, Turkey and Singapore

49%-owned subsidiary: Arab Emirates

44%-owned subsidiary: India

Luxottica Group’s Retail Division operates 3,382 retail stores in the U.S., Canada, Australia, New Zealand,

Southeast Asia and Europe across three brands: LensCrafters in North America; Sunglass Hut International in North

America, Australia and select European markets; and, OPSM in Australia, New Zealand and Southeast Asia.

LensCrafters stores provide efficient one-hour service to customers. Stores include a laboratory and an affiliated

licensed optometrist on site, allowing most customers to have eye examination, select from a large range of

prescription frames, sunglasses and lenses, and receive the selected frame, with prescription lenses, all in one hour.

Sunglass Hut International, the largest sunglass specialty retailer in the world, is a trend-setting chain that carries

all the leading brands and the latest sunglass collections. 

OPSM Group is the leading optical retailer in Australia, with three brands - OPSM, Laubman & Pank and Budget

Eyewear – each targeting a clearly defined market segment. It is also the market leader in New Zealand, and has a

presence in other markets in Southeast Asia. As of December 31, 2003, OPSM operated 600 stores and employed

nearly 4,000 people.

OPSM stores, through their associated optometrists, provide a high standard of professional eye care and the

wide range of frames, lenses and sunglasses in-store, ensures customers have the best choice in eyewear.

Luxottica Group’s primary wholesale customers include retailers of mid- and premium-priced eyewear, such as

independent opticians, optical and sunglass chains, optical superstores, sunglass specialty stores and duty-free

shops. In certain countries, and especially in North America, wholesale customers also include optometrists and

ophthalmologists, health maintenance organizations (HMOs) and department stores.

Luxottica Group employs approximately 38,000 people worldwide. 
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A BRIEF HISTORY

Founded in 1961, since its early stages Luxottica Group based its success on a strategy of full vertical integration,

whereby it exercises direct control over all significant components of the eyewear production and distribution process,

including design, production and worldwide distribution both to wholesale customers and to a large number of end-

consumers through its retail division.

Since the mid-90’s, the Group has entered a new phase of growth through a series of acquisitions, expanding its

market share both in the retail business and in the sun segment. It has also significantly strengthened its portfolio by

acquiring prestigious sun brands. 

Key events:

• In 1995, Luxottica Group acquires LensCrafters, the largest retail optical chain in North America. This step allows

the Group to establish itself as the leading player in the medium- to premium-price segments in one of the world’s

most important retail markets for eyewear.

• In 1999, Luxottica Group acquires the Eyewear division of Bausch & Lomb, adding to its existing portfolio some of

the world’s most prestigious sun brands: Ray-Ban, Revo, Arnette and Killer Loop. Through this acquisition, the

Group also secured important sunglass crystal lens manufacturing know-how, technology and production capacity.

• In 2001, Luxottica Group acquires Sunglass Hut International, a leading specialty sunglass retailer with 1633 stores

in North America and an important presence in Australia. 

Following the Ray-Ban and Sunglass Hut International acquisitions, Luxottica Group has completed an aggressive

reorganization of the businesses acquired, integrating and improving its operations to take advantage of the synergies

thus created. 

In September 2003, Luxottica Group acquired OPSM Group, the leading eyewear retailer in the prescription

segment in Australia with approximately 460 stores. OPSM also operates stores in New Zealand and has a presence

in Southeast Asia with stores in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia.
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COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

Management of Luxottica Group considers the following factors to be key to its success, past, present and future. 

Vertical integration has allowed Luxottica Group to become the worldwide leader in the optical industry and to

manufacture high quality eyeglasses with the lowest production costs and the highest margins.

• All significant components of the eyewear production and distribution process are managed internally:

• design

• prototype manufacturing

• product development

• production of moulds and individual parts of the frames

• production of crystal and polycarbonate lenses for sunglasses

• Worldwide distribution through an extensive distribution network, both wholesale and retail.

Efficient and flexible manufacturing facilities allow the Group to fulfill the needs of the optical marketplace in a

timely and cost-effective manner, all of which while also being able to react promptly to changing market trends.

• The Italian manufacturing facilities are ISO 9001-certified, highly automated and rank among the most efficient in

the optical industry

• Each facility is tailored to a specific production technology, thereby enhancing both the productivity and quality of

products and operations

• Total control over all key phases of production allows for swift improvements in the manufacturing process and

research of new operating techniques, while stimulating technological development and improving quality

• To ensure product quality, each prescription frame and sunglass undergoes several stages of inspection, resulting

in a return rate for defective merchandise that is below one percent

• An advanced order and inventory control system allows Luxottica Group to closely monitor inventory levels. 

Broad and diversified product lines has over the years allowed the Group to play a significant role in setting

new trends, the most important of which was changing the consumers’ perception of eyeglasses, from merely a vision

aid to a fashion accessory.

• Luxottica Group’s product lines represent one of the largest collections of frames available on the market

• Emphasis on design and continuous development of new styles to meet changing fashion trends and consumer

preferences. 

Strong worldwide factory direct distribution network eliminates costly steps in the distribution chain,

providing customers with the absolute highest quality product at competitive prices.  

• Through a unique and extremely efficient sales network, Luxottica Group distributes its products in approximately

120 countries, and operates 28 wholly- or partially-owned wholesale subsidiaries that are strategically located in

major markets worldwide. In markets where the Group does not have wholesale subsidiaries, independent

distributors sell Luxottica Group products.

• Each wholesale subsidiary operates its own network of sales representatives, most of whom are exclusive

• The Group’s control over the distribution network also allows it to provide superior customer service by efficiently

satisfying customer preferences and requirements both prior to and following a sale.

Excellent customer service that allows the Group to meet the unique tastes and requirements of customers in

different countries.

Luxottica Group offers:

• A broad array of distinct collections for each country

• A computerized ordering system to deliver frames in the shortest possible time, so that customers can more

dynamically control their inventory levels.

Strong presence in the retail business provides a major outlet for prescription frames and sunglasses

manufactured by Luxottica Group as well as an important opportunity to interact directly with the end consumer to

monitor changing fashion trends and consumer preferences.

• Through LensCrafters and Sunglass Hut International, Luxottica Group is the leader in the mid- to premium- priced

categories of the North American optical retail market both in the prescription and sun segments 

• OPSM stores now provide the Group with market leadership in the important Australian market, as well as a retail

presence in other Southeast Asian markets

• Finally, Sunglass Hut International stores in Australia are key in the sun strategy of the Group.

Expertise in identifying, acquire and integrate complementary businesses has allowed the Group to

benefit from the resulting synergies while consolidating its leadership in the optical industry.
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STRATEGY

Based on the above described competitive advantages, management of Luxottica Group has set forth the

following as the main points of the Group’s strategy:

INCREASED MARKET PENETRATION IN THE SUN SEGMENT

Over the coming years, the Group will look to continue to expand its presence in the sun segment because of the

significant growth opportunities that this segment is expected to present. 

The acquisitions of Ray-Ban and Sunglass Hut International have positioned Luxottica Group as the world’s 

leader in the production and marketing of mid- to premium-priced sunglasses. Luxottica Group believes that, over 

the coming years, the sun segment will show growth rates greater than those of the prescription frame market, as a

result of: 

• A rise in the number of consumers who perceive sunglasses as a fashion accessory;

• Greater awareness of the potential dangers of exposure to ultraviolet rays;

• More time dedicated to leisure activities that require the use of sunglasses;

• Increased use of sunglasses from individuals who either wears contact lenses or undergo laser surgery.

OPTIMIZED PORTFOLIO OF BRANDS

Luxottica Group does not look to merely increase the number of brands in its portfolio, but rather focus on those

that have the greatest growth potential and a recognized appeal in key markets worldwide. Similarly, it will also

continuously evaluate opportunities to acquire new brands or licenses to substitute to those that, once expired, it is no

longer interested in renewing. 

Luxottica Group’s strategy is to optimize a portfolio of brands that, with approximately 2,450 models, is already

one of the largest and best balanced in the sector. The Group continuously works on improving its product mix, to

focus on the mid- to premium-priced segments of the market, while limiting potential cannibalization among

competing lines. Within this context, the agreements with Prada and Versace signed in 2003 were important steps in

the optimization of the Group’s brand portfolio. 

FURTHER COMMERCIAL EXPANSION

Luxottica Group’s products are distributed in the major markets worldwide through 28 wholly- or partially-owned

wholesale subsidiaries, and through independent distributors in the markets in which the Group does not have a direct

presence.  

The Group plans to further expand on an ongoing basis its global wholesale distribution network through the

opening of additional subsidiaries. As part of this plan, Luxottica Group is testing smaller scale, more flexible

wholesale subsidiaries in the markets in which the costs associated with opening a full-scale, traditional wholesale

subsidiary would not be justified. These would still allow the Group to directly control distribution in these markets.

Furthermore, the Group intends to strengthen its retail presence in North America and Australia, where it has

acquired important experience while posting strong results, by launching every year a new store opening plan and

carefully considering relevant opportunities. The acquisition in 2003 of OPSM Group, Australia’s leading optical retailer,

was another important step in this direction, immediately establishing Luxottica Group as a leader in important

markets such as Australia and New Zealand.
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MILAN - ITALY

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
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LUXOTTICA S.R.L.

PRODUCTION COMPANIES

LUXOTTICA GROUP IN THE WORLD

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

KILLER LOOP EYEWEAR S.R.L.

LUXOTTICA (DONG GUAN) 
TRISTAR OPTICAL CO. LTD

COLLEZIONE RATHSCHÜLER S.R.L.

OTHER COMPANIES

LUXOTTICA LEASING S.R.L.

LUXOTTICA USA INC.

LUXOTTICA LUXEMBOURG S.A.

LUXOTTICA U.S. HOLDING CORP.

NORTH AMERICAN SUBSIDIARIES

AVANT GARDE OPTICS LLC

LUXOTTICA CANADA INC.

LENSCRAFTERS INC.

LUXOTTICA SUN CORP.

SUNGLASS HUT INT. INC.

WHOLESALE SUBSIDIARIES
REST OF THE WORLD

LUXOTTICA DO BRASIL LTDA

LUXOTTICA MÉXICO S.A. DE C.V.

LUXOTTICA ARGENTINA S.R.L.

LUXOTTICA SOUTH AFRICA LTD

LUXOTTICA AUSTRALIA PTY LTD

MIRARI JAPAN LTD

OPSM GROUP LIMITED

LUXOTTICA OPTICS LTD

LUXOTTICA GOZLUK TICARET

MIRARIAN MKT SINGAPORE

LUXOTTICA GULF LLC

RAYBAN SUN OPTICS INDIA LTD

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

83% 

75% 

51% 

51% 

49% 

44% 

LUX FASHION BRILLEN GMBH

WHOLESALE SUBSIDIARIES
EUROPE

LUXOTTICA FRANCE S.A.R.L.

LUXOTTICA IBERICA S.A.

LUXOTTICA U.K. LTD

LUXOTTICA SWEDEN A.B.

LUXOTTICA PORTUGAL S.A.

LUXOTTICA BELGIUM N.V.

LUXOTTICA (SWITZERLAND) AG

OY LUXOTTICA FINLAND A.B.

LUXOTTICA (AUSTRIA) MBH

LUXOTTICA NORGE A.S.

LUXOTTICA POLAND SP. ZO. O.

LUXOTTICA HELLAS A.E.

LUXOTTICA NEDERLAND B.V.

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

75% 

70% 

51% 



6160

SUBSIDIARIES

LUXOTTICA S.R.L. Valcozzena - 32021 Agordo (Belluno) - Italy

AVANT GARDE OPTICS LLC 44 Harbor Park Drive - Port Washington - New York 11050 - U.S.A.

LUXOTTICA SUN CORP. 7300, N.W. 19, Str - Sute 305 - 33126 Miami - Florida - U.S.A.

LUXOTTICA FASHION BRILLEN GMBH Hans-Pinsel Str. 9A - 85540 Haar - Deutschland

LUXOTTICA PORTUGAL S.A. R. João De Freitas Branco, 32-C - 1500-359 Lisboa - Portugal

MIRARI JAPAN Co., LTD 3-10-9 Aobadai - Meguro-Ku, Tokyo 153-0042 - Japan

LUXOTTICA HELLAS A.E. Anthousas Ave, 3 - 153 51 Pallini - Greece

LUXOTTICA FRANCE S.A.R.L. 80, Route des Lucioles - Valbonne - 06902 Sophia Antipolis Cedex - France

LUXOTTICA IBERICA S.A. C/Silici, 79-81 - 08940 Cornellà de Llobregat - Barcelona - España

LUXOTTICA U.K. LTD Iron Bridge Close - Great Central Way - London NW 10 ONW - United Kingdom

LUXOTTICA CANADA INC. 947, Verbena Road - Mississauga - Toronto - Ontario L5T 1T5 - Canada

LUXOTTICA BELGIUM N.V. Airport Business Center - Luchthavenlei 7/A - 2100 Deurne - Belgium

LUXOTTICA DO BRASIL LTDA Avenida Tamboré, 1180 - CEP 06460-000 Barueri - São Paulo - Brasil

LUXOTTICA MÉXICO S.A. de C.V. Monte Elbruz 132 - Col. Lomas de Chapultepec - 11850 México D.F. - México

LUXOTTICA SWEDEN A.B. Tralasvagen 14 - Vastra Frownda - Göteborg - Sweden

LUXOTTICA (SWITZERLAND) AG Wiesenstrasse, 1 - 4900 Langenthal - Schweiz

LUXOTTICA NEDERLAND B.V. Postbus 506 - Van den Eijndekade, 2 - 2100 Am Heemstede - Nederland

OY LUXOTTICA FINLAND A.B. Sinikalliontie 12 - 02630 Espoo - Suomi

LUXOTTICA VERTRIEBS GMBH Inkustrasse, 1-7/3 - A-3400 Klosterneuburg - Österreich

LUXOTTICA AUSTRALIA PTY LTD Unit 97 - 79-99 St. Hilliers Road - Auburn - NSW 2144 -Sydney - Australia

LUXOTTICA ARGENTINA S.R.L. Avenida Alicia Moreau de Justo, 550 - Of. 20 Y 23 - 1107 Buenos Aires - Argentina

LUXOTTICA SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD 30, Impala Road - Chislehurston, 2196 - Sandton - Johannesburg - South Africa

LUXOTTICA OPTICS LTD 32 Maskit St. - Herzelia-Pituah - P.O.B. 2038 Herzelia 46120 - Israel

LUXOTTICA GOZLUK Tic. A.S. Sehitler Cad. 1519 - Sokak n. 5 - Umurbey Izmir - Turkey

LUXOTTICA NORGE A.S. Storgt, 23 - 3611 Kongsberg - Norway

LUXOTTICA GULF LLC Kendah House - Sheik Zayed Road - P.O. Box 62504 - Dubai - U.A.E.

LUXOTTICA MALAYSIA SDN BHD Jalan PJK 1/37 - Dataran Prima - 47301 Petaling Jaya - Selangor (Malaysia)

MIRARIAN MARKETING PTE LTD 315 Outram Road # 13-04 Tan Boon - Liat BuIlding - Singapore 0316

LUXOTTICA POLAND SP.ZO.O. 30-350 Krakow - Ul. Zachodnia 5/73 - Polska

RAYBAN SUN OPTICS INDIA LTD SP - 810-811 - Bhiwadi 301019 - Rajasthan - India 
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HOUSE BRANDS

The Vogue brand was created in 1973 with the same name as the famous fashion magazine.
Luxottica Group acquired it in 1990. Vogue styles stand out for their innovative design as well
as the wide assortment of colors and frames, and they are designed for a mostly female
target group that cares about details and is aware of the latest fashion trends. 
www.vogue-eyewear.com

The Ray-Ban brand debuted in 1937 with the Aviator style created for U.S.A.F. pilots and
was added to Luxottica Group's brand portfolio in 1999. Worn by countless movie and
show business celebrities since day one, Ray-Ban’s styles are sunglasses par excellence
and by far the best-selling sunglasses in the world. Characterized by high-quality lenses
and materials as well as clean-cut, never excessive design and style, Ray-Ban
sunglasses are suited to the different facial features of people all over the world. 
www.ray-ban.com

The Revo brand was created in 1985 and was acquired by Luxottica Group in 1999. The distinctive
feature of Revo eyewear is an innovative lens deriving from a technology developed by NASA for satellite
portholes: the lens is composed of a multi-layer coating capable of providing the highest protection from
UV and IR radiation. Revo eyewear is ideal for those who need perfect vision during their sports and
outdoor activities or who require specific eye protection. 
www.revo.com

The Sferoflex brand was acquired by Luxottica Group in 1981. Sferoflex is named after
the distinctive flex temple that enables the eyewear frame to accommodate every face
size, thus providing an extremely comfortable fit. The Sferoflex line includes only
prescription frames and is targeted at people who want a classic and comfortable, yet
at the same time high-quality product. 

Created in 1926, the Persol brand was acquired by Luxottica Group in 1995. High quality and the
irresistible charm of its timeless design make this brand a true mark of distinction, a heritage of history and
tradition, and that's why many international movie stars have chosen Persol. Persol eyewear stands out for
its high-quality lenses and comfortable fit. In addition, the distinctive silver arrow featured on the hinge has
always made Persol frames unique and easily recognizable. 
www.persol.com

The Arnette brand was first launched in California in 1992 and was acquired by Luxottica
Group in 1999. Within a short time, it became the eyewear of a generation that enjoys
board sports (surf, kite surf, snowboard, etc.) and a symbol of the active lifestyle it epito-
mizes. Arnette eyewear has a highly appealing design, provides outstanding comfort and
functionality, and is ideal for those who enjoy dynamic and extreme sports. 
www.arnette.com

Created in 1967, this was the first line to be manufactured by Luxottica Group and the
one that best shows and communicates the Group's expertise and tradition. Luxottica
eyewear is ideal for those who want a product characterized by classic style, clean-cut
design and a high-quality frame. Luxottica Collection, a line of frames designed for
those who prefer extra-high-quality and ultra-lightweight eyewear with minimalist
design, is today part of the brand's product range. 
www.luxottica.com

Created in 1989, the Killer Loop brand was added to Luxottica Group's
portfolio in 1999. Over the years, the Killer Loop brand has evolved from
typically sports eyewear into eyewear with a more "urban style" that can be
worn at any time of day. Killer Loop is the young, urban, hi-tech eyewear
designed for those who lead a contemporary and dynamic lifestyle. 
www.killerloopeyewear.com
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DESIGNER BRANDS

The license agreement with Maison Chanel was signed in 1999 and Luxottica
Group was the first company ever licensed to manufacture eyewear for this
renowned luxury brand. The Chanel eyewear collections reflect the essential values
of the brand, characterized by its unique style and creative design in terms of
shapes, materials and colors. Chanel eyewear is designed for sophisticated, trendy,
sleek and refined people who give great attention even to the smallest detail.  

Luxottica Group has been manufacturing the Anne Klein brand under license
since 1996. The Anne Klein eyewear collections are designed for an all-female
market. The woman who chooses to wear Anne Klein eyewear identifies herself
with the typical modern woman: a successful and refined career woman who is
image-conscious and quality-conscious and loves a sleek yet at the same time
practical and comfortable product. 

The license agreement between Brooks Brothers and Luxottica Group dates back to
1993. Characterized by lightweight materials and a slender line, the Brooks Brothers
collections reflect the unique features of the style of this American brand. A product
with classic style and affordable to everyone that delivers functionality, lightness, and
high quality. 

The license agreement for the manufacturing and distribution of Bulgari eyewear was
signed by Luxottica Group in 1997. Bulgari eyewear is designed for sleek, select people
who want to distinguish themselves by wearing a unique accessory. The Bulgari line
includes eyeglasses whose outstanding features are: high-quality materials, painstaking
attention to detail, and contemporary, unmistakable design, all of which makes them
precious and exclusive objects that are almost veritable jewels. 

Luxottica Group has been manufacturing Byblos-branded eyewear since
1989. The styles in the Byblos collection reflect a fresh, contemporary and
nonconformist cutting-edge style with frames and lenses in bright,
variegated colors. Those who choose Byblos eyeglasses prefer a product
that is lightweight and not too sophisticated or intellectual, has a
comfortable fit and a sporty yet at the same time sleek style. 

The license agreement between Emanuel Ungaro and Luxottica Group dates
back to 1998. Ungaro eyewear stands out for its sensual, refined and at the
same time unique style. The collections include both classic styles available in
light colors as well as cutting-edge styles with original shapes available in
innovative colors. 

Thanks to the license agreement signed with Luxottica Group, the first
Genny-branded women's eyewear line was manufactured and distributed in
1989. Targeted at the premium-priced market segment, Genny eyewear is
designed for a classic and sophisticated woman who is extremely feminine,
self-assured, aware of fashion trends and who wants a distinctive yet not
excessive style. 

Since its founding in 1978 in Hamburg, Germany, Jil Sander has been continuously
accompanied by growing international success. The fundamentals of the brand:
stylistic clarity, modern and elegant design, the highest quality materials and
craftsmanship, as well as the introduction of innovative fabrics. The brand is famous for
its precision both in conception and deployment. This also applies to accessories.
Eyewear is just as important as a model dress and equally harmonic and sophisticated.
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The license agreement for the manufacturing and distribution of Versus
eyewear was signed by Luxottica Group in early 2003, together with the
agreement relating to the Versace brand. Versus is the "young" brand in the
Versace "family". In fact, Versus eyewear is designed for young people who
are price-conscious but at the same time follow the evolution of fashion
trends and, therefore, don't want to give up on having an innovative and
original pair of eyeglasses. 

The prime characteristics of this leading Made in Italy company, founded by Mario Prada in 1913 and
subsequently developed at an international level by Miuccia Prada and Patrizio Bertelli, are based on absolute
quality as a starting point, constant innovation respecting tradition, research and selection of materials
employed, together with impeccable manufacturing processes. Prada has always been distinctive not only for
its high quality, but also for its forward-thinking approach and style, enabling the brand to anticipate and often
orientate trends across all sectors. Sophisticated, elegant and refined, Prada products are identified by their
very strong character and unique style. These characteristics also apply to the range of glasses proposed in the
“vista” (spectacles) and “sole” (sun) collections, and also to a series of models created for leisure time, identified
by the unmistakable red stripe.

The first Salvatore Ferragamo eyewear line debuted in late 1998, the year when the license
agreement was signed with Luxottica Group. The Salvatore Ferragamo collections are
characterized by painstaking attention to detail and trimming as well as an original use of
materials and choice of colors. Those who wear Salvatore Ferragamo eyewear feel that they
possess a unique, custom-crafted object, a little masterpiece inspired by the craftsmanlike
tradition of the Ferragamo fashion house and reinterpreted according to contemporary trends. 

Sergio Tacchini, a brand that has always been synonymous with sport and free
time, was  licensed to Luxottica Group in 1993. This line is designed not only for
sports lovers, but also for those who want leisure eyewear. In fact, the collections
are perfectly in tune with the latest trends that are bringing the sports style into
our everyday lives. Sergio Tacchini eyewear is ideal for those who prefer a classic
and at the same time casual style. 

The license agreement for the manufacturing and distribution of Versace
eyewear was signed by Luxottica Group in early 2003. With a sleek and
innovative design, Versace eyewear is characterized by the brand's
distinctive marks (the Greek fret pattern, the Medusa) and is targeted at
people who love dressing fashionably. Those who wear Versace eyewear
prefer an absolutely unconventional luxury product with bright colors and
cutting-edge design, are aware of the latest fashion trends, enjoy the
limelight, love being noticed, are sensual, dynamic, and self-assured. 

The Miu Miu brand was created in 1993 following Miuccia Prada’s specific desire to
address to a clientele particularly attentive to the free and easy as well as to the
sophisticated new tendencies. With this collection, Miuccia Prada expresses her vision of
an alternative style, always characterized by a strong personality; the provocative
innovation coexists with the classic, which is re-interpreted to become a “new classic”.
The Miu Miu brand includes ready-to-wear, bags, accessories, shoes and eyewear for
men and women. The brand Miu Miu can be defined as: urban, young, sophisticated and
sensual, an alternative vision , a “new classic.” 

Among all the lines manufactured by Luxottica Group, Moschino, a brand that the
Group has been manufacturing under license since 1995, is the one that includes
the most original and creative styles, perfectly in tune with the brand's image.
Moschino eyewear is designed for young, ironic and nonconformist people who
choose an original and bold frame with a definitely unconventional style, people
who love to dare by wearing color and shape combinations created to astonish
and amaze but who don't want to give up high quality standards.

67
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Luxottica Group’s corporate governance model meets the standards set forth in the Corporate Governance Code

of Listed Companies by Borsa Italiana, the entity responsible for the organization and management of the Italian Stock

Exchange, and by Consob, the entity responsible for regulating the Italian securities market. 

Luxottica Group’s Board of Directors periodically assesses the adequacy of the Group’s corporate governance

model both with respect to the current size of the Group’s business and its growth prospects and in terms of changes

in the regulatory environment and, consequently, makes any changes or amendments that may be appropriate or

necessary.

KEY ELEMENTS OF LUXOTTICA GROUP’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MODEL

The corporate governance model of Luxottica Group, designed to maximize value for shareholders and ensure the

transparency of its management, preserving the traditional values that have guided the Group's growth, mainly

regulates the following:

- the attribution to the Board of Directors of a central role in the management of the Group and in the definition of its

corporate governance model

- the presence on the Board of an adequate number of independent and non-executive directors

- the division of the Group organizational structure by activity, on the basis of which authority is delegated to the

Chairman, to the Vice Chairman and to the Managing Director 

- the institution of an Internal Control Committee within the Board of Directors with a majority of non-executive and

independent directors

- the Internal Auditing Department, managed by a senior executive with the title of Internal Control Supervisor

- the adoption of an Code of Ethics in which the rules of behavior for relationships within and outside the Group are

outlined

- the adoption by the Board of Directors of guidelines for significant transactions and with related parties

- the presence of an Investor Relations Department to manage relations with investors and stakeholders

- the drawing up of a "Rules for internal management and disclosure of confidential information and of price sensitive

information”

- the adoption of the Code of Conduct - Internal Dealing - for informing the market of trading in Luxottica Group

shares by Significant Persons

- the adoption of an internal procedure for approval of services outside the scope of auditing contracted with the

same firm that audits the Group’s financial statements

- the Luxottica Group’s By-Laws requirement for a list vote for the appointment of Statutory Auditors

- the availability on its Internet site of, among other matters, press releases, periodical figures and Group information.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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COMPOSITION AND ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Luxottica Group’s by-laws provide that the Group to be governed by a Board of Directors composed of a

minimum of three and a maximum of eleven members, who need not to be shareholders, with the exact number to be

determined by a resolution approved at by the Shareholders’ Meeting. 

Luxottica Group’s Board of Directors as of the date of this report consists of nine members appointed by the

Shareholders’ Meeting on June 25, 2003. This Board will remain in office until it has approved Luxottica Group’s

financial statements for fiscal year 2005. The Board of Directors consists of the following individuals:

• Leonardo Del Vecchio, 69: Chairman, member of the Executive Committee, member of the Control Committee

• Luigi Francavilla, 67: Vice Chairman, member of the Executive Committee

• Roberto Chemello, 50: Managing Director, member of the Executive Committee

• Enrico Cavatorta, 43: Director 

• Claudio Del Vecchio, 47: Director

• Sabina Grossi, 39: Director, member of the Executive Committee 

• Tancredi Bianchi, 76: Director, member of the Internal Control Committee 

• Mario Cattaneo, 74: Director 

• Lucio Rondelli, 80: Director, member of the Executive Committee, Chairman of the Internal Control Committee.

A detailed description of Luxottica Group’s Board of Directors’ competences and delegated responsibilities is

available from the Group’s corporate website at www.luxottica.com.

Four of Luxottica Group’s directors are non-executive: Tancredi Bianchi, Mario Cattaneo, Claudio Del Vecchio and

Lucio Rondelli. Claudio Del Vecchio also holds executive offices of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries. The Group

believes that the number of non-executive directors and their stature ensures that their views carry significant weight

when Board decisions are taken. 

It should also be mentioned that Tancredi Bianchi, Mario Cattaneo and Lucio Rondelli are independent directors

according to Borsa Italiana’s Corporate Governance Code of Listed Companies. The Board of Directors has assessed

that the level of independence of Luxottica Group’s directors meets the guidelines of Article 3 of the same Corporate

Governance Code of Listed Companies, confirming the independence of the three directors.

Division of Areas of Competence and Delegated Responsibilities

The Board of Directors has broad powers of ordinary and non-ordinary management, except for matters reserved

by law to the Shareholders’ Meeting. In particular, the Board of Directors has exclusive competence over:

- The definition of the Group’s general plans of growth and investment as well as goals 

- Setting the budget
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- The definition of the financial strategy and the approval of borrowing transactions exceeding 18 months.

In addition to the above, the Board of Directors: 

- grants and revokes powers to the members of the Board of Directors and to the Executive Committee, sets out

the terms and conditions for the exercise of such powers and provides that such persons report to the Board of

Directors quarterly as regards the transactions carried out pursuant to the powers granted

- examines and approves the Group’s transactions having a significant economic, patrimonial and financial impact,

also on the activities of the subsidiaries, with particular attention to those involving related parties. To this end, on

March 20, 2003, the Board of Directors adopted guidelines which set internal procedures for the approval of

significant transactions and those involving related parties. 

- supervises the proper management of Luxottica Group on the basis of the reports that directors to whom

responsibility for specific areas of the business has been delegated submit periodically to the Board of Directors

- assesses the adequacy of the overall organizational structure of Luxottica Group 

- assesses the adequacy and performance of the Internal Control system also on the basis of reports received from

the Internal Control Committee, from the Managing Director and from the Internal Control Supervisor 

- reports to the shareholders at the  Shareholders’ Meeting.

Within the Board of Directors the Executive Committee consists of five members, the Chairman (Leonardo Del

Vecchio), the Vice Chairman (Luigi Francavilla), the Managing Director (Roberto Chemello) and directors Sabina Grossi

and Lucio Rondelli. 

Management powers are delegated to the Executive Committee regarding the following matters:

- purchase and sale of assets (real assets or stakes) having an overall value of up to _ 150 million, provided that they

do not exceed 20% of the amount provided in the provisional  financial statement and the investment program

approved by the Board of Directors;

- financing transactions of a value exceeding _ 150 million provided that they do not involve  borrowing transactions

of over 18 months;

- transactions submitted for their examination on an urgent basis by the Chairman.

The Executive Committee also has the power to delegate to one or more of its members the execution of

decisions taken by the Committee.

The Board of Directors has also established the powers of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman and the Managing

Director on the basis of the division of the Group’s organizational structure into areas of activity, assigning to each the

supervision of their respective operating units. In particular the Board of Directors has ordered that:

- the Corporate Area (Legal, Human Resources/Organization, Investor Relations/ Communication, Administration

Finance and Control of Management, Information Technology) should report to the Chairman; 

- the Production Area (Production, Purchasing, Logistics, Planning, Product/Design, Quality Control and Research
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and Development) should report to the Vice Chairman regarding Product/Design, Quality Control and Research and

Development and to the Managing Director regarding Production, Purchasing, Logistics and Planning; 

- and, finally, the Market Area, which includes Wholesale, Retail and Marketing, should report to the Chairman. 

The directors Enrico Cavatorta and Sabina Grossi have also received responsibilities delegated by the Chairman,

limited in their scope, regarding the ordinary business of, respectively, Administration, Finance and Control of

Management and Investor Relations/Communication. 

Appointment and Remuneration of Directors

Although Luxottica Group’s By-Laws do not lay down rules regarding the composition of the Board of Directors

nor set special requirements regarding respectability and professionalism, the Board of Directors itself examines the

composition of the Board of Directors to propose to the Shareholders’ Meeting, taking into account the number of

executive, non-executive and independent directors, and defines the personal and professional profile of the

candidates. In assessing the independence of directors, the Board follows criteria laid down by the corporate

governance Code of Listed Companies issued by Borsa Italiana. 

The Group has therefore has not considered it necessary to appoint a committee to propose candidates, as all

executive and non-executive directors have the possibility to nominate candidates to the Board of Directors for its

review. In practice, and detailed information on the personal background and professional qualifications of candidates

has always been provided to the Shareholders' Meeting. Luxottica Group does not intend to change this procedure. 

Luxottica Group’s By-Laws do not provide for the appointment of the Board on the basis of lists.

The task of periodically reviewing the remuneration of the executive directors who are employees of the Group and

of the main senior managers of the Group is devolved to the Executive Committee. When examining and approving

remuneration that concerns members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee takes its decision on each

occasion with the abstention of the director concerned. The remuneration of the top managers is linked to a

significant degree to the Group’s results. There is in fact a bonus system, the payment of which depends on meeting

specific goals set by the Executive Committee on the basis of the responsibilities carried out by the senior manager. In

arranging the bonus system, the Executive Committee consults the administrative bodies of the subsidiaries where the

senior managers concerned are employed, and the Internal Control Committee.

The overall compensation of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee are set annually by the

Shareholders’ Meeting. The Board of Directors undertakes, with the abstention of those concerned, the allocation of

the overall compensation set by the Shareholders’ Meeting  between the members of the Board, taking into account

the office they hold and the responsibilities delegated to them. 

The Executive Committee examines and proposes to the Board of Directors the implementation of stock option

grants according to the guidelines set by the Shareholders' Meeting. 
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THE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Luxottica Group has long been working in setting up an internal control system to ensure correct and efficient

management of risks of a financial and operational nature and to prevent fraud or harm to the Group and its

subsidiaries. In 2003 and in early 2004 the Group implemented a series of measures that represent a major step

toward achieving the above-mentioned goal.

The Group's internal control system consists of a series of internal procedures, specific to each area of the

business, that have been codified in a Manual of Internal Control that has been issued to the central services of the

Group and to its subsidiaries. 

The Group makes sure that the Manual of Internal Control is updated as new procedures are introduced, its

validity is constantly monitored and that the procedures that it sets forth are applied. For that purpose, in 2003 the

Group created an Internal Auditing Department. On January 29, 2004, a new executive was appointed to the position

of Internal Control Supervisor, with the responsibilities attributed to this function in the above-mentioned Corporate

Governance Code of Listed Companies. 

The Internal Control Supervisor is not placed hierarchically under any manager of an operational area. In

organizational terms, such function reports to the Managing Director and in functional terms to the Internal Control

Committee. It also reports to the Board of Statutory Auditors. The Board of Directors has the right to call upon the

Internal Control Supervisor function to report on its activities.

The Internal Control Supervisor has the task of assisting the Managing Director in identifying the main risks for the

Group and in monitoring the management of the Internal Control System. This function has also been allocated the

task of assisting the Internal Control Committee in carrying out its advisory functions and of making proposals, as

specified in the next paragraph. 

Internal Control Committee

Constituted within the Board of Directors, the Internal Control Committee has an advisory function and of making

proposals to the Board itself. A majority of its members are non-executive and independent directors, in line with the

recommendation of the above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code of Listed Companies. As of the date of this

report, the Internal Control Committee consisted of Lucio Rondelli (non-executive and independent director), serving

as Chairman of the Committee, Leonardo Del Vecchio (Chairman of the Board of Directors) and Tancredi Bianchi (non-

executive and independent director). The Internal Control Committee was constituted on July 28, 2003. 

The Internal Control Committee, which normally meets at least twice a year, has an advisory function and of

making proposals regarding the adequacy of the Internal Control System and reports periodically to the Board of

Directors. Meetings of the Internal Control Committee are attended by the Internal Control Supervisor (Manager of the
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Internal Auditing function) and, on request, the managers of the various operational units and central services.

The Board of Statutory Auditors, which meets on a quarterly basis, as a matter of practice invites the Internal

Control Committee to attend its meetings, which are also attended by the manager of the external auditing firm, the

Internal Control Supervisor and, on request, the managers of the various operational units and central services.

In particular, the Internal Control Committee carries out the following functions:

- it assesses the adequacy of the internal control system and makes proposals on this, reporting to the Board of

Directors on the basis of the Internal Control Supervisor's report, of the external auditing firm’s comments, of the

Board of Statutory Auditors' investigations and of reports received from the Managing Director, the Chief Financial

Officer and the managers of the operational units and central services;

- in urgent situations, it approves in compliance with current regulations services outside the scope of auditing

contracted with the same firm that audits the Group’s financial statements;

- making use of the various Group functions, it checks that the Code of Ethics has been issued to, applied by and

obeyed by all whom it is meant to address. It makes proposals for updating the Code of Ethics to comply with

current regulations, examines any reported infringements to it, institutes the necessary checks, and, working with

the competent Group functions, suggests appropriate measures. 

Organizational Model

In light of the legislation issued in the U.S. in conjunction with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which is also applicable to

foreign issuers with financial instruments listed in the U.S., the Group is currently updating its organizational model to

comply both with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and those laid down by Legislative Decree 231/2001,

concerning the administrative responsibility of corporations. 

After the closing of fiscal year 2003 the Group adopted a Code of Ethics that lays down principles of ethics and

transparency on which the Group bases its internal and external activities. The Code of Ethics aims to ensure that

correctness, fairness, integrity, steadfastness and professional precision mark the operations, behavior and working

method both in relationships within the Group and in those with external entities and individuals, placing the

observance of the laws and regulations of the countries where it works, as well as the Group procedures, at the

center of attention. 

The Code of Ethics also introduces the principles and rules of behavior relevant for the purposes of reasonable

prevention of the crimes set out in Legislative Decree 231/2001, and makes these principles and rules compulsory for

all employees of the Group.

For additional information the Code of Ethics is available from Luxottica Group’s website at www.luxottica.com. 
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TREATMENT OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

The handling of confidential information is overseen to the Chairman, the Managing Director, the Chief Financial

Officer and the Investor Relations Director. These are the only individuals authorized to communicate to the market

information of a price-sensitive nature. 

The Board of Directors has approved the "Rules for internal handling and disclosure of confidential and price

sensitive information". These procedures have been issued to Group employees who deal with confidential information

because of their responsibilities within the organization.  These rules are designed to regulate the use and

management of confidential information within the Company and its dissemination outside the Company.

The Group has also approved the Code of Conduct on Insider Trading, which imposes internal reporting

obligations and limitations on transactions in Luxottica Group’s securities by employees who, because of their position

and/or their responsibilities, have access to confidential information (“Significant Persons”). The Code of Conduct

enables the Company to give timely information to the market of transactions in Luxottica Group’s securities made by

the Significant Persons.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH INVESTORS AND WITH OTHER SHAREHOLDERS

The Group has long had an Investor Relations Department which ensures the proper handling of relationships with

financial analysts, institutional and individual investors, both Italian and foreign. 

The disclosure required by law is handled by Luxottica Group’s Legal Department.

To facilitate the dialogue with the financial community and shareholders, Luxottica Group publishes information on

its corporate website including the financial results for each reporting period, other press releases, Group information

and corporate governance information. 

With respect to the conduct of Shareholders’ Meetings, the Group has not adopted a special set of rules other

than follow current regulation as they have always been properly and efficiently conducted.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Group’s By-Laws requires that Statutory Auditors be appointed by means of a vote on a list that can be

presented by shareholders who, either alone or with other shareholders, represent at least three per cent of the shares

that have voting rights at the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting. This ensures that the minority appoints at least one

regular Statutory Auditor and one alternate Statutory Auditor. 

The Group’s By-laws require that the lists, to be deposited at the Group’s statutory seat at least five days before



77

CAPITAL STOCK INFORMATION

the Meeting, must be accompanied by a detailed report concerning the personal and professional background of the

candidates. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting on June 25, 2003, which will remain in

office until it has approved Luxottica Group’s financial statements for fiscal year 2005, consists of the following

individuals:

• Giancarlo Tomasin (Chairman)

• Walter Pison (Statutory Auditor)

• Mario Medici (Statutory Auditor)

• Giuseppe Luigi Tacca (alternate Statutory Auditor)

• Mario Bampo (alternate Statutory Auditor).

For the appointment of the Board of Statutory Auditors the minority submitted no list. 

A complete version of Luxottica Group’s Corporate Governance is available from the Company’s corporate

website at www.luxottica.com.
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SNAPSHOT

• Listed on the NYSE and Milan, Italy-MTA since 1990 and 2000, respectively.

• Luxottica Group’s ordinary shares and ADSs trade on both exchanges under the stock symbol LUX

• One NYSE-listed ADS represents one MTA-listed ordinary share

• As of December 31, 2003, Luxottica Group’s authorized share capital was € 27,268,621.98, equivalent to

454,477,033 ordinary shares.

• The per share par value of Luxottica Group’s ordinary shares is € 0.06

DETAILS OF LUXOTTICA GROUP’S CAPITAL STOCK INFORMATION

• Luxottica Group S.p.A listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) on January 23, 1990. At the time of the

Initial Public Offering, 10,350,000 ordinary shares were sold, equivalent to 5,175,000 American Depositary Shares

(ADS) (one ADS equals two ordinary shares). The issue price was US$ 19 per ADS.

• For over ten years, Luxottica Group’s ordinary shares did not trade and were listed on Milan’s Mercato Telematico

Azionario (MTA) on December 4, 2000. In conjunction with the listing, 10,385,000 additional ordinary shares were

sold. The issue price was € 16.83 per ordinary share. 

• The Group’s shares trade on both exchanges under the stock symbol LUX.

• In June 1992, the Group’s Board of Directors approved a change in the conversion ratio of the ADS to 1:1, from

2:1. The change in the conversion ratio, effective from July 10, 1992, did not affect the number of ordinary shares

outstanding, which remained 45,050,000, while holders of the Group’s ADRs received one additional ADR per each

ADR held. 

• At the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held in Milan on March 10, 1998, shareholders approved a five-for-one

split of the Group’s ordinary shares. The stock split resulted in an increase in the number of the Group’s authorized

ordinary shares to 225,250,000, from 45,050,000, and a consequent reduction in par value to Italian Lire 200 per

ordinary share, from Italian Lire 1,000 per ordinary share. The stock split, effective on April 16, 1998, had no effect

on the Group’s authorized share capital, which remained valued at Italian Lire 45,050,000,000. Each ADS

continued to represent one Luxottica Group’s ordinary share.

• At the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held in Milan on May 3, 2000, shareholders approved a two-for-one

stock split of the Group’s ordinary shares. The stock split, effective on June 26, 2000, resulted in an increase in the

number of the Group’s authorized ordinary shares to 462,750,000, from 231,375,000, and a consequent reduction

in par value to Italian Lire 100 per ordinary share, from Italian Lire 200 per ordinary share. Therefore, the stock split,

effective on June 26, 2000, had no effect on the Group’s authorized share capital, which remained valued at Italian
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Lire 46,275,000,000. The ADS ratio remained unchanged, with each ADS continuing to represent one ordinary

share. 

• At the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held in Milan on June 26, 2001, shareholders approved the conversion

of the Luxottica Group’s authorized and issued share capital into Euro. As a result of the conversion, the per share

par value of the Group’s ordinary shares is € 0.06, from Italian Lire 100.

• On December 31, 2003, Luxottica Group’s authorized share capital was € 27,268,621.98, equivalent to

454,477,033 ordinary shares.

1990-2003: FOURTEEN YEARS ON THE NYSE

2001-2003:THREE YEARS ON THE MTA
QUARTERLY ORDINARY SHARES PRICES (Euro)

QUARTERLY ADS PRICES  (U.S. Dollars) (1)

1996
High Low Close

7.83 5.63 7.81
8.10 6.91 7.34
7.64 6.51 7.28
7.23 5.21 5.21
8.10 5.21

1997
High Low Close

6.64 5.13 5.31
6.99 5.30 6.78
6.98 5.63 5.69
6.51 5.68 6.25

6.99 5.13

1998
High Low Close

9.41 6.28 9.37
9.49 7.75 7.75
8.66 4.97 5.19
6.00 3.88 6.00

9.49 3.88

First
Second
Third
Fourth

Full Year

1999
High Low Close

6.66 5.00 6.44
8.63 6.19 7.78
9.53 7.00 9.53
10.31 7.81 8.78

10.31 5.00

First
Second
Third
Fourth

Full Year

2001
High Low Close

16.09 13.13 15.17
16.00 13.25 16.00
17.99 12.15 13.99
17.21 13.45 16.48

17.99 12.15

2003
High Low Close

14.05 10.23 10.95
14.11 10.69 13.90
15.48 13.73 14.29
18.15 14.40 17.40

18.15 10.23

2002
High Low Close

19.82 15.90 19.38
20.85 17.85 19.00
18.70 11.82 12.88
15.51 12.00 13.65

20.85 11.82

2000
High Low Close

12.34 7.97 12.25
12.97 11.19 12.19
17.00 12.38 16.13
16.44 13.00 13.75

17.00 7.97

1992
High Low Close
3.23 2.74 2.90
3.28 2.63 2.71
3.11 2.66 2.95
2.93 2.25 2.51

3.28 2.25

1991
High Low Close
1.41 0.99 1.38
1.71 1.39 1.51
2.28 1.51 2.26
2.75 2.25 2.75

2.75 0.99

1995
High Low Close
3.96 3.13 3.60
3.83 3.43 3.71
4.92 3.70 4.89
5.95 4.54 5.85

5.95 3.13

1994
High Low Close
3.38 2.79 3.04
3.50 2.98 3.41
3.58 3.28 3.39
3.65 3.23 3.41

3.65 2.79

1993
High Low Close
2.49 2.03 2.38
2.56 2.18 2.18
2.38 2.09 2.09
2.95 2.06 2.93

2.95 2.03

First
Second
Third
Fourth

Full Year

• Fourteen-year high: US$ 20.85 on April 26, 2002  •  Fourteen years low: US$ 0.79 on November 7, 1990
(1) These figures have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the five-for-one stock split which was effective April 16, 1998, and the two-for-one stock
split which was effective June 26, 2000

1990
High Low Close
1.06 0.95 0.98
1.38 0.96 1.32
1.46 0.99 1.01
1.11 0.79 1.02

1.46 0.79

First
Second
Third
Fourth

Full Year

2003
High Low Close
13.48 9.25 9.81
12.37 9.85 11.92
13.96 11.67 12.23
14.82 12.35 13.70

14.82 9.25

First
Second
Third
Fourth

Full Year

2002
High Low Close
22.95 18.34 22.43
22.88 18.54 19.69
19.05 11.75 13.22
15.52 12.00 12.58

22.95 11.75

2001
High Low Close
17.20 14.37 16.80
19.11 15.04 19.11
20.62 13.41 15.74
19.59 14.88 18.43

20.62 13.41

• Three-year high: € 22.95 on March 27, 2002  • Three-year low: € 9.25 on March 12, 2003

SHARE PERFORMANCE
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LUXOTTICA GROUP
Investor Relations Department
Via Cesare Cantù, 2
20123 Milano
Italy 

Phone +39 (02) 8633 4665; Fax +39 (02) 8699 6550
E-mail: investorrelations@luxottica.com
Website: www.luxottica.com

Other corporate websites:
www.lenscrafters.com; www.opsm.com; www.sunglasshut.com;
www.sunglasshut-europe.com; www.sunglasshut.com.au

DEPOSITARY BANK
THE BANK OF NEW YORK

P.O. BOX 11258 - CHURCH STREET STATION

NEW YORK, NY 10286-1258
USA

Phone +1 (610) 312 5315;Toll free (U.S. only) (888) 269 2377
E-mail: shareowner-svcs@bankofny.com
Website: www.adrbny.com

CUSTODIAN BANK
UNICREDITO ITALIANO, UNICREDIT PRODUZIONI ACCENTRATE

Via Volta, 1 
20093 Cologno Monzese (MI)
Italy

VITTORIO MARANGIONE

Phone +39 (02) 2673 4140 or 4072
E-mail: vittorio.marangione@upa.unicredit.it

FABIO TRIFIRÒ

Phone +39 (02) 2673 4403 or 4702 
E-mail: fabio.trifiro@upa.unicredit.it

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
DELOITTE & TOUCHE

Piazza San Vito, 37
31100 Treviso
Italy

PARTNER: FAUSTO ZANON

Phone +39 (0422) 5875
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Luxottica Group S.p.A. (an
Italian corporation) and Subsidiaries (collectively, "the Company") as of December 31, 2002 and
2003 and the related statements of consolidated income, shareholders' equity and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reaso-
nable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.  An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signi-
ficant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement pre-
sentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Luxottica Group S.p.A. and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2002 and 2003 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits comprehended the translation of Euro amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our
opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1.  Such U.S.
dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of international readers.

As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements; effective as of January 1, 2002,
the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, which established
new accounting and reporting standards for the recording, amortization and impairment of
goodwill and other intangible assets.

Treviso, Italy
March 15, 2004
(April 19, 2004, as to Note 15)

LUXOTTICA GROUP S.P.A.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (*)

DECEMBER 31, 2002, AND 2003 (*)

ASSETS 2002 2003 2003
(Thousands of Euro) (Thousands of Euro) (Thousands

of U.S. Dollars)(1)

Current assets Notes

Cash and cash equivalents 1 151,418 299,937 US$ 377,831

Accounts receivable
(Less allowance for doubtful accounts,
€ 18.1 million in 2002, and € 21.5 million
in 20032; U$ 27.1 million) 370,234 353,516 445,324

Sales and income taxes receivable 10,956 34,259 43,156

Inventories 3 406,032 404,216 509,191

Prepaid expenses and other 53,385 50,714 63,884

Deferred tax assets 7 148,088 124,451 156,771

Total current assets 1,140,113 1,267,093 1,596,157

Property, plant and equipment - net 2, 5 506,545 497,435 626,619

Other assets

Goodwill 6 1,244,660 1,328,914 1,674,033

Intangible assets - net 6 671,866 764,698 963,290

Investments 4 12,837 13,055 16,445

Other assets 10,311 41,481 52,254

Total other assets 1,939,674 2,148,148 2,706,022

TOTAL 3,586,332 3,912,676 US$ 4,928,798

(1) Translated for convenience at the New York City Noon Buying Rate as determined in Note 1

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(*) In accordance with U.S. GAAP

Current liabilities Notes

Bank overdrafts 371,729 516,905 US$ 651,145 
Current portion of long-term debt 8 178,335 390,935 492,461
Accounts payable 202,897 178,616 225,003

Accrued expenses
• Payroll and related 64,622 77,780 97,979
• Customers' right of return 9,130 7,423 9,351
• Other 153,262 140,608 177,124
Income taxes payable 7 18,748 11,011 13,870

Total current liabilities 998,723 1,323,278 1,666,933

Long term debt 8 855,654 862,492 1,086,481

Liability for termination indemnities 9 48,945 47,241 59,509

Deferred tax liabilities 7 121,805 161,102 202,940

Other long term liabilities 9 133,605 124,157 156,401

Commitments and contingencies 14

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 9,705 19,872 25,033

Shareholders' equity
Capital stock
Capital stock par value € 0.06 - 454,263,600  
and 454,477,033 ordinary shares authorized 
and issued as of December 31, 2002, and 2003, 
respectively; 452,351,900 and 448,042,247 shares
outstanding as of December 31, 2002, and 2003 11 27,256 27,269 34,351
Additional paid-in capital 34,799 36,275 45,696
Retained earnings 1,447,374 1,619,312 2,039,847
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) net of tax 1 (66,987) (238,335) (300,231)

Total 1,442,442 1,444,521 1,819,663

Less treasury shares at cost
1,911,700 and 6,434,786 shares 

as of December 31, 2002 and 2003 respectively 24,547 69,987 88,163

Shareholders’ equity 1,417,895 1,374,534 1,731,500

TOTAL 3,586,332 3,912,676 US$ 4,928,798 

(1) Translated for convenience at the New York City Noon Buying Rate as determined in Note 1

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(*) In accordance with U.S. GAAP

2002 2003 2003
(Thousands of Euro)  (Thousands of Euro) (Thousands

of U.S. Dollars) (1)

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
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Balances, January 1, 2001 451,582,300 23,322 10,766 899,461 117,948 (2,334) 1,049,163
Exercise of stock options 1,283,517 71 11,394 11,465
Translation adjustment, net of taxes 40,486 40,486 40,486
Euro Conversion 3,779 (3,779)
Cummulative effect
of SFAS No. 133 adoption, net of taxes (7,749) (7,749) (7,749)
Change in fair value of
derivative instruments, net of taxes (3,569) (3,569) (3,569)
Dividends declared (63,326) (63,326)
Net income 316,373 316,373 316,373
Comprehensive income 345,541

Balances, december 31, 2001 452,865,817 27,172 18,381 1,152,508 147,116 (2,334) 1,342,843

Exercise of stock options 1,397,783 84 9,483 9,567
Translation adjustment, net of taxes (198,463) (198,463) (198,463)
Minimum pension liability, net of taxes (26,569) (26,569) (26,569)
Sale of treasury shares, net of taxes 6,935 2,334 9,269
Purchase of treasury shares (24,547) (24,547)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments, net of taxes 10,929 10,929 10,929
Dividends declared (77,211) (77,211)
Net Income (2) 372,077 372,077 372,077
Comprehensive Income 157,974

Balances, december 31, 2002 454,263,600 27,256 34,799 1,447,374 (66,987) (24,547) 1,417,895

Exercise of stock options 213,433 13 1,476 1,489
Translation adjustment, net of taxes (169,053) (169,053) (169,053)
Minimum pension liability, net of taxes (1,228) (1,228) (1,228)
Purchase of treasury shares (45,440) (45,440)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments, net of taxes (1,067) (1,067) (1,067)
Dividends declared (95,405) (95,405)
Net income (2) 267,343 267,343 267,343
Comprehensive income 95,995

Balances, december 31, 2003 454,477,033 27,269 36,275 1,619,312 (238,335) (69,987) 1,374,534

Comprehensive income (1) US$120,925
(Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Balances, December 31, 2003 454,477,033 US$34,351 US$45,696 US$2,039,847 US$ (300,231) US$ (88,163) US$ 1,731,500
(Thousands of U.S. Dollars)(1)

(1) Translated for convenience at the New York City Noon Buying Rate as determined in Note 1
(2) Results for the years ended December 31, 2002, and 2003, include the effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 142. For comparison among the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, on a pro-forma basis see Note 1 “Goodwill and Change in  Accounting”

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(*) In accordance with U.S. GAAP

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2002 AND 2003

Common Stock
Shares Amount

(Thousands of Euro)

Additional
Paid-in
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings

Other
Comprehensive 
Income (Loss) 

Net of Tax

Accumulated 
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) 

Net of Tax

Treasury 
Shares 

Amount, 
at Cost

Consolidated
Shareholders’

Equity

(Note 11)

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (*)

Notes

Net sales 12 3,101,129 3,178,602 2,824,636 US$ 3,558,194 
Cost of sales (920,183) (924,404) (878,340) (1,106,445)

Gross profit 2,180,946 2,254,198 1,946,296 2,451,749

Operating expenses
•  Selling and advertising (1,302,383) (1,358,884) (1,233,476) (1,553,810)
•  General and administrative (369,071) (293,806) (281,033) (354,017)

Total operating expenses  (1,671,454) (1,652,690) (1,514,509) (1,907,828)

Income from operations 12 509,492 601,508 431,787 543,921
Other income (expenses):
•  Interest income 15,060 5,036 5,922 7,460
•  Interest expense (91,978) (65,935) (47,117) (59,353)
•  Other - net 8,737 (1,167) (799) (1,007)
Other income (expense) net (68,181) (62,066) (41,994) (52,900)

Income before provision
for income taxes 441,311 539,442 389,793 491,021
Provision for income taxes 7 (123,450) (162,696) (117,328) (147,798)

Income before minority interests 317,861 376,746 272,465 343,223
in consolidated subsidiaries
Minority interests in income of 
consolidated subsidiaries (1,488) (4,669) (5,122) (6,452)

Net income 316,373 372,077 267,343 US$ 336,771 

Earnings per share: basic 0.70 0.82 0.60 0.75 

Earnings per share: diluted 0.70 0.82 0.59 0.75 

Weighted average number
of shares outstanding (thousands)(2):

Basic 451,037.0 453,174.0 448,664.4
Diluted 453,965.5 455,353.5 450,202.1

(1) Translated for convenience at the New York City Noon Buying Rate as determined in Note 1
(2) Results for the years ended December 31, 2002, and 2003, include the effect of the adoption of SFAS No.142. For comparison among the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, on a pro-forma basis see Note 1 “Goodwill and Change in Accounting”
(3) Results for fiscal year 2001 include the results of operations of Sunglass Hut International from March 31, 2001
(4) Results for fiscal years 2001 and 2002 have been reclassified to allow for comparison with results for fiscal 2003
(5) Results for fiscal year 2003 include the results of operations of OPSM from August 1, 2003

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(*) In accordance with U.S. GAAP

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2002 AND 2003

2001(3)(4) 2002(2)(4) 2003(2)(5) 2003(2)(5)

(Thousands of Euro) (Thousands of Euro) (Thousands of Euro) (Thousands
of U.S. Dollars) (1)

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EARNINGS PER SHARE (*)
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STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS (*)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2002 AND 2003

2001 2002 2003 2003 
(Thousands (Thousands (Thousands (Thousands

of Euro) of Euro) of Euro) of U.S. Dollars (1))

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, plant and equipment:
• Additions (123,475) (173,330) (81,288) (102,398)
• Disposals 7,811 4,646 3,839 4,836
Purchases of business net of cash acquired (568,981) (27,428) (342,432) (431,362)
Increase in investments (2,718) (7,611) (501) (631)
(Increase) Decrease in intangible assets (23,714) 28,611 (48,177) (60,689)

Cash used in investing activities (711,077) (175,112) (468,559) (590,244)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term debt:
•   Proceeds 500,000 1,000,714 619,859 780,836
•   Repayments (245,916) (1,408,308) (332,045) (418,277)
•   Repayment of acquired line of credit (104,155) - - -
Use of restricted cash deposit 44,610 201,106 - -

Increase (Decrease) overdraft balances 259,083 (21,712) 156,290 196,879

Sales of treasury shares - 9,269 - -

Investment in treasury shares - (24,547) (45,440) (57,241)
Exercise of stock options 11,465 9,567 1,489 1,876
Dividends (63,326) (77,211) (95,405) (120,182)

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 401,761 (311,122) 304,748 383,891

Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 126,730 (46,061) 163,715 206,231

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 85,392 199,202 151,418 190,741

Effect of exchange rate changes 
on cash and cash equivalents (12,920) (1,723) (15,196) (19,142)

Cash and equivalents, end of year 199,202 151,418 299,937 377,831

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information
• Cash paid during the year for interest 91,174 58,162 44,951 56,625
• Cash paid during the year for income taxes 126,833 137,650 110,609 139,334
• Acquisition of businesses:

Fair value of assets acquired (102,347) - 102,323 128,896
(1) Translated for convenience at the New York City Noon Buying Rate as determined in Note 1

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(*) In accordance with U.S. GAAP
(**) In 2003, the Company determined that the net change in bank overdrafts had to be classified as financing activity rather
then netted against cash and cash equivalents. As a result, cash provided by (used in) financing activities and cash and
cash equivalents for previous years have been reclassified in the statements of consolidated cash flows from the amounts
previously reported to classify the net change in bank overdraft as a financing activity.

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income 316,373 372,077 267,343 336,771

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

• Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries 1,488 4,669 5,122 6,452

• Depreciation and amortization 211,907 145,980 134,840 169,858

• Provision (Benefit) for deferred income taxes (15,983) (7,785) 12,865 16,206

• (Gain) Loss on disposals of fixed assets - net 1,764 (1,212) (124) (156)

• Termination indemnities matured during the year - net 2,886 5,977 2,403 3,027

Changes in assets and liabilities net 
of acquisitions of businesses:

• Accounts receivable (56,021) (17,522) 23,888 30,092

• Prepaid expenses and other 8,012 56,339 (43,556) (54,867)

• Inventories (29,200) (58,573) 17,120 21,566

• Accounts payable (27,121) 8,926 (45,029) (56,723)

• Accrued expenses and other 29,506 (78,611) (39,857) (50,208)

• Accrual for customers' right of return 745 (3,147) (249) (314)

• Income taxes payable (8,310) 13,055 (7,240) (9,120)

Total adjustments 119,673 68,096 60,183 75,813

Cash provided by operating activities 436,046 440,173 327,526 412,584

(1) Translated for convenience at the New York City Noon Buying Rate as determined in Note 1

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(*) In accordance with U.S. GAAP
(**) In 2003, the Company determined that the net change in bank overdrafts had to be classified as financing activity rather
then netted against cash and cash equivalents. As a result, cash provided by (used in) financing activities and cash and
cash equivalents for previous years have been reclassified in the statements of consolidated cash flows from the amounts
previously reported to classify the net change in bank overdraft as a financing activity.

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS (*)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2002 AND 2003

2001(**) 2002(**) 2003 2003 
(Thousands (Thousands (Thousands (Thousands

of Euro) of Euro) of Euro) of U.S. Dollars (1))
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1 ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization - Luxottica Group S.p.A. and its subsidiaries (collectively "Luxottica Group" or the "Company")

operates in two industry segments: manufacturing and wholesale distribution, and retail distribution. Through its

manufacturing and wholesale distribution operations, Luxottica Group is engaged in the design, manufacturing,

wholesale distribution and marketing of house and designer brand lines of mid- to premium-priced prescription frames

and sunglasses. The Company operates in the retail segment through its Retail Division, consisting of LensCrafters,

Inc. and other affiliated companies (“LensCrafters”), Sunglass Hut International, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Sunglass

Hut International”) and, since August 2003, OPSM Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“OPSM”).  As of December 31,

2003, LensCrafters operated 877 stores throughout the U.S. and Canada; Sunglass Hut International operated 1,905

stores located in North America, Europe and Australia; and, OPSM operated 600 stores trading under three brands

across all states and territories in Australia as well as New Zealand, Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia.

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements of Luxottica

Group include the financial statements of the parent company and all wholly- or majority-owned Italian and foreign

subsidiaries. The Company's investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries which are at least 20 percent owned and

where the Company exercises significant influence over operating and financial policies are accounted for using the

equity method. Luxottica Group holds a 44 percent interest in an affiliated manufacturing and wholesale distributor,

located in India, and a 50 percent interest in an affiliated company located in the United Kingdom, which are both

accounted for under the equity method. The results of operations of these investments are not material to the results

of the operations of the Company. Investments in other companies with less than a 20 percent interest are carried at

cost. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. Luxottica Group prepares

its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in U.S. (“U.S.

GAAP”).

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions - Luxottica Group accounts for its foreign currency

denominated transactions and foreign operations in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

(“SFAS”) No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation. The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Euro,

which is the functional currency of the parent company and the reporting currency of the Company. Assets and

liabilities of foreign subsidiaries, which use the local currency as their functional currency, are translated at year-end

exchange rates. Results of operations are translated using the average exchange rates prevailing throughout the year.

The resulting cumulative translation adjustments have been recorded as a separate component of accumulated other

comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate in effect

at the transaction date. 

The Company has one subsidiary in a highly inflationary country. However, the operations of such subsidiary are

currently not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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The Company’s goodwill was tested for impairment during the first half of 2002, and, in November 2002, in

connection with the announcement of the termination of the license agreement for the production and distribution of

the Giorgio Armani and Emporio Armani lines, and in 2003, as required by the provisions of SFAS No.142. Such tests

were performed at the reporting unit level. The result of this process was the determination that the carrying value of

each reporting unit of the Company was not impaired and, as a result, the Company has not recorded an asset

impairment charge.

Actual results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2002, and 2003, and pro-forma results of operations

for the year ended December 31, 2001, had the Company applied the non-amortization provisions of SFAS No. 142

in those periods,  follows (thousands of Euro, except per share amounts):

2001 2002 2003

Reported net income 316,373 372,077 267,343

Add:  Goodwill amortization, net of tax 80,249 - - 

Adjusted net income 396,622 372,077 267,343

Basic earnings per share (Euro):

Reported net income 0.70  0.82  0.60

Goodwill Amortisation 0.18  0.00  0.00

Adjusted net income 0.88  0.82  0.60 

Diluted earnings per share (Euro):

Reported net income 0.70  0.82  0.59

Goodwill Amortisation 0.17  0.00  0.00

Adjusted net income 0.87  0.82  0.59

Trade Names - In connection with various acquisitions, Luxottica Group has recorded as intangible assets certain

trade names under the names of “LensCrafters”, “Ray-Ban”, “Sunglass Hut International” and “OPSM.” Trade names,

which the Company has determined have a finite life, continue to be amortized on a straight-line basis over periods

ranging from 20 to 25 years (see Note 6) and are subject to testing for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144,

Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Amortization of trade names for the years ended

December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, was € 23.8 million, € 36.1 million and € 37.3 million, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Luxottica Group’s long-lived assets, other than goodwill, are tested for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net carrying amount may not be

recoverable. When such events occur, the Company measures impairment by comparing the carrying value of the

long-lived asset to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and

Realized foreign exchange gains or losses during the year are recognized in consolidated income in such year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Luxottica Group considers investments purchased with a remaining maturity of

three months or less to be cash equivalents.  

Inventories - Luxottica Group’s manufactured inventories, approximately 82.5 percent and 76.9 percent of total

frame inventory for the years 2002 and 2003, respectively, are stated at the lower of cost, as determined under the

weighted-average method (which approximates the first-in, first-out method, “FIFO”), or market value. Retail inventory

not manufactured by the Company or its subsidiaries are stated at the lower of cost, as determined on a retail last-in,

first-out method (“LIFO”) or FIFO or weighted-average cost, or market value. The LIFO reserve was not material as of

December 31, 2002, and 2003.

Property, Plant and Equipment - Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost. Depreciation is

computed principally on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Estimated Useful Life

Buildings 19 to 40 years

Machinery and equipment 3 to 12 years

Aircraft 25 years

Other equipment 5 to 8 years

Leasehold improvements lesser of 10 years or the remaining life of the lease

Maintenance and repair expenses are expensed as incurred. Upon the sale or disposition of property and

equipment, the cost of the asset and the related accumulated depreciation and leasehold amortization are removed

from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the statements of income.

During 2003, management determined that the useful lives of certain machinery and equipment were longer than

originally expected based upon useful lives of similar fully amortized assets which are still in use. A change in

accounting estimate was recognized to reflect this decision, resulting in an immaterial increase of net income for the

period. 

Goodwill and Change in Accounting - In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued

SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, which requires all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, to be

accounted for under the purchase method. SFAS No. 141 also sets forth guidelines for applying the purchase method

of accounting in the determination of intangible assets, including goodwill acquired in a business combination, and

expands financial disclosures concerning business combinations consummated after June 30, 2001. The application

of SFAS No. 141 did not affect any previously reported amounts included in goodwill.

Effective January 1, 2002, Luxottica Group adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which

established new accounting and reporting requirements for goodwill and other intangible assets. SFAS No. 142

requires that goodwill amortization be discontinued and replaced with periodic tests of impairment.
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earnings per share calculations for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003. Basic earnings per share

are based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted

earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock

equivalents (options and warrants) outstanding during the period, except when the common stock equivalents are

anti-dilutive. The following is a reconciliation from basic to diluted shares outstanding used in the calculation of

earnings per share: 

(Thousands) 2001 2002 2003

Weighted average shares outstanding – basic 451,037.0 453,174.0 448,664.4

Effect of dilutive stock options 2,928.5 2,179.5 1,537.7

Weighted average shares outstanding – dilutive 453,965.5 455,353.5 450,202.1

Options not included in calculation of dilutive shares
as the exercise price was greater than the average 
price during the respective period - 1,974.7 4,046.6

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Financial instruments consist primarily of cash, marketable securities,

trade account receivables, accounts payable, long-term debt and derivative financial instruments. Luxottica Group

estimates the fair value of financial instruments based on interest rates available to the Company and by comparison

to quoted market prices. At December 31, 2002, and 2003, the fair value of the Company's financial instruments

approximated the carrying value except as otherwise disclosed. 

Stock-based Compensation - The Company has elected to follow the accounting provisions of Accounting

Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, for stock-based compensation

and to provide the disclosures required under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as

amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure (Note 10). No

stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in the net income, as all options granted under the plans have

an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying stock on the date of the grant. The following table

illustrates the effect on the net income and earnings per share had the compensation costs of the plans been

determined under a fair value based method as stated in SFAS No. 123: 

December 31, 2001 2002 2003

Net income  (Thousands of Euro): As reported 316,373 372,077 267,343
Pro-forma (Unaudited) 307,345 362,718 256,216

Basic earnings per share (Euro): As reported 0.70 0.82 0.60
Pro-forma (Unaudited) 0.68 0.80 0.57

Diluted earnings per share (Euro): As reported 0.70 0.82 0.59
Pro-forma (Unaudited) 0.68 0.80 0.57

their eventual disposition. If the sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying amount

of the assets, the Company would recognize an impairment loss, if determined to be necessary. Such impairment loss

is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset in

accordance with SFAS No. 144. The Company determined that, for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and

2003, there had been no impairment in the carrying value of its long-lived assets.

Accrual for Customers’ Right of Return - Luxottica Group records an accrual for estimated returns of

merchandise in connection with their conditions of sale. Such amount is included in the caption “Accrued expenses-

customers’ right of return.” 

Store Opening and Closing Costs - Store opening costs are charged to operations as incurred in accordance

with Statement of Position No. 98-5, Accounting for the Cost of Start-up Activities. The costs associated with closing

stores or facilities are recorded at fair value as such costs are incurred.

Income Taxes - Income taxes are recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes,

which requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events

that have been included in the Company's consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Under this method,

deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the difference between the consolidated financial

statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences

are expected to reverse.

Liability for Termination Indemnities - Termination indemnities represent amounts accrued for employees in

Australia, Austria, Greece, Israel, Italy and Japan, determined in accordance with labor laws and agreements in each

country (see Note 9).

Revenue Recognition - Revenues from sales of products are recognized at the time of shipment, when title and

the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been assumed by the customer, or upon receipt by the

customer, depending on the terms of the sales agreement. In connection with the conditions of sale in certain

countries, certain subsidiaries of the Company record as a liability an amount based on an estimate of anticipated

returns of merchandise by customers in subsequent periods.  Such amount is included in the consolidated balance

sheets under the caption "Accrued expenses-customers’ right of return.” Revenues from retail sales, including Internet

and catalog sales, are recorded upon customer purchase.

Pervasiveness of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Earnings per Share - Luxottica Group calculates the basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with

SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share. Net income available to shareholders is the same for the basic and diluted
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by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligation under certain guarantees it has issued. The initial

recognition and measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees

issued or modified after December 31, 2002, and the disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements

ending after December 15, 2002. The adoption of this Interpretation did not have a material impact on the Company’s

consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest

Entities (“FIN 46-R”), to address certain FIN No. 46 implementation issues. This interpretation clarifies the application

of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, for companies that have interests in

entities that are Variable Interest Entities (VIE) as defined under FIN No. 46. According to this interpretation, if a

company has an interest in a VIE and is at risk for the majority of the VIE’s expected losses, or receives a majority of

the VIE’s expected gains, it shall consolidate the VIE. FIN No. 46-R also requires additional disclosures by primary

beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders. For entities acquired or created before February 1, 2003,

this interpretation is effective no later than the end of the first interim or reporting period ending after March 15, 2004,

except for those VIE’s that are considered to be special purpose entities for which the effective date is no later than

the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. The Company does not hold

any significant interests in VIE’s that would require consolidation or additional disclosure. 

In December 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 (revised December 2003), Employer's Disclosures about

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits ("SFAS No. 132-R").  SFAS No. 132-R amends the disclosure

requirements contained in SFAS No. 132 to require additional disclosures about assets, obligations, cash flows, and

net periodic benefit cost of the defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefit plans. SFAS No. 132-R

is effective for the Company’s domestic plans beginning with fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003, and the

foreign plans beginning with fiscal years ending after June 15, 2004.  The adoption of SFAS No. 132-R did not have a

material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.   

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies SFAS No. 133 for the financial accounting and reporting of

derivative instruments and hedging activities and requires that contracts with similar characteristics be accounted for

on a comparable basis. The provisions of SFAS No. 149 are effective for contracts entered into or modified after June

30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designed after June 30, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No.149 did not have a

material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of

both Liabilities and Equity. SFAS No.150 establishes standards on the classification and measurement of certain

financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. The provisions of SFAS No.150 are effective for

financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and to all other instruments that exist as of

beginning of the first interim financial reporting period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 150

The fair value of options granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model

with the following weighted average assumptions:

2001 2002 2003

Dividend yield 0.53% 0.70% 1.06%

Risk-free interest rate 5.74% 4.48% 3.65%

Expected option life (years) 5 5 5

Expected volatility 53.58% 47.04% 36.00%

Weighted average fair value (Euro) 8.00 7.37 5.45

The Company recognizes forfeitures as they occur.

Derivative Financial Instruments - Effective January 1, 2001, Luxottica Group adopted SFAS No. 133,

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS  No. 133, as amended and interpreted,

establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments

embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities.

SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivatives, whether designed in hedging relationship or not, be recorded on the

balance sheet at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them. If a derivative is designated as a fair-

value hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative and the related change in the hedge item are recognized in

operations. If a derivative is designated as cash-flow hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in

other comprehensive income (“OCI”) in the consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity and are recognized in the

consolidated statements of income when the hedged item affects operations. For a derivative that does not qualify as

a cash flow hedge, changes in fair value are recognized in operations.

Luxottica Group uses derivative financial instruments, principally interest rate and currency swap agreements as

part of its risk management policy to reduce its exposure to market risks from changes in interest and foreign

exchange rates. Although it has not done in the past, the Company may enter into other derivative financial

instruments when it assesses that the risk can be hedged effectively. 

On January 1, 2001, as part of the transition adjustment related to the adoption of SFAS No. 133, the Company

recorded a liability for the fair value of the currency swap and recorded a reduction to OCI of approximately € 7.7

million, net of tax (US$ 7 million) as a cumulative transition adjustment for its derivative as a cash flow type hedge

upon adoption SFAS No. 133. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No.

45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of

Indebtedness of Other, which required that a guarantor recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair

value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. FIN No. 45 also elaborates on the disclosures to be made
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3 INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following (thousands of Euro):

December 31,

2002 2003
Raw materials and packaging 64,581 62,209
Work-in process 22,624 25,363
Finished goods 318,827 316,644

TOTAL 406,032 404,216

4 ACQUISITIONS AND INVESTMENTS

Sunglass Hut International, Inc.

On February 20, 2001, Luxottica Group formed an indirect wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary, Shade Acquisition

Corp., for the purpose of making a tender offer for all the outstanding common stock of Sunglass Hut

International, Inc. (“SGHI”), a publicly traded company on the NASDAQ National Market. The tender offer

commenced on March 5, 2001, and was completed on March 30, 2001. On April 4, 2001, Shade Acquisition

Corp. was merged with and into SGHI and SGHI became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As

such, the results of SGHI have been consolidated into the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of the

acquisition date. The acquisition was accounted by using the purchase method and, accordingly, the purchase

price of € 558 million (including approximately € 33.9 million of acquisition-related expenses) was allocated to the

assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair value at the date of the acquisition. This included an

independent valuation of the value of intangibles, including trade names. As a result of the final independent

valuation, which was completed in March 2002, the aggregate balance of goodwill and other intangibles previously

recorded as of December 31, 2001, increased by approximately € 147 million. The excess of purchase price over

net assets acquired ("goodwill") has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. 

did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Information Expressed in U.S. Dollars - The Company’s consolidated financial statements are stated in Euro,

the currency of the country in which the parent company is incorporated and operates. The translation of Euro

amounts into U.S.Dollar amounts is included solely for the convenience of international readers and has been made at

the rate of € 1 to U.S.$ 1.2597. Such rate was determined by the noon buying rate of the Euro to the U.S. Dollar as

certified for custom purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York as of December 31, 2003. Such translations

should not be construed as representations that Euro amounts could be converted into the U.S. Dollar at that or any

other rate.

Reclassifications - The presentation of certain prior year information has been reclassified to conform to the

current year presentation. 

2 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Fixed Assets - In January 2002, a subsidiary of Luxottica Group acquired certain assets for € 28.5 million and

the assumption of a bank loan from “Partimmo S.a.S.”, a company owned by the Company’s Chairman. The assets

acquired were a building, including all improvements for a total cost of € 42.0 million. The Company’s headquarter is

located in this building. The bank loan acquired had an outstanding balance of € 20.6 million on such date (€ 19.0

million as of December 31, 2003). In connection with the acquisition of this building the Company’s subsidiary entered

into an agreement with the Company’s Chairman who leases for € 0.5 million annually a portion of this building. The

expiration date of this lease is 2010.

Investment - On December 31, 2001, a U.S. subsidiary of the Company held 1,205,000 of the Company’s

ordinary shares, which had been previously purchased at a cost of US$ 3.1 million (€ 2.4 million at historical exchange

rates). These shares were sold during 2002, for proceeds of US$ 8.8 million (€ 9.3 million). The after-tax net gain of

US$ 6.5 million (€ 6.9 million) was recorded as an increase to the Company’s additional paid-in capital balance.

Approximately 63 percent of these shares were sold to a related party with an after-tax net gain of US$ 4.3 million (€

4.4 million).

License Agreement - The Company has a worldwide exclusive license agreement to manufacture and distribute

opthalmic products under the brand name Brooks Brothers. The Brooks Brothers tradename is owned by Retail

Brand Alliance, Inc., which is controlled by a Director of the Company. The license agreement expired on March 31,

2003, and is currently under renewal negotiations. Currently, the Company and Retail Brand Alliance have agreed to

continue under the old conditions until the new agreement is finalized. Royalties paid to Retail Brand Alliance, Inc. for

such agreement were € 1.4 million and € 1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, and 2003, respectively.
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First American Health Concepts, Inc.

During 2001, Luxottica Group acquired all outstanding shares of First American Health Concepts, Inc. (“FAHC”), a

publicly traded company on the American Stock Exchange, for approximately € 27.7 million (US$ 23.5 million), net

of cash acquired (€ 3.6 million or US$ 3 million). FAHC markets and administers vision care plans throughout the

U.S.. FAHC tangible assets and liabilities assumed were insignificant individually and in aggregate and, accordingly,

substantially the entire purchase price was allocated to goodwill. No pro-forma financial information is presented,

as the acquisition was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

OPSM Group Limited

In May 2003, Luxottica Group formed an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary in Australia, Luxottica South Pacific Pty

Limited, for the purpose of making a cash offer for all outstanding shares, options and performance rights of

OPSM Group Limited (“OPSM”), a publicly traded company on the Australian Stock Exchange. The cash offer

commenced on June 16, 2003, has received acceptances which increased Luxottica’s relevant interest in OPSM

shares to 50.68 percent on August 8, 2003, and was completed on September 3, 2003. At the close of the offer,

Luxottica South Pacific held 82.57 percent of OPSM’s ordinary shares. As consequence of the acquisition, all

options and performance rights were cancelled. As a result of Luxottica South Pacific Pty Limited acquiring the

majority of OPSM’s shares on August 8, 2003, OPSM’s financial position and results of operations are

consolidated into the Company’s financial statements as of August 1, 2003. Results of operations for the seven

day period ended August 7, 2003, were immaterial. The acquisition was accounted for in accordance with SFAS

No.141, and accordingly, the purchase price of € 253.7 million or Australian Dollar (“A$”) 442.7 million (including

approximately A$ 7.2 million of acquisition-related expenses) was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed based on their fair value at the date of the acquisition. This included an independent valuation of the

value of intangibles, including trade names which have been appraised in € 141 million (A$ 246 million). The

valuation of OPSM’s acquired assets and assumed liabilities is preliminary and, as a result, the allocation of the

purchase price is subject to modification. Management believes that the valuation will be finalized by June 2004.

The acquisition of OPSM was made as result of the Company’s strategy to expand its retail business in Australia

and New Zealand and become a leading player in the Australian prescription segment. 

The purchase price and expenses have been allocated based upon the valuation of the Company’s acquired

assets and liabilities assumed as follows:

Thousands of Euro

Assets purchased:

Cash and cash equivalents 17,023

Inventories 90,034

Property, plant and equipment 113,212

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 14,717

Accounts receivable 2,161

Trade name (useful life of 25 years, no residual value) 340,858

Other assets including deferred tax assets 34,657

Liabilities assumed:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (101,020)

Other current liabilities (52,200)

Deferred tax liabilities (135,340)

Long-term debt (128,691)

Bank overdraft (104,155)

Fair Value of Net Assets 91,256

Goodwill 466,790

TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE 558,046

Pro-forma consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2001, assuming the acquisition

took place on January 1, 2001:

Thousands of Euro, except per share data - Unaudited December 31,

2001

Sales 3,211,063

Operating Income 490,998

Net Income 297,851

No. of Shares (Thousands) - Basic 451,037

No. of Shares (Thousands) - Diluted 453,965

Earnings per Share (Euro) - Basic 0.66

Earnings per Share (Euro) - Diluted 0.66
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Preliminarily, the purchase price and expenses have been allocated based upon the valuation of the Company’s

acquired assets and liabilities, assumed as follows (reported at the date of acquisition exchange rate):

Thousands of Euro

Assets purchased:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,990
Inventories 23,623
Property, plant and equipment 49,781
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7,433
Accounts receivable 1,064
Trade name (useful life of 25 years, no residual value) 141,195
Other assets including deferred tax assets 12,616
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (31,434)
Other current liabilities (11,426)
Deferred tax liabilities (42,359)
Minority interests (11,246)
Bank overdraft (42,914)
Fair Value of Net Assets 102,323
Goodwill 151,353

TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE 253,676

Pro-forma consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003,

assuming the acquisition took place at January 1, 2001:

Thousands of Euro, except per share data - Unaudited December 31,

2001 2002 2003

Sales 3,389,289 3,426,624 2,991,112
Operating Income 523,400 615,764 439,676
Net Income 319,686 372,987 266,188
No. of Shares (Thousands) - Basic 451,037 453,174 448,664
No. of Shares (Thousands) - Diluted 453,965 455,353 450,202
Earnings per Share - Basic 0.71 0.82 0.59
Earnings per Share - Diluted 0.70 0.82 0.59

Non recurring items included in the pro-forma consolidated statements:

Sales 82,667 - -

Operating Income 2,750 - -

Net Income / (Loss) (7,238) - -

IC Optics

On January 15, 2003, the Company announced the signing of a worldwide license agreement for the design,

production and distribution of Versace, Versus and Versace Sport sunglasses and prescription frames. The initial

ten-year agreement is renewable for an additional ten years. The transaction was completed through the purchase

of IC Optics Group (“IC Optics”), an Italian-based Group that produced and distributes eyewear, for an aggregate

amount of € 5.4 million. Prior to this transaction, Gianni Versace S.p.A. and Italocremona S.p.A. held IC Optics

through a 50/50 joint venture. The acquisition was accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141 and,

accordingly, the purchase price has been allocated to the fair market value of the assets and liabilities of 

the company acquired including an intangible asset for the license agreement for an amount of approximately 

€ 28.8 million and goodwill for an amount of approximately € 10.7 million. Further, an amount of € 25 million has

been paid for the option right, which enables the Company to extend the original royalty agreement for an

additional ten-years. No pro-forma financial information is presented, as the acquisition was not material to the

Company’s consolidated financial statements.

E.I.D.

On July 23, 2003, the Company announced the signing of a ten-year worldwide license agreement for exclusive

production and distribution of prescription frames and sunglasses with the Prada and Miu Miu names. The deal

was finalized through Luxottica Group’s purchase of two Prada’s fully-owned companies named E.I.D. Italia and

E.I.D. Luxembourg, that produce and distribute eyewear, for the amount of € 26.5 million. The acquisition was

accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141 and, accordingly, the excess of purchase price over net assets

acquired has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as goodwill of approximately 

€ 29.7 million. The valuation of acquired assets and assumed liabilities is preliminary and, as a result, the allocation

of the purchase price is subject to modification. No pro-forma financial information is presented, as the acquisition

was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

Other Acquisitions and Establishments:

- In 2001, Luxottica Group established a new subsidiary, Luxottica Poland Sp. Z.o.o, which is 75 percent owned by

the Company. Luxottica Poland is a wholesale distributor with an initial investment of approximately € 0.1 million.

- In 2001, Luxottica Group acquired the remaining interest in some manufacturing and wholesale distributors (Tristar

Optical Co., Ltd and Luxottica Australia PTY, Ltd) for an aggregate cash consideration of € 8.5 million. These

subsidiaries have been accounted for as step acquisitions and the Company has recorded goodwill of

approximately € 4.8 million in connection therewith.

- In 2001, Luxottica Group acquired 51 percent of capital stock of Mirarian Marketing Ltd for an initial investment of

€ 1.9 million. The subsidiary, which is based in Singapore, is engaged in marketing and sales activity of the

Company’s products in Asia.  
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- During 2002, the Company acquired six retail companies for an aggregate amount of € 35.0 million (US$ 33.5

million). All tangible assets and liabilities assumed were insignificant individually and in aggregate and, accordingly,

substantially the entire purchase price was allocated to goodwill. No pro-forma financial information is presented,

as the acquisitions were not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements. One of these companies

is accounted for under the equity method.

- At the end of 2002, the Company established a new wholly-owned subsidiary in China, Luxottica Tristar Optical

Co., with an initial investment of € 3.8 million. The subsidiary is engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of

frames worldwide.  

- In 2003, Luxottica Holland B.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired the remaining interest in Mirari Japan, a

wholesale distributor for an aggregate cash consideration of € 18 million. The subsidiary has been accounted for

as step acquisition and the Company has recorded goodwill of approximately € 16.9 million in connection

therewith.

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Property, plant and equipment-net consisted of the following (thousands of Euro):

December 31,

2002 2003

Land and buildings, including leasehold improvements 451,900 416,752

Machinery and equipment 366,027 428,644

Aircraft 25,185 25,908

Other equipment 263,340 268,138

Building, held under capital lease 2,332 2,332

1,108,784 1,141,774

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (602,239) (644,339)

TOTAL 506,545 497,435

Depreciation and amortization expense of property, plant and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2001,

2002, and 2003, was € 101.1 million, € 103.8 million and € 92.2 million, respectively. Included in other equipment is

approximately € 25.1 million and € 16.5 million of construction in progress as of December 31, 2002, and 2003,

respectively.

6 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET

Certain goodwill balances are denominated in currencies other than Euro (the reporting currency) and as such,

balances may fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates, Goodwill consisted of the following (thousands of Euro): 

December 31,

2002 2003

Goodwill, which arose in connection with the acquisition of LensCrafters, (a). 489,944 407,801

Goodwill, which arose in connection with the acquisition of Ray-Ban, (b). 228,354 228,354

Goodwill, which arose in connection with the acquisition 
of Sunglass Hut International, (see Note 4) (c). 409,036 373,216

Goodwill, which arose in connection with the acquisition of OPSM (see Note 4) (d). - 153,976

Goodwill, which arose in connection with other business acquisitions, (see note 4) (e).117,326 165,567

TOTAL 1,244,660 1,328,914

(a) The acquisition of LensCrafters in May 1995 was accounted for by the purchase method and, accordingly, the

purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their fair values at

the date of acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired (US$ 698.9 million

at the date of acquisition) was recorded as goodwill in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. With the

Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 142, effective January 1, 2002, goodwill is no longer subjected to periodic

amortization, but rather is subjected to an annual impairment test. 

In connection with the acquisition of LensCrafters, Luxottica Group recorded certain liabilities for commitments

and other costs expected to be paid in future periods. As a result of negotiations with vendors and other

settlements, the Company settled these liabilities at an amount less than the accrual set up at the date of the

acquisition. Accordingly, included in the consolidated statements of income for fiscal 2001, and 2002, is income of

approximately € 10.1 million (US$ 9 million) and € 3.8 million (US$ 4.0 million), net of taxes, for the final settlement

of these liabilities, respectively.

(b) The acquisition of Ray-Ban in 1999 was accounted for by the purchase method and, accordingly, the purchase

price has been allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their fair values at the date of

acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired (€ 272.9 million at the date of

acquisition) was recorded as goodwill in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. With the Company’s

adoption of SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002, goodwill is no longer subjected to periodic amortization, but

rather is subjected to an annual impairment test.  

(c) The acquisition of Sunglass Hut International in 2001, was accounted for by the purchase method and,
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accordingly, the purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on

their fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired

(€ 466.8 million at the date of acquisition) was recorded as goodwill in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets. With the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002, goodwill is no longer subjected

to periodic amortization, but rather is subjected to an annual impairment test. 

(d) The acquisition of OPSM in 2003 was accounted for by the purchase method and, accordingly, the purchase price

has been preliminary allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their fair values at the

date of acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired (€ 151.4 million at the

date of acquisition) was recorded as goodwill in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

(e) Goodwill was also created as the difference between the purchase price paid over the value of net assets of many

additional businesses acquired, resulting from retail locations and wholesales entities over the past several years.

Intangible assets-net consisted of the following (thousands of Euro):

December 31,
2002 2003

LensCrafters trade name, the value of which has been established 

as part of an independent valuation performed in connection with 

the acquisition of LensCrafters, net of accumulated amortization 

of € 63,996 and € 60,252 as of December 31, 2002, and 2003, respectively (f). 145,827 114,392

Ray-Ban acquired trade names, net of accumulated amortization 
of € 48,896 and € 62,866 as of December 31, 2002, and 2003, respectively (f). 230,305 216,334

Sunglass Hut trade name, the value of which has been established as part 
of an independent valuation performed in connection with the acquisition 
of Sunglass Hut, net of accumulated amortization of € 20,162 and € 26,371
as of December 31, 2002, and 2003, (see note 4) (f). 267,868 213,368

OPSM trade name, the value of which has been established as part 
of an independent valuation performed in connection with the acquisition 
of OPSM, net of accumulated amortization of € 2,444 
as of December 31, 2003, (see note 4) (f). - 144,205

Other intangibles, net (see note 4). 27,866 76,399

TOTAL 671,866 764,698

(f) The LensCrafters, Ray-Ban, Sunglass Hut International and OPSM trade names are amortized on a straight-line

basis over a period of 25 years, 20 years, 25 years and 25 years, respectively, as the Company believes these

trade names to be finite lived assets.

Projected intangible assets amortization for each of the following years (thousands of Euro):

2004 40,936

2005 40,936

2006 39,136

2007 39,349

2008 39,266

7 INCOME TAXES

Income before provision for income taxes and the provision for income taxes consisted of the following (thousands

of Euro):

December 31,

2001 2002 2003

Income before provision for income taxes

Italian companies 336,521 229,527 146,055
Foreign companies 104,790 309,915 243,738

TOTAL 441,311 539,442 389,793

Provision for income taxes

Current
Italian companies 15,079 52,616 17,313
Foreign companies 124,354 117,865 87,150

TOTAL 139,433 170,481 104,463

Deferred

Italian companies (10,619) (14,204) 14,174
Foreign companies (5,364) 6,419 (1,309)

(15,983) (7,785) 12,865

TOTAL 123,450 162,696 117,328

The Italian statutory tax rate is the result of two components: national (“IRPEG”) and regional (“IRAP”) tax. IRAP

could have a substantially different base for its computation as to IRPEG. 
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Reconciliation between the Italian statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate is as follows:

December 31, 2001 2002 2003
Italian statutory tax rate 40.3% 40.3% 38.3%

Aggregate effect of different rates in foreign jurisdictions (1.6%) (2.3%) (1.9%)

Permanent differences, principally losses in subsidiary companies 
funded through capital contributions, net of non-deductible goodwill (10.7%) (7.8%) (6.3%)

Effective rate 28.0% 30.2% 30.1%

For income tax purposes, the Company and its Italian subsidiaries file tax returns on a separate company basis.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2002, and 2003, respectively were comprised of

(thousands of Euro):

December 31, 2002 2003
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)

Current portion:
Inventory 43,459 29,733
Insurance and other reserves 16,993 13,551
Recorded reserves 24,080 17,340
Net operating losses – carryforward 48,120 71,429
Loss on investments 14,128 5,452
Dividends (5,616) (13,112)
Trade name - (5,506)
Other, net 6,924 15,914
Valuation allowance - (10,350)

Net current deferred tax assets 148,088 124,451

Non-current portion:
Difference in basis of fixed assets (53,486) (53,003)
Net operating losses – carryforward 128,016 81,724
Sale of businesses 2,023 1,711
Recorded reserves 5,265 5,142
Occupancy reserves 5,473 4,040
Depreciation (3,042) (3,529)
Employee-related reserves (including minimum pension liability) 21,845 19,042
Trade name (104,643) (121,108)
Other intangibles - (10,734)
Trade mark accelerated amortization (55,777) (68,255)
Other, net 8,806 9,947
Valuation allowance (76,285) (26,079)

Net non-current deferred tax liabilities (121,805) (161,102)

In 2003, the Italian statutory tax rate was reduced to 38.25 percent. As a consequence, deferred tax assets and

liabilities have been recomputed in line with the new tax rate. The immaterial result of the change in the Italian tax rate

has been included in deferred tax expense.

Tax years for Italian companies are open from 1998 and subject to review pursuant to Italian law. Certain Luxottica

Group companies have been subject to tax reviews for previous years. Management believes no significant unaccrued

liabilities are expected to arise from the related tax reviews.

As of December 31, 2003, the taxes that would be due on the distribution of retained earnings to the related

parent company, including net earnings of the year, of subsidiaries for 2003 and prior years would approximate € 31.6

million. Luxottica Group has not provided an accrual for taxes on such distributions, nor has it provided an accrual for

taxes on its investments in such subsidiaries as the likelihood of distribution is remote and such earnings and

investments are deemed to be permanently reinvested. In connection with the earnings for 2003 of certain

subsidiaries, the Company has provided for an accrual for Italian income taxes related to declared dividends of

earnings. 

As of December 31, 2002, and 2003, the Company has recorded an aggregate valuation allowance of € 76.3

million and € 36.4 million, respectively, against deferred tax assets recorded in connection with net operating losses. 

In connection with various capital contributions, certain Italian subsidiaries, which file tax returns on a separate

company basis, have incurred net operating losses, which expire in five years from the period in which the tax loss

was incurred. Since it is management’s belief that since such net operating losses are not more likely than not to be

realized in future periods, valuation allowances have been recorded in the Company’s consolidated financial

statements. Management will continue to evaluate the likelihood of realizing such deferred tax assets and will reverse

the related valuation allowance when the realization of the deferred tax assets become more likely than not.
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8 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following (thousands of Euro):

December 31, 2002 2003
Credit agreement with various financial institutions (a) 675,000 875,000

UniCredito Italiano credit facility (b) 333,810 115,107

Senior unsecured guaranteed notes (c) - 238,152

Capital lease obligations, payable in installments through 2005 1,040 745

Loans with banks and other third parties, interest at various rates (from 2.47 to 4.11 

percent per annum), payable in installments through 2017. 

Certain subsidiaries' fixed assets are pledged as collateral for such loans 24,139 24,423

Total 1,033,989 1,253,427

Less: current maturities (178,335) (390,935)

Long-term debt 855,654 862,492

(a) In June 2000, the Company entered into a credit agreement with several financial institutions. The credit facility

provided for a total maximum borrowing of € 500 million. This unsecured credit facility expired in June 2003, and

the amount outstanding was repaid in full.

In March 2001, the Company entered into a new credit facility with Banca Intesa S.p.A. to finance the acquisition

of Sunglass Hut International, as described earlier. The credit facility was unsecured and on December 27, 2002,

the amount outstanding at that date was repaid in full. 

In December 2002, the Company entered into a new unsecured credit facility with Banca Intesa S.p.A. for a

maximum available line of € 650 million. This line of credit includes a term portion of € 500 million which will

require a balloon payment of € 200 million in June 2004 and equal quarterly installments of principal of € 50

million subsequent to that date. Interest accrues on the term portion based on Euribor as defined in the agreement

plus 0.45 percent (2.592 percent on December 31, 2003). The revolving portion allows the Company a maximum

line available of € 150 million which can be borrowed and repaid until final maturity. At December 31, 2003, the

revolving portion was totally utilized. Interest accrues on the revolving loan at Euribor as defined in the agreement

plus 0.45 percent (2.594 percent on December 31, 2003). The final maturity of all outstanding principal amounts

and interest is December 27, 2005. The Company has the option to choose interest periods of one, two or three

months. The credit facility contains certain financial and operating covenants. The Company was in compliance

with these covenants as of December 31, 2003.

In December 2002, the Company entered into two interest rate swap transactions (the “Intesa Swaps”) beginning

with an aggregate maximum notional amount of € 250 million, which will decrease by € 100 million on June 27,

2004, and by € 25 million during each subsequent three-month period. The Intesa Swaps will expire on

December 27, 2005. The Intesa Swaps were entered into as a cash flow hedge of a portion of the Banca Intesa 

€ 650 million unsecured credit facility disclosed above. As such, changes in the fair value of the Intesa Swaps are

included in OCI until they are realized in the financial statements. The Intesa Swaps exchange the floating rate

based on Euribor to a fixed rate of 2.985 percent per annum.  

As disclosed in Note 4(c), in September 2003 the Company acquired 82.57 percent of the ordinary shares of

OPSM and more than 90 percent of performance rights and options of OPSM for an aggregate of A$ 442.7 million

(€ 253.7 million), including acquisition expenses. The purchase price was paid for with the proceeds of a new

credit facility with Banca Intesa S.p.A. of € 200 million, in addition to other short-term lines available. The new

credit facility includes a € 150 million term loan, which will require equal semiannual installments of principal

repayments of € 30 million starting September 30, 2006, until the final maturity date. Interest accrues on the term

loan at Euribor (as defined in the agreement) plus 0.55 percent (2.692 percent on December 31, 2003). The

revolving loan provides borrowing availability of up to € 50 million; amounts borrowed under the revolving portion

can be borrowed and repaid until final maturity. At December 31, 2003, the revolving portion was totally utilized.

Interest accrues on the revolving loan at Euribor (as defined in the agreement) plus 0.55 percent (2.683 percent on

December 31, 2003). The final maturity of the credit facility is September 30, 2008. The Company can select

interest periods of one, two or three months. The credit facility contains certain financial and operating covenants.

The Company is in compliance with those covenants as of December 31, 2003.

In May 2003, the Company entered into an unsecured credit facility with Credito Emiliano (“Credem”) for a

borrowing of € 25 million. This line of credit requires a ballon payment when it expires on November 2004. Interest

payments are due on a quarterly basis at fixed rate of 2.925 percent.

(b) In June 2002, U.S. Holdings, a U.S. subsidiary of the Company, entered into a US$ 350 million credit facility with a

group of four Italian banks led by UniCredito Italiano S.p.A. The credit facility is guaranteed by Luxottica Group and

matures in June 2005. The term loan portion of the credit facility provided US$ 200 million of borrowing and

requires equal quarterly principal installments beginning March 2003. The revolving loan portion of the credit facility

allows for a maximum borrowing of US$ 150 million. Interest accrues at Libor as defined in the agreement plus 

0.5 percent (1.641 percent at December 31, 2003) and the credit facility allows the Company to select interest

periods of one, two or three months. The credit facility contains certain financial and operating covenants. The

Company is in compliance with those covenants as of December 31, 2003.

The U.S. subsidiary entered into a Convertible Swap Step-Up (“Swap 2002”) with an initial notional amount of 

US$ 275 million which decreases quarterly by US$ 20 million starting March 17, 2003. The Swap 2002, expiration

date is June 17, 2005. Swap 2002, was entered into to convert the UniCredito floating rate credit agreement to a

mixed position rate agreement. Swap 2002, allows the U.S. subsidiary to pay a fixed rate of interest if Libor
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Liability for Termination Indemnities - The liability for termination indemnities represents amounts accrued for

employees in Australia, Austria, Greece, Israel, Italy and Japan, determined in accordance with labor laws and labor

agreements in each respective country. Each year, the Company adjusts its accrual based upon headcount, changes

in compensation level and inflation. This liability is not funded. Therefore, the accrued liability represents the amount

that would be paid if all employees were to resign or be terminated as of the balance sheet date. This treatment is in

accordance with SFAS No. 112, Employers' Accounting for Post Employment Benefits, which requires employers to

expense the costs of benefit paid before retirement (i.e. severance) over the service lives of employees. The charge to

earnings during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, aggregated € 7.8 million, € 5.7 million and 

€ 12.5 million, respectively.

Defined Benefit Plans - During 1998, U.S. Holdings merged all of its pension plans into a single plan sponsored

by a U.S. subsidiary. This plan covers substantially all employees of the U.S. subsidiaries and affiliates. This pension

plan was amended effective January 1, 2002, to allow the employees of Sunglass Hut International to participate in

the plan.

The Company’s funding policy is in accordance with minimum funding requirements of the U.S. Employee

Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended. No contributions were made in 2001, and 2002. Net periodic

pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, includes the following components

(thousands of Euro):

December 31,

2001 2002 2003

Service cost 9,777 11,670 11,805

Interest cost 12,902 13,501 12,025

Expeted return on plan assets (16,124) (16,279) (13,321)

Amortization of actuarial loss - - 294

Amortization of prior service cost 780 745 623

Net periodic pension cost 7,335 9,637 11,426

remains under certain defined thresholds and for the U.S. subsidiary to receive an interest payment of the three

months Libor rate as defined in the agreement. This amount is settled net every three months. This derivative

instrument does not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133 and as such is marked to market with the

gain or losses from the change in value included in the consolidated income statements. A loss of € 2.6 million

and a gain of € 635 thousands are included in current operations in 2002, and 2003, respectively.          

(c) On September 3, 2003, U.S. Holdings closed a private placement of US$ 300 million (€ 238 million) of senior

unsecured guaranteed notes (the “Notes”), issued in three series (Series A, Series B and Series C). Interest on the

Series A Notes accrues at 3.94 percent per annum and interest on Series B and Series C Notes accrues at 4.45

percent per annum. The Series A and Series B Notes mature on September 3, 2008, and the Series C Notes

mature on September 3, 2010. The Series A and Series C Notes require annual prepayments beginning on

September 3, 2006, through the applicable Notes date of maturity. The Notes are guaranteed on a senior

unsecured basis by the Company and Luxottica S.r.l., a wholly-owned subsidiary. The Notes can be prepaid at

U.S. Holdings option under certain circumstances. The proceeds from the Notes were used for the repayment of

outstanding debt and for other working capital needs. The Notes contain certain financial and operating

covenants. The Company is in compliance with those covenants as of December 31, 2003.

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, U.S. Holdings entered into three interest rate swap agreements with

Deutsche Bank AG (the “DB Swap”). The three separate agreements, notional amounts, and interest payment

dates coincide with the Notes. The DB Swap exchanges the fixed rate of the Notes to a floating rate of the six

month Libor rate plus 0.6575 percent for the Series A Notes and to a floating rate of the six month Libor rate plus

0.73 percent for the Series B and Series C Notes. These swaps are treated as fair value hedges of the related

debt and qualify for the shortcut method of hedge accounting (assuming no ineffectiveness in a hedge in an

interest rate swap). Thus the interest income/expense on the swaps is recorded as an adjustment to the interest

expense on the debt effectively changing the debt from a fixed rate of interest to the swap rate.

Long-Term debt matures in the years subsequent to December 31, 2004, as follows (thousands of Euro):

Years ending December 31,

2005 404,525

2006 93,791

2007 123,339

2008 209,104

2009 10,510

Subsequent Years 21,223

TOTAL 862,492
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Plan assets were invested in equity securities, U.S. Government obligations, other fixed income securities and

money market funds.

Supplemental Retirement Plan - A U.S. subsidiary of the Company maintains an unfunded supplemental

retirement plan for participants of its pension plan to provide benefits in excess of amounts permitted under the

provisions of prevailing tax law. The pension liability associated with this plan is accrued using the same actuarial

methods and assumptions as those used for the subsidiary’s pension plan noted above, and such amounts are not

material to the consolidated financial statements.

Health Benefit Plans - A U.S. subsidiary of the Company partially subsidizes health care benefits for eligible

retirees. Included in other long-term liabilities on December 31, 2002, and 2003, is approximately € 1.6 million and €

1.5 million of accrued benefits, respectively.

Other Benefits - A U.S. subsidiary of the Company provides certain post-employment medical and life insurance

benefits. The Company’s accrued liability related to this obligation as of December 31, 2002, and 2003, was € 1.3

million and € 0.9 million, respectively. 

Savings Plan - The Company also sponsors a tax incentive savings plan covering all employees. U.S. Holdings

makes quarterly contributions in cash to the plan based on a percentage of employee contributions. Additionally, the

Company may make an annual discretionary contribution to the plan, which may be made in the Company’s American

Depositary Receipts (ADRs) or cash. Aggregate contributions made to the tax incentive savings plan by the Company

for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, were € 9.1 million, € 6.4 million and € 5.3 million,

respectively.

10 STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLANS

Stock Option Plan - Beginning in April 1998, certain officers and other key employee of the Company and its

subsidiaries were granted stock options of Luxottica Group under the Company’s stock option plan. The stock

options were granted at a price equal to the market value of the shares at the date of grant.  These options become

exercisable in three equal annual installments from the date of grant and expire on or before January 31, 2012.

As Luxottica Group has elected to apply APB Opinion No. 25, no compensation expense was recognized

because the option exercise price was equal to the fair market value on the date of grant. 

The following table summarizes key information pertaining to the Company’s defined benefit plan as of September

30, 2002, and 2003, the plan’s measurement date (thousands of Euro):

2002 2003

Change in benefits obligation:

• Benefit obligation, beginning of year 194,634 201,572

• Translation differences (29,365) (33,795)

• Service cost 10,518 10,599

• Interest cost 12,168 10,796

• Actuarial loss 20,219 9,025

• Benefits paid (6,602) (6,365)

Benefit obligation, end of year 201,572 191,832

Change in plan assets

• Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 180,860 132,550

• Translation differences (27,323) (22,223)

• Actual return (loss) in plan assets (14,385) 16,730

• Employer contribution - 2,382

• Benefits paid (6,602) (6,365)

Fair value of plan assets, end of year 132,550 123,074

Funded status (69,022) (68,758)

Unrecognized net actuarial gain 56,644 51,138

Unrecognized prior service cost 3,439 2,303

Accrued benefit costs (8,939) (15,317)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets consist of the following:

Liabilities:

• Accrued pension cost 8,939 15,317

• Additional minimum liability 41,565 35,160

Liabilities - Other long-term liabilities 50,504 50,477

Asset - Intangible Asset 3,439 2,303

Equity -  Other comprehensive income 38,126 32,587

Weighted average assumptions as of September 30:

• Discount rate 6.50% 6.00%

• Expected return on assets 9.00% 8.75%

• Rate of compensation increase 5.50% 4.75%
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Stock Incentive Plan - Luxottica Group granted stock options to certain employees under an incentive plan.

These options vest and became exercisable only if certain financial performance measures are met over a three year

period ending December 2004. As of December 31, 2003, there are 970,000 shares outstanding at an exercise price

of € 12.75 (US$ 16.06) per share. Compensation expense will be recognized for the options issued under the

incentive plan based on the market value of the underlying ordinary shares when the number of shares to be issued is

known. For the years ended December 31, 2002, and 2003, management believes that it is not probable that the

financial performance measures will be met and, as such, no interim measures of compensation expense have been

included in the statements of income for the periods presented.

11 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In June 2002, and 2003, at the Company’s Annual Shareholders Meetings, cash dividends of € 77.2 million and €

95.4 million, respectively, were approved. These amounts became payable in July 2002, and 2003, respectively. Italian

law requires that five percent of net income be retained as a legal reserve until this reserve is equal to one-fifth of the

issued share capital. As such, this legal reserve is not available for dividends to shareholders. Legal reserves of the

Italian entities included in retained earnings at December 31, 2002, and 2003, aggregated € 6.4 million and € 8.3

million, respectively. In addition, there is an amount of € 2.6 million, which represents other legal reserves of foreign

entities that is not available for dividends to shareholders.

On June 26, 2001, as consequence of the Euro conversion, an amount of € 3.8 million was recognized as free

capital stock increase.

In accordance with SFAS No. 87, Employer’s Accounting for Pensions, Luxottica Group has recorded a minimum

pension liability for underfunded plan of € 41.6 million and € 35.2 million as of December 31, 2002, and 2003,

respectively, representing the excess of unfunded accumulated benefits obligations over previously recorded pension

cost liabilities. A corresponding amount is recognized as an intangible asset except to the extent that these additional

liabilities exceed related unrecognized prior service cost and net obligation, in which case the increase in liabilities is

charged directly to shareholders’ equity. The principal cause of the deterioration of the funded status in the pension

liability was caused by negative returns from investments held in the worldwide equity market. As of December 31,

2002, and 2003, € 26.5 million and € 1.2 million, respectively, of the excess minimum liability, net of income taxes,

resulted in a charge to equity.

U.S. Holdings held at December 31, 2001, 1,205,000 of Luxottica Group’s ordinary shares, which had been

previously purchased at a cost of US$ 3.1 million (€ 2.9 million at December 31, 2002, noon buying rate). These

shares were sold during 2002, for proceeds of US$ 8.8 million (€ 9.3 million). The after-tax net gain of US$ 6.5 million

(€ 6.9 million) was recorded as an increase to the Company’s additional paid-in capital balance (Note 2).

In September 2002, the Board of Directors authorized U.S. Holdings to repurchase in the open market up to

The following table summarizes information about stock options for each year:

Number of Options Weighted Average 
Outstanding Exercise Price 

(Denominated in Euro) (3)

Outstanding as of January 1, 2001 6,731,900 6,80

Granted 2,079,300 17,08

Forfeitures (119,900) 10,34

Exercised (1,283,517) 6,49

Outstanding as of December 31, 2001 7,407,783 9,67

Granted 2,348,400 16,98

Forfeitures (248,367) 14,54

Exercised (1,397,783) 6,67

Outstanding as of December 31, 2002 8,110,033 11,51

Granted 2,397,300 10,51

Forfeitures (176,600) 11,77

Exercised (213,433) 6,97

Outstanding as of December 31, 2003 10,117,300 10,29

(3) For convenience all amounts are translated at the New York City Noon Buying Rate in effect at the end of each year

Stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2003, are summarized as follows:

Exercise Price denominated Number Number Remaining Life
in Euro (4) Outstanding Exercisable (Years)

7.38 908,000 908,000 3.1

4.38 1,409,000 1,409,000 4.1

9.52 1,473,100 1,473,100 5.1

12.07 1,801,400 1,179,100 6.1

14.13 2,181,000 727,000 7.1

10.51 2,344,800 - 8.1

(4) Certain options were granted in U.S. Dollars and have been converted for the footnote as of December 31, 2003, conversion rate of  
€ 1.00 = US$ to 1.2597

Included as an addition to the Company’s paid-in-capital account in fiscal 2002, and 2003, were € 3.9 million and

€ 0.3 million, respectively, of tax benefits the Company received from employees exercising these stock options.
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(Thousands of Euro) Manufacturing Retail Inter-Segments Consolidated
and Transactions and

Wholesale Corporate Adjustments

2003
Net sales 995,109 2,002,264 (172,737) (7) 2,824,636
Operating income 191,116 269,851 (29,180) (8) 431,787
Capital expenditures 23,580 57,708 - 81,288
Depreciation and amortization 45,208 68,606 21,026 (9) 134,840
Identifiable assets 1,528,074 876,661 1,507,941 (10) 3,912,676

2002
Net sales 1,128,670 2,204,747 (154,815) (7) 3,178,602
Operating income 287,627 319,425 (5,544) (8) 601,508
Capital expenditures 81,651 91,679 - 173,330
Depreciation and amortization 46,298 77,217 22,465 (9) 145,980
Identifiable assets 1,431,317 882,113 1,272,902 (10) 3,586,332

2001
Net sales 1,146,595 2,148,797 (194,263) (7) 3,101,129
Operating income 287,570 320,149 (98,227) (8) 509,492
Capital expenditures 45,801 77,674 - 123,475
Depreciation and amortization 63,162 84,288 64,457 (9) 211,907
Identifiable assets 1,327,993 954,653 1,665,716 (10) 3,948,362

11,500,000 ADRs of Luxottica Group, representing 2.5 percent of the authorized and issued share capital, during an

18-month period starting in September 2002. The actual amount and timing of the ADS purchases will depend on

market conditions and other factors. Through December 31, 2003, U.S. Holdings has purchased 6,434,786 ADSs

(1,911,700 in 2002) at an aggregate purchase price of € 69.9 million (US$ 88.1 million). In connection with the

repurchase, an amount of € 69.9 million has been accounted as treasury shares in the Company’s consolidated

financial statements. The market value of the stock as of December 31, 2003, was approximately € 88.8 million 

(US$ 111.9 million).

12 SEGMENTS AND RELATED INFORMATION

The Company adopted SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, in

1998. The Company operates in two industry segments: manufacturing and wholesale distribution, and retail

distribution. Through its manufacturing and wholesale distribution operations, the Company is engaged in the design,

manufacture, wholesale distribution and marketing of house and designer brand lines of mid- to premium-priced

prescription frames and sunglasses. The Company operates in the retail segment through its Retail Division,

consisting of LensCrafters, Sunglass Hut International, since April 2001, and OPSM, since August 2003. As of

December 31, 2003, LensCrafters operated 877 stores throughout the U.S. and Canada; Sunglass Hut operated

1,905 stores located in North America, Europe and Australia; and, OPSM operated over 600 stores trading under

three brands across all states and territories in Australia as well as in New Zealand, Hong Kong, Singapore and

Malaysia.

The following tables summarize the segmental and geographic information deemed essential by the Company’s

management for the purpose of evaluating the Company’s performance and for making decisions about future

allocations of resources.

The “Inter-segments transactions and corporate adjustments” column includes the elimination of inter-segment

activities and corporate related expenses not allocated to reportable segments. This has the effect of increasing

reportable operating profit for the manufacturing and wholesale and retail segments. Identifiable assets are those

tangible and intangible assets used in operations in each segment. Corporate identifiable assets are principally cash,

goodwill and trade names.
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vendor would not cause a significant impact on the future operations of the Company as it could replace this vendor

quickly with other third party and Company-manufactured products.

14 COMMITTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Royalty Agreements - The Company is obligated under non-cancelable distribution agreements with designers,

which expire at various dates through 2013. In accordance with the provisions of such agreements, the Company is

required to pay royalties and advertising fees based on a percentage of sales (as defined) with, in certain agreements,

minimum guaranteed payments in each year of the agreements. In the first half of 2003, the Company has terminated

its license agreement for the production and distribution of the Giorgio Armani and Emporio Armani eyewear

collections and has signed a ten-year worldwide license agreement for the production and distribution of eyewear of

Versace, Versus and Versace Sport eyewear collections. The agreement is renewable at the Company’s discretion for

an additional ten years. In the second part of 2003 a license agreement has been signed for the production and

distribution of Prada and Miu Miu eyewear collections. The Prada license agreement expiration date is in 2013.

Minimum payments required in each of the years subsequent to December 31, 2003, are detailed as follows

(thousands of Euro):

Years ending December 31,

2004 29,225

2005 19,279

2006 19,680 

2007 16,980 

2008 23,283

Subsequent Years 156,800

TOTAL 265,247

Leases and Licenses - The Company leases through its world-wide subsidiaries various retail store, plant,

warehouse and office facilities, as well as certain of its data processing and automotive equipment under operating

lease arrangements expiring between 2004 and 2015, with options to renew at varying terms. The lease and license

arrangements for the Company's U.S. retail locations often include escalation clauses and provisions requiring the

payment of incremental rentals, in addition to any established minimums, contingent upon the achievement of

specified levels of sales volume.

(Thousands of Euro) Italy (6) North Other (6) Adjustments and Consolidated
December 31, America (6) Eliminations 

2003
Net sales (5) 753,772 1,939,505 731,080 (599,721) 2,824,636
Operating income 184,929 226,226 63,813 (43,181) 431,787
Identifiable assets 1,087,097 2,077,855 802,918 (55,194) 3,912,676

2002
Net sales (5) 795,287 2,320,791 675,941 (613,417) 3,178,602
Operating income 207,250 323,038 82,187 (10,967) 601,508
Identifiable assets 974,412 2,405,462 374,933 (168,475) 3,586,332

2001
Net sales (5) 792,901 2,320,161 622,331 (634,264) 3,101,129
Operating income 240,581 328,518 68,752 (128,359) 509,492
Identifiable assets 1,161,117 2,794,149 375,191 (382,095) 3,948,362

(5) No single customer represents five percent or more of sales in any year presented
(6) Sales, operating income and identifiable assets are the result of combination of legal entities located in the same geographical area 
(7) Inter-segment elimination of net sales relates to intercompany sales from the manufacturing and wholesale segment to the retail segment
(8) Inter-segment elimination of operating income mainly relates to depreciation and amortization of corporate identifiable assets and profit-in-stock
elimination for frames manufactured by the wholesale business and included in the retail segment inventory
(9) Inter-segment elimination of depreciation and amortization relates to depreciation and amortization of corporate identifiable assets
(10) Inter-segment elimination of identifiable assets includes mainly the net value of goodwill and trade names of acquired retail businesses attributed to
corporate

Certain amounts for the years 2001 and 2002, have been reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation.

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable are

limited due to the large number of customers comprising the Company's customer base. Ongoing credit evaluations

of customer's financial condition are performed.

Concentration of Sales under License Agreement - In 1999, the Company signed a license agreement for the

design production and distribution of frames under the Chanel trade name. Since 1999 Chanel sales have been

increasing representing about four percent of total sales in 2003. On February 18, 2004, the Company announced the

renewal of the licensing agreement for the design, production and worldwide distribution of prescription frames and

sunglasses with Chanel. The license agreement expires in 2008.

Concentration of Supplier Risk - As result of the Sunglass Hut International acquisition, Oakley Inc. has

become the Company’s largest supplier. For fiscal years 2001, 2002 and 2003, Oakley accounted for approximately

9.1 percent, 11.8 percent and 8.7 percent of the Company’s total merchandise purchases, respectively. In December

2001, the Company signed a three year purchase contract with Oakley. Management believes that the loss of this
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dismiss certain other claims made by Lantis, leaving only the breach of contract claim. The Company in November

2000 filed its answer and counterclaim against Lantis. In December 2002, the parties entered into a mutual release

and settlement agreement and the case was dismissed with prejudice. This settlement did not have a material impact

on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for 2002.

In March 2002, an individual plaintiff commenced an action in the California Superior Court for the County of San

Francisco against LensCrafters, the Company’s subsidiary that operates as a licensed California vision health care

service plan, certain of the Company’s other subsidiaries and Luxottica Group S.p.A., alleging that the relationships

between those companies violate certain California statutes governing optometrists and opticians and constitute

unlawful or unfair business practices.  The plaintiffs named in the second amended complaint seek certification of the

case as a class action, and remedies including an injunction against the allegedly unlawful practices, disgorgement

and restitution of allegedly unjustly obtained sums, and unspecified compensatory and punitive damages.  The

defendants intend to defend against such claims vigorously.

In May 2001, certain former stockholders of Sunglass Hut International, Inc. commenced an action in the U.S.

District Court for the Eastern District of New York against the Company, its acquisition subsidiary formed to acquire

Sunglass Hut International and certain other defendants, on behalf of a purported class of former Sunglass Hut

International stockholders, alleging in the original and in the amended complaint filed later, among other claims, that

the defendants violated certain provisions of U.S. Securities Law, and the rules thereunder in connection with the

acquisition of Sunglass Hut International in a tender offer and second-step merger, by reason of entering into a

consulting, non-disclosure and non-competition agreement, prior to the commencement of the tender offer, with the

former chairman of Sunglass Hut International, which purportedly involved paying consideration to such person for his

Sunglass Hut International shares and his support of the tender offer that was higher than that paid to Sunglass Hut

International’s stockholders in the tender offer. 

The Company and the other defendant filed a motion to dismiss the complaint in its entirety which, on November

26, 2003, the Court granted in part and denied in part. The Court granted the Company’s motion to dismiss plaintiffs'

claim under Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, but denied the

Company’s motion to dismiss the claims under Rule 14d-10 relating to the consulting, non-disclosure and non-

competition agreement with Mr. Hauslein, the former Chairman of Sunglass Hut International, and aiding and abetting

alleged breaches by Sunglass Hut International former directors of their fiduciary duties, noting that it was obligated,

for the purpose of rendering its decision on the motion to dismiss, to treat all of the plaintiffs' allegations in the

complaint as true. The Company continues to believe that the claims that were not dismissed are without merit and

that its defenses are meritorious, and will continue to defend against such claims vigorously. However, the Company

can provide no assurance as to the outcome of the case.

In December 2002, the Company was informed that the Attorney General of the State of New York is conducting

Future minimum annual rental commitments for operating leases are as follows (thousands of Euro):

Years ending December 31,

2004 167,505

2005 130,373

2006 116,855 

2007 89,622 

2008 67,713

Subsequent Years 107,925

TOTAL 679,993

Total rent expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, aggregated

€ 203.7 million, € 276.5 million and € 260.3 million, respectively.

Credit Facilities - As of December 31, 2002, and 2003, Luxottica Group had unused short-term lines of credit of

approximately € 308.1 million and € 271.8 million, respectively.

These lines of credit are renewed annually and are guaranteed by the Company. At December 31, 2003, there was

no principal amount of borrowings outstanding and € 18.5 million in aggregate face amount of standby letters of

credit outstanding under these lines of credit (see below). 

Outstanding Stand-by Letters of Credit - A U.S. subsidiary has obtained various stand-by letters of credit from

banks that aggregate € 21.2 million as of December 31, 2003. Most of these letters of credit are used for security in

risk management contracts or as security on store leases. Most contain evergreen clauses under which the letter is

automatically renewed unless the bank is notified not to renew.

Litigation - On April 22, 2003, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with Oakley, under which two

previously reported patent and intellectual property lawsuits brought by Oakley in 1998 (originally against Bausch &

Lomb Incorporated and certain of its subsidiaries and assumed by the Company in connection with the acquisition

from Bausch & Lomb in 1999 of the Ray-Ban business) and in 2001, against the Company and certain of its

subsidiaries, each in the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California were settled. As part of the settlement,

neither party admitted to any wrongdoing in either case, and all claims and counterclaims were released and

discharged. Further, the preliminary injunction that Oakley had obtained in the second case against certain

subsidiaries of the Company was dissolved.

In November 1999, Lantis Eyewear, Inc. (“Lantis”), a former distributor of Bausch & Lomb, filed a complaint against

Luxottica Group and one of its subsidiaries claiming that, in terminating its distribution agreement with Lantis, the

Company allegedly breached the agreement.  In October 2000, the Court granted a motion by Luxottica Group to



125124

On April 19, 2004, the Company stated that it had been made aware of the unsolicited, non-binding offer received

by National Cole from Moulin International Holdings Ltd. to acquire Cole National in a merger. In a press release, the

Company noted that Cole had decided to postpone to a date to be announced the special meeting of stockholders

scheduled for the following day to vote on the Company’s proposal. The postponement was necessary to permit Cole

National to file and distribute to its stockholders updated proxy materials. 

In the same press release, the Company also noted that the recommendation by Cole National’s Board of

Directors to vote for the merger agreement executed with the Company last January remained in effect and had not

been modified or changed. In addition, Luxottica Group's Board of Directors did not deem it necessary to take any

action in connection with the matters referred to in the Cole National’s announcement distributed earlier on the same

day and indicated that it would review such matters in due course. 

an investigation into the Company’s pricing and distribution practices relating to sunglasses under applicable state

and federal antitrust laws. The Company has been fully cooperating with this investigation and intends to continue to

do so, by providing documents and other information to the New York Attorney General. Although the Company

believes it has not violated any applicable antitrust laws, it is unable at this time to predict the outcome or timing of

this investigation.

On August 29, 2003, the Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) in India upheld the decision to require a subsidiary of

the Company to make a public offering to acquire up to an additional 20 percent of the outstanding shares of RayBan

Sun Optics India Ltd.  On October 30, 2003, the Company announced that it intended to comply with the SAT’s

decision and that the Company, through its subsidiary, Ray Ban Indian Holdings Inc., would launch a public offer to

purchase an additional 20 percent of the outstanding shares of RayBan Sun Optics India Ltd.  The Company expects

the aggregate cost of the offer to be approximately € 16 million, including stipulated interest increments. In

accordance with applicable Indian regulation, the Company placed in escrow with the Manager of the Offer Rs. 226

million (€ 4.2 million).  On November 17, 2003, the Supreme Court of India stayed the SAT’s order and directed that

the matter be further reviewed at the end of January 2004, provided that the Company issue a letter of credit in favor

of the Indian securities regulatory agency within the following four week period of Rs. 630.6 million (€ 11.9 million).

The Company has complied with such requirement and the review has been delayed until April 1, 2004. The Court

directed the appeal to be listed in the week commencing July 4, 2004. 

The Company is defendant in various other lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of  business. It is the opinion of

the management of the Company that it has meritorious defenses against all outstanding claims, which the Company

will vigorously pursue, and that the outcome will not have a material adverse effect on either the Company's

consolidated financial position or results of operations.

15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 26, 2004, the Company and Cole National Corporation (“Cole National”) jointly announced that they

have entered into a definitive merger agreement dated as of January 23, 2004, with the unanimous approval of the

Boards of Directors. Under this agreement, the Company will acquire all of the outstanding shares of Cole National for

a cash purchase price of US$ 22.50 per share, together with the purchase of all outstanding options and similar

equity rights at same price per share, less their respective exercise prices, for a total purchase price of approximately

€ 320 million (US$ 401 million). The merger is subject to the approval of Cole National’s stockholders and satisfaction

of other customary conditions, including compliance with applicable antitrust clearance requirements. The transaction

is expected to close in the second half of 2004. Cole National is a provider of vision care products and services,

including managed vision care programs and personalized gifts, with 2,944 retail locations in the U.S., Canada and

the Carribeans.
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First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter (4) Fourth Quarter (4)

2003 2003 2003 2003
Net Sales 704,547 100% 706,955 100% 694,452 100% 718,682 100%

Gross Profit 496,531 70.5% 481,872 68.2% 474,695 68.4% 493,199 68.6%

Operating Income 111,351 15.8% 111,893 15.8% 109,429 15.8% 99,114 13.8%

Income before Taxes 95,853 13.6% 99,427 14.1% 107,295 15.5% 87,219 12.1%

Net Income 65,614 9.3% 67,669 9.6% 74,449 10.7% 59,613 8.3%

Earnings
per ADS in Euro 0.15 0.15 0.17 0.13

Earnings
per ADS in U.S. Dollars (1) 0.16 0.17 0.19 0.16

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

First Quarter (2) Second Quarter (2) Third Quarter (2) Fourth Quarter (2)

2002 2002 2002 2002

Net Sales 880,486 100% 879,003 100% 740,897 100% 678,215 100%

Gross Profit 622,240 70.7% 627,763 71.4% 525,563 70.9% 478,631 70.6%

Operating Income 163,185 18.6% 181,582 20.7% 142,376 19.2% 114,366 16.9%

Income before Taxes147,028 16.7% 159,807 18.2% 123,065 16.6% 109,541 16.2%

Net Income 101,070 11.5% 111,283 12.7% 85,370 11.5% 74,353 11.0%

Earnings per share
(ADS) in Euro 0.22 0.25 0.19 0.16

Earnings per share
(ADS) in U.S. Dollars (1) 0.20 0.23 0.19 0.16

(1)  All U.S. Dollar amounts are translated at the Euro/U.S. Dollar average exchange rate of the relevant period (for further information see table on page  29)
(2) Results for fiscal year 2002 have been reclassified to allow for comparison with results for fiscal year 2003
(3) Except per ADS amounts which are in Euro and in U.S. Dollars  
(4) Results for fiscal year 2003 include results of OPSM’s operations from August 1, 2003

(Thousands of Euro) (3)

(Thousands of Euro) (3)

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (U.S. GAAP)
(Subject to limited auditing review)

For the reader’s convenience the tables below set forth quarterly financial data for fiscal years 2002 and 2003.
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